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LALIN VISION

Lalin Property PCL is determined to become a leader in residential property developer with continuous and sustainable
growth based on business developments, technologies, innovations, and competitiveness in order to deliver customers
with quality, life of living, and good society. We, as well as, attach great importance to society, employees, suppliers,

and stockholders.

LALIN MISSION

Lalin Property PCL is a residential property development company that meets standard quality on outstanding
location, modern design, impressive service, value prices, and professional management on good practices in corporate
governance in order to deliver quality of life, living, and society. As well as, attach great importance to society, employees,

suppliers, and stockholders to achieve sustainable growth.

LALIN CORE VALUES

L A L I N represents the values held by Lalin Property as a guideline for human resources development and business

growth. LALIN is composed of the following:
L Long Term Thinking means long-term thinking with insight into the business’ continued survival and growth.

A Adaptation means adaptability to surrounding conditions through analysis of various factors affecting
business success on a regular basis.

L Life Style means true customer understanding in order to respond to and deliver a good way of
life, life-style and society to customers through construction using only bricks,
rocks, concrete and sand.

| Innovation means the development of new innovations for the purpose of increasing competitive
capacity, e.g., tunnel form and precast methods, etc.

N Networking means presence of networks and alliances to create sustainable business success.
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Report of Executive Chairman

2018 was another challenging year due to escalating trade wars affecting the world, causing the overall economy
to slow, particularly in China, which is in direct conflict with the United States, causing the Chinese economy to grow at
a slower rate with effects causing growth in other countries to slow as well.

The engine driving the Thai economy continues to be exports. When trading partners’ economies slow down, this
causes effects on the Thai economy. The Thai economy grew well during the first half of the year with less growth dur-
ing the second half of the year as a result of lower export growth. Consumption factors continue to recover slowly due
to high household debt. Government sector investment and construction stimulation projects helped the economy to
growth by 4.1 percent in the entire year, a slightly lower rate than expected.

Competition in the real-estate business is more severe because each company in the market expanded businesses
at a high rate compared to business growth and the real-estate business with some support from overseas demand.

Lalin Company Limited focuses on horizontal housing, real needs and adapted strategies to be able to compete.
In addition, the Company has restructured its business strategies and management in the entire organization in order
to manage the economic slowdown, thereby causing the Company to continue to have good performance with a sales
growth of 13.7 percent and a profit growth of 14.1 percent. This is higher than economic and industry conditions. Thus,
the Company maintained good performance for another year.

As a representative of Lalin Property Co., Ltd., | would like to thank everyone on the Lalin team who dedicated
energy and ability to overcome barriers. | would like to thank financial institutes, suppliers and all shareholders for their

C Ml —

(Chaiyan Chakarakul)
Executive Chairman

good support of the Company’s work.

s190uds=910 2561
USuUNaaa weowIwosa s1ia (Umsu)




7

©
o
N
5
Q
@
o
©
3
=
=
<

=
2
E
=
>
5
<]
o
E
<)
O
)
2
>
<
=
|5
o
O
o
-
1.2




|IIH'"'
||||.,I|” H i

uwunUanu '?f’mumoTona




. ) I‘.':*r-'—l ir W il .'- .|I'.. r_lllt j 'ir [
oy f#fﬂ-ﬂifﬂ-i;-;:ﬁ;#{:.
- ! ': Jrl 'I_'- |-|.'.' -:_.i- o ey :‘:IT‘IJ-I_ Il'"."].. e

i

et e
IO IUIRUOS:QU
B ; e
e =1 1USUIIUUD ‘Lii’Lre e TE T e
e j% - .l"‘ » Fih i - -

n P -
e LLIIF

v | I[1] | | g
i) g




Joualneoruusun
Company Information

USUN ada wSowiwosa o1ria (UKisu)
Lalin Property Public Company Limited

naadinaulugy

Uszinngsna
nzifauiaai
HOME PAGE
FAUTTASLIIALYT
NuaAnziie
Nutssua
yaAins 1y

' 2
o

AUNNAA

Lo

TayauEndas

“WaauannsaAntayarasudEnieanuamindiivsmanlaanuuusanss emstiayatlsed

10 sngvuUs=91U 2561
USUN ada wSowiwosa $1ia (Usu)

W07 222/2 aUUARUATUNS LIeaMINN
WALNNEL NPUNWY 10240
In9Anit (662) 732-1041-5
Tneans (662) 377-9656
WannedmBunineifioans
0107545000233
www.lalinproperty.com

1 4N91AN - 31 fUNAN
925,000,000 U
924,999,441 U

WAz 1 UM

8 MUY 2531

U3t weoalles nsanwmedh A1rin (UsEne Detiuludndonienay 99.98)

< rmm=

= [ P y Houmn, T —
'Lf)u aag Ve Bl @aansudaa £ A 1] |D
- ——

a o Y < a o
PausEnNLansldly www.sec.orth wsaliuldAuasussin

=

"

LiB

(suu 56-1)



asudolyanonisiou
Financial Highlights

dunswel (&uuin) / Assets (Million Baht)
AUAAIUAD (Inventories) 7,886.40 8,479.82 8,527.92

AunIngdsan (Total Assets) 9,184.83 9,893.92 10,429.52

hﬁéuua:éouuoovgﬁoﬁu (&uunn)
Liabilities & Shareholders” Equity (Million Baht)

2

widumyuAEw (Current Liabilities) 2,305.42 2,474.62 1,820.53
wilaulsivauiBen (Non-Current Liabilities) 1,911.07 1,895.26 2,612.72
wildusaa (Total Liabilties) 4,216.49 4,369.88 4,433.25
nuﬁ@@mmzﬁﬂn‘*ﬁﬂimﬁq (Paid up Share Capital) 825.00 925.00 925.00
Aua89509u (Shareholders’ Equity) 4,968.34 5,524.04 5,996.27
wamscaiduoiu (&uuin) Operation’s Result
9elfa1nnisane (Sales) 2,707.07 3,589.20 4,082.06
38l fi3nn (Total Revenue) 2,722.12 3,598.92 4,098.66
flsdusiu (Gross Profit) 1,061.37 1,429.94 1,617.87
flagns (Net Profit 500.26 691.71 777.15

Ifeuidusasicioru (Un) Per Share Figure (Baht)

a

fnls (@A) gns (Net Profit (Loss)) 0.61 0.74 0.84

yaf1ANtnyd (Book Value) 6.02 5.97 6.48

waAARsls (Par Value) 1.00 1.00 1.00
ousidouanmwaaoonwMisiou (Liquidity Ratio)

fin3dauaNIWAaeY (Current Ratio) 3.48 3.48 4.78

ARIAIUANNARDIMYUIRLUET (Quick Ratio) 0.06 0.07 0.33
oasdoulaavnuaiisniumsiniils  (Protability Ratio)

'ﬂv&liﬁﬁﬂi‘%wﬁ’fu (Gross Profit Margin) 39.21% 39.84% 39.63%

fmnnlsannnisaifingnu (Operation Profit Margin) 23.43% 24.24% 24.38%

fm3nnlagnsd (Net Profit Margin) 18.38% 18.92% 19.04%

fnswanauwnugiiedu (Return on Equities) 10.37% 12.98% 13.49%

oasdouus:ansmwiunisaniduoiu (Efciency Ratio)

ARIHARNALLNUANNNINTRUTIUNA (Return on Asset) 5.82% 7.14% 7.65%

oasdouulgunamomsiou  (Financial Policy Ratio)

fnsvtldusiadiuansgiiedis (Debt to Equity Ratio) 0.85 0.79 0.74
fngmilAugnisediuaasdliai (Net Debt to Equity Ratio) 0.63 0.56 0.45
AuufunFand19zuda (§1urfu) Number of Outstanding Shares (Million Shares) 825.00 925.00 925.00
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Board of Directors and Management

1. Mr.Taveesak Watcharakawong

Position

Date of Nomination

Education

Director Training

Working Experience

Disqualifications

Meeting attendance Last year

Share Holder (%)

72 years old
Chairman
August 30, 2002  (Years in position: 16 Year)
Over 30 years experience in Real Estate Business
Still not participate in Director training courses of 10D

2003 — Present Chairman Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd

1998 - 2002 Chairman Lalin Land & House Co.,Ltd.

No record in criminal case regarding the offence against property by dishonest.

No record in doing any transactions having conflict of interest with the

company in the past one year.

Attended board of directors’ meeting 5 times out of 5 meetings.

Attended the 2018 annual general shareholders’ meeting

28.30%

Position taking in other organization in the past year

Listed Companies

None

Non-listed Companies

Be directors in one non-listed company which doesn’t have any conflict of interest to the company.
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2. Mr.Chaiyan  Chakarakul

Position

Date of Nomination

Education

Director Training

Working Experience

Disqualifications

Meeting attendance Last year

Share Holder (%)

70 years old

Director

Executive Chairman
August 30, 2002  (Years in position: 16 Year)

Bachelor Degree in Commerce (honour) Thammasart University
M.S.Thammasart University
Real Estate Management, Chulalongkorn University # 8

Senior Executive Program 4 Sasin GIBA Chulalongkorn University and The
Wharton School University of Pennsyvania and “Kellogg” Graduate School of

Management North-Western University
The National Defence for joint state-private sectors course, class 14

Capital Market Academy (CMA), Class 7
Director Certification Program (DCP) class 65 - 10D

2003 - Present Managing Director, Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.

1988 - 2002 Managing Director, Lalin Land and House Co.,Ltd.

No record in criminal case regarding the offence against property by dishonest.

No record in doing any transactions having conflict of interest with the

company in the past one year.

Attended board of directors’ meeting 5 times out of 5 meetings.

Attended the 2018 annual general shareholders’ meeting

25.27%

Position taking in other organization in the past year

Listed Companies

None

Non-listed Companies

Be directors in three non-listed companies which don’t have any conflict of interest to the company.
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3. Mr. Suvarn Tansathit 74 years old

Position - Independent Director

- Chairman of the audit committee
Date of Nomination - August 30,2002 (Years in position: 16 Year)

Education - M.SC in Commerce, University of Santo Tomas, Philippines
- BBA (Management) — University of East — Philippines

- The National Defense for joint state-private sectors course, class 355
Director Training - Director Certification Program (DCP) class 63 - 10D

Working Experience - 2006 - Present Director / Senior Executive Vice President
Bangkok Bank Public Co.,ltd.
- 1996 - 2006  Senior Executive Vice President Special Asset Management
Bangkok Bank Public Co.,ltd.

- 1973-1996 Executive, Bangkok Bank Public Co.,ltd.

Disqualifications in the past one year - No record in criminal case regarding the offence against property by dishonest.

- No record in doing any transactions having conflict of interest with the company
Meeting attendance Last year - Attended board of directors’ meeting 5 times out of 5 meetings.

- Attended board of audit committees’ meeting 4 times out of 4 meetings.

- Attended the 2018 annual general shareholders’ meeting

Share Holder (%) - 0.00%

Position taking in other organization in the past year

Listed Companies

- Executive Director, Bangkok Bank PCL.
- Independent Director, Nominating and Remuneration committee Bangkok Insurance PCL.

Non-listed Companies

Be directors in two non-listed companies which don’t have any conflict of interest to the company.
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4. Mr. Niputh  Jitprasonk

Position

Date of Nomination

Education

Director Training
Working Experience

Disqualifications in the past one year.

Meeting attendance Last year

Share Holder (%)

75 years old

Independent Director

Member of the Audit Committee
August 30, 2002  (Years in position: 16 Year)

Certificate in Real Estate Management University at Hawaii

M.B.A. International Trade and Finance, Gothenburg School of Economics

and Business Administration, Sweden

Bachelor of Arts, (Honour First Class) Faculty of Commerce and Accountancy,

Thammasat University

The National Defence for joint state-private sectors course, class 7
Capital Market Academy (CMA), Class 2

Director Certification Program (DCP) class 85 - 10D

1995 — PresentReal Estate Management Program — Thammasart University

No record in criminal case regarding the offence against property by dishonest.

No record in doing any transactions having conflict of interest with the company
Attended board of directors’ meeting 5 times out of 5 meetings.
Attended board of audit committees’ meeting 4 times out of 4 meetings.

Attended the 2018 annual general shareholders’ meeting

0.00%

Position taking in other organization in the past year

Listed Companies

- Independence director and chairman of the audit committee — G J Steel Pcl

- Independence director — Aira Capital Pcl Non-listed Companies

Non-listed Companies

None

Annual Report 2018 1 9
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5. Mr.Satit Chanjavanakul 71 Years old

Position - Independent Director

- Member of the Audit Committee
Date of Nomination - December 23, 2009 (Years in position: 9 Year)

Education - MBA Thammasat University

- M.Sc. (Textile Technology), University of Leeds, U.K.

- Bachelor of Engineering (Industrial Engineering), Chulalongkorn University

- The National Defence for joint state-private sectors course, class 14

- Capital Market Academy (CMA), Class 5

- International Advanced Management Program, Massachusetts Institute of
technology (MIT), USA.

- Hubert Humphrey Fellowship Scholarship - Planning & Resource
Management, Massachusetts Institute of technology (MIT), USA.

- APO Scholarship - Effective Problem Solving for Decision Makers; Japan

- Netherlands Government Scholarship - Industrial Quality Control; at

Bouwcentrum Institute, Rotterdam
Director Training - Director Certification Program (DCP) class 83 - 10D

Working Experience - 2004 - 2008 Secretary General, Board of Investment (BOI),
- 2003-2004 Deputy Secretary General, Board of Investment (BOI)
- 2001 -2003 Deputy Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Industry

Disqualifications in the past one year. - No record in criminal case regarding the offence against property by dishonest.

- No record in doing any transactions having conflict of interest with the company

Meeting attendance Last year - Attended board of directors’ meeting 5 times out of 5 meetings.
- Attended board of audit committees’ meeting 4 times out of 4 meetings.

- Attended the 2018 annual general shareholders’ meeting
Share Holder (%) - 0.00%

Position taking in other organization in the past year
Listed Companies
- Chairman; SNC Former PCL.
- Member of audit committee; Thai Agro Energy PCL.

- Member of audit committee; Asia Plus Group Holding PCL.
- Independent Director; Crown Seal PCL.

Non-listed Companies

Be directors in three non-listed companies which don’t have any conflict of interest to the company.
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6. Mr.Nat Sangarsongkogk 59 years old

Position - Director

- Executive Director
Date of Nomination - August 30,2002 (Years in position: 16 Year)

Education - Master of Business Administration (MBA), Rangsit University

- Real Estate Management, Chulalongkorn University # 11
Director Training - Director Certification Program (DCP) class 67 - 10D
Working Experience - 2012 - Present Deputy Managing Director, Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.
- 2003 -2012 Assistant Managing Director, Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.
- 2000 - 2002 Senior Project Management Manager, Lalin Land & House Co.,Ltd.

- 1989 - 2000 Project Management Manager, Lalin Land & House Co.,Ltd.

Disqualifications in the past one year. - No record in criminal case regarding the offence against property by dishonest.

- No record in doing any transactions having conflict of interest with the company

Meeting attendance Last year - Attended board of directors’ meeting 5 times out of 5 meetings.

- Attended the 2018 annual general shareholders’ meeting
Share Holder (%) - 0.04%

Position taking in other organization in the past year

Listed Companies

None

Non-listed Companies

Be a director of Prosper company limited (Subsidiary company which Lalin holds 99.98% of total share)
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7. Mr.Churat  Chakarakul 41 years old

Position - Director

- Executive Director
Date of Nomination - April 25,2012  (Years in position: 7 Year)

Education - M.B.A. American University U.S.A.
- M.S. (Economic) University of lllinois — Urbana Champaign U.S.A.
- Bachelor of Engineering, Chulalongkorn University

- New generation leader in Democracy Program Class 3 —

King Prajadhipok Institute’s Society
Director Training - Director Certification Program (DCP) class 161 - 10D

Working Experience - 2004 - Present Deputy Managing Director - Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.
- 2003 -2004  Assistant Managing Director - Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.

- 2001 -2003 SBU2 Director & Corporate Marketing Department Manager -
Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.

- 2001 -2003 Assistant Marketing Manager - Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.
- 2001 -2003 Analyst - Investment Banking - Capital Nomura Securities Public Co.,Ltd.
- 2001 -2003 Analyst - Investment Banking - Phatra Securities Public Co.,Ltd.

Disqualifications in the past one year. - No record in criminal case regarding the offence against property by dishonest.

No record in doing any transactions having conflict of interest with the company

Meeting attendance Last year - Attended board of directors’ meeting 5 times out of 5 meetings.

- Attended the 2018 annual general shareholders’ meeting

Share Holder (%) - 6.36%

Position taking in other organization in the past year

Listed Companies

None

Non-listed Companies

Be a director of Prosper company limited (Subsidiary company which Lalin holds 99.98% of total share)

Be a director in one non-listed companies which doesn’t have any conflict of interest to the company.
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8. Mr.Wanchai Aranvutikul

Position

Education

Bangkok

Working Experience

Share Holder (%)

52 years old
Assistant Managing Director - Construction

M.B.A. - Srinakharinwirot University

Bachelor of Civil Engineering, King Mongkut's University of Technology North

Mini MRE - Thammasat University

2015 - Present Assistant Managing Director - Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.
2013 - 2015 Senior Project Construction Director - Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.
2012 —-2013  Senior Project Manager - TCC Land Co.,Ltd.

2007 - 2012  Senior Project Manager - Pruksa Real Estate Public Co.,Ltd

2003 - 2007  Project Director - Ktech Construction Public Co.,Ltd

0.00%

Family relation with Director & Executive - None

Position taking in other organization in the past year

Listed Companies

None

Non-listed Companies

None
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9. Mr.Montree Montreemanee 49 years old
Position - Assistant Managing Director - Management

Education - Master of Public Administration (Management) - NIDA
- Master of Telecom Management, Assumption University

- Bachelor of Computer Science - Ramkhamhaeng University

Working Experience - 2018 - Present Assistant Managing Director - Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.
- 2002-2018  General Manager — True Corporation PLC..
- 2001 -2002 Sale Manager — Mic Worldcom Inc.
- 1997 - 2001 Team Leader - Panasonic (Thialand) Inc.

- 1995-1997  Software Developer — IBM Thailand Inc.
Share Holder (%) - 0.00%
Family relation with Director & Executive - None

Position taking in other organization in the past year

Listed Companies

None

Non-listed Companies

None
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10. Mr.Seri Sintuas 41 years old

Position - Finance Director and Company’s Executive Secretary

Education - M.B.A. - Chulalongkorn University
- B.B.A. - Thammasat University

- Certificate in Real Estate Management University of California, Riverside
Extension U.S.A.

- CSP Class 50 - IOD

Working Experience - 2015 - Present Finance Director - Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.
- 2008 - 2015 Finance Manager - Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.
- 2006 — 2007 Assistant Finance Manager - Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.
- 2003 -2005 Trader — The Siam Cement PLC.

- 1999 -2001 Internal Auditor - Bangkok Bank Public Co., Ltd.
Share Holder (%) - 0.00%
Family relation withDirector & Executive - None

Position taking in other organization in the past year

Listed Companies

None

Non-listed Companies

Be a director of Prosper company limited (Subsidiary company which Lalin holds 99.98% of total share)
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11. Ms.Kanitha Thamviseth 55 years old

Position - Account Manager

Education

Bachelor of Accountancy — Bangkok University

- Mini MBA - Chulalongkorn University

Working Experience - 2003 — Present Account Manager - Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.

- 1988 -2002 Assistant Account Manager - Lalin Land and House Co.,Ltd.

Share Holder (%) - 0.00%

Family relation with Director & Executive - None

Position taking in other organization in the past year

Listed Companies

None

Non-listed Companies

Be a director of Prosper company limited (Subsidiary company which Lalin holds 99.98% of total share)
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Change in Shares hold by Company’s directors and management

Positions Share as of Sold Share as of

Jan 1,2017 during year Dec 31,2017
1. Taveesak Watcharakawong | Chairman 261,806,113 261,806,113
2. Chaiyan Chakarakul Director and Executive Chairman 233,775,810 233,775,810
3. Suvarn Tansathit Independent Director and Chairman of audit committee 0 0
4. Niputh Jitprasonk Independent Director and Member of Audit Committee 0 0
5. Satit Chanjavanakul Independent Director and Member of Audit Committee 0 0
6. Nat Sangarsongkogk Director and Deputy Managing Director 364,393 364,393
7. Churat Chakarakul Director and Deputy Managing Director 58,863,636 58,863,636
8. Wanchai Aranvutikul Assistant Managing Director 0 0
9. Montree Montreemanee Assistant Managing Director 0 0
10. Seri Sintuas Finance Director and Company’s Executive Secretary 0 0
11. Kanitha Thamviseth Account Manager 0 0
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Policy and Overall Business Operations

Signicant Changes and Development

Lalin Property Public Co., Ltd. was founded on 8 September 1988 with initial registered capital of 20 million baht and Mr.
Thaweesak Wacharakhawong and Mr. Chaiyan Chakornkul as the first shareholders. The company conducts housing business
under the slogan “Home Built with the Best Intention”. The first housing project under the project name “Lully Ville” was set
up in two areas, namely, Srinagarind and Dhupateme Roads, with a total of 800 housing units on 88 rai of land and a project
value of 1,100 million baht. The project has already been closed. Throughout the past, the company has continually launched
housing projects, even during the economic crisis of 1997 when the company was one of only a few companies in Thailand

that did not require debt restructuring and created no NPL for any financial institutions.

During the time of crisis for the real estate industry, the company started marketing for new housing projects, e.g. the
project Friend-get-Friend and the implementation of escrow accounts to build customer confidence. As a result, the company
was one of only a few companies in the real estate industry with no need to re-negotiate its debt structure with any financial
institution. Moreover, the company was the leader in implementing the strategy to purchase projects and land as collateral
for the NPAs of financial institutions and asset auction from the Financial Sector Restructuring Authority (FSRA) for further de-
velopment. As a result, the company was able to develop projects continually and with annually increasing sales figure and

competitive operating costs under today’s conditions of fierce competition.
The company has increased its registered capital consistently to support project development as follows:
1997 Increased registered capital to 250 million baht.
1998 Increased registered capital to 300 million and 400 million baht, respectively.
1999 Increased registered capital to 555 million baht.

2002 Converted to public company on 3 September 2002 and registered in the SET with registered capital increased
to 825 million baht.

Throughout the past ten years, the company has expanded projects consistently to support business growth and replace
previously completed projects. The company has conducted regular research on market demand and developed products to
meet consumer demands and expand its customer base. In 2010, the company launched a new brand, “Lanceo”, with single
home and modern duplex home projects, designed by a designing company with performance accepted worldwide with an
Organic Contemporary theme blending contemporary work with nature. The following year, the company launched another
new brand, “Lio”, a 2-storey and 3-storey town home project in modern ecology style. The two brands are for customer base
expansion to the market of new generation consumers. As of the end of 2017, the company had launched a total of 46 “Lanceo”

and “Lio” projects valued at approximately 31,000 million baht.

Furthermore, the company launched an 8-storey condominium project to support specific consumer groups, especially
those who are new graduates who have just started working and people who want to live in condominiums in the city. During
2011-2013, the company launched four 8-storey condominium projects under the brand “Levo” and “Lib” valued at approxi-
mately 1,200 million baht. The first project began to generate income in late 2012. In addition to expanding customer base to
a wider age range, the company also expanded its customer base in terms of geographic area. The company has expanded
its business to provincial markets since 2012, to provinces with capacity such as Chonburi, Rayong, Chachoensao, and Na-

khonratchasima. At the end of 2017, a total of 17 new projects were launched in provincial markets.
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Business Goals

The company is determined to become the nation’s leading
business in the housing business with policy focused on stable,
continual growth and business expansion by taking factors into
consideration with prudence and caution and seeking new busi-
ness opportunities. The company is considering concepts for
developing projects capable of meeting customer demands

from project location, housing development with consideration

of functionality, modern design, cost effectiveness as well as the
building of quality society. The company’s motto is “Homes Built
with the Best Intention”. Under normal conditions, the company
launches new housing projects every year in areas with capacity,
according to the Five-Corner Home policy, with fair selling prices
and quality society, with emphasis on lower middle to high class
customers, and focus on customers with real demand. During
the past five years (2012 — 2016), the company launched 6-8 new
projects in each year. And in 2017, the company has launched
7 new projects with an approximate total value of 4,500 million
baht. And for 2018’s Plan, the company plans to continually

launch 8 — 10 more new projects with an approximate total value

of 4,500 — 5,000 million baht. The company set revenue target in
2019 at 4,650 million baht. In term 3-5 years target, the company
set revenue growth at 10-15% per year, and target to increase
market share in townhome segment within price range 1.5 - 2.5
million baht from 7% to 10%.
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Nature of Business

Lalin Property Public Company Limited is a developer of houses with land for commercial sales. The Company currently
has registered capital of 925 million Baht (of which 825 million Baht is fully paid-up). Mr. Taveesak Watcharakkawong serves
as Chairman of the Board of Directors and Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul as Executive Chairman. The Company is the sole developer
and owner of various residential housing projects, with a primary focus on detached house, semi detached houses (new
concept homes), and townhouses in the Bangkok and greater Bangkok area. The projects comprise “Lalin GreenVille”; “Baan
Lalin in the Park”; “Baan Burirom”; “Lully Ville”, “The Balcony Home”, and the two new brands named “Lanceo” and “Lio”.
The company launched a new condominium project branded “LEVO” in 2011, and “The LIB” in 2012 to support customer’s
needs. The company launched projects which cover 5 major regions of Bangkok and vicinities, that is, the central city zone,
the western zone, eastern zone, northern zone and southern zone. This has provided the basis for the Company’s business
direction for over 30 years. Moreover, since 2012 Company has started to expand business to other potential provinces. At
the end of 2018, Company had already launched 17 projects in up-country market.

With its extensive experience spanning over 30 years, the Company is the leader of the mid market housing segment,
targeting customers looking to purchase homes in the 1.5 - 6 million Baht range. This segment represents a market supported
by real demand, with consumers possessing a household income of between 25,000 -120,000 Baht per month. This market also
includes a significant number of the population. The Company is committed to ongoing product development, to meet the needs
of consumers, whether in terms of project locations; developing house designs with a regard for functionality; contemporary
design; and value for money. This reflects the philosophy carried in the hearts of all Lalin Property employees: “Houses built
on good intentions”.

The Company seeks to develop projects that meet demand for housing in areas that consumers want, striving to make
the Lalin Property name widely associated with value and quality. The homes in each project offer a selection of designs to
choose from. Customers can purchase either one of 3 options in the projects: pre-built homes, semi-pre-built homes and built-
to-order homes. This approach and business strategy has allowed the Company to fulfill the needs of its customers, inspiring
them with confidence in its operations. Company had registered trademark for project's names, and each of project names

have their own customer target. At present, Company has project names under management as follow.

Lalin Greenville Luxe

L U X [

Project Type : Detached House

Target Customer  : High Income Segment. Selling price is above 7 Million Baht.

Lalin Greenville

L . . Qaan3udaa
A ~ - The Executive
aaa I\SU:)aa douyd & JumAdeYe Frssaspl

Project Type : Detached House

Target Customer  : High Income Segment. Selling price is above 5 Million Baht.

Annual Report 2018 4»]
Lalin Property Public Company Limited



InsomsUhuaaa

U Aaa

i = =) The young Fxecutive
YUhrnidaa Vhu cdaa Youryg

- ro®= THNJE I e fEsU0

AnuuLlATIMS - TAgan3tiuLAEn

U v £Z 1 v o 1 $2 dl v
NANgNAN L ilungugnAnseiureuinegensamelszinm 3.0 - 5.0 §1uum
Insomsthuyssue

Unuussbe U HeRs

by Lalin Froperey

AneuLlAsIMS - TAsanstuAen waztiuwl Ak An

1 k- v U % o dl ¥
naNanAn : Luuﬂ@ql@ﬂﬂﬁ?szﬂ@WQVI?ﬁﬂ'ﬁ“ﬂ’]ﬂﬂﬁ‘zﬁJ’]m 2.2-4.0 824U

Insonsdaa dad

AanuuzlAsIMs Sflulpsanistinuaen TueansaAalud wazniaiEng

. v 23 1 % o I dl v
nYNQYNAI : Luuﬂ@ﬂ@ﬂﬂ"li%ﬂﬂ@’]ﬂﬂi’]ﬂ’]‘ﬂ’]ﬂﬂi‘ZN’]m 1.0 - 2.5 27U

Insoms The Balcony Home

Q [ :}{Omé‘

AN oMY 2=

AnELlATIMS Sflulpsanianmliding luiles

naNgNA" UNANgNANIZALNANNABUGINTIANIELTTNN 2,45 - 3.0 AAULM

lnsoms LANCEO

(0
TR ol
Qriceoc anceo i Repery
anwuzlAgams - iulasannstiumen waztuuelauinanlud nelsininAn Modern Organic Contemporary
1 v v 1 b4 o 1 dl %
NANGNAN  iungugnAIEAUNANARUEINT AN UsENN 2.5 - 4.0 A UL

42 sngvuUs=91U 2561
USUN ada wSowiwosa $1ia (Usu)



Baan Lalin

U Aaa

li;)u daa 'l]:)u aaa The young Executive

- ot Sy THNJE I e fEsU0

Project Type : Detached House

Target Customer  : Medium-High Income Segment. Selling price’s approximately 3.0 — 5.0 Million Baht.

Baan Burirom

Uhuyssps VSRR

by Lalin Froperey

Project Type : Detached House, Semi Detached House (new concept)

Target Customer  : Medium Income Segment. Selling price’s approximately 2.2 — 4.0 Million Baht.
Lully Ville

Project Type : Detached House, Semi Detached House (new concept), and Townhouse

Target Customer  : Medium-Low Income Segment. Selling price’s approximately 1.0 — 2.5 Million Baht.

The Balcony Home

Q ke @afwm Ll

By Eafm

Project Type . In town Townhouse

Target Customer  : Medium-High Income Segment. Selling price’s approximately 2.5 — 3.5 Million Baht.

LANCEO

.j,-’ & 2
- . A (]
Y. crig MEINDV e il 1 PRIDE
CII_ICQD arnceo aonceo arceo CNcCeo
Laltn FProperry by Laltm Praperty - Bio & wettie: Phaterny by Laltn Propern By Lalin Property
Project Type : Detached House, Semi Detached House (new concept) under concept Modern Organic
Contemporary

Target Customer  : Medium-High Income Segment. Selling price’s approximately 2.5 — 4.0 Million Baht.
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LIO

wl_jrs

Project Type

Target Customer

LEVO Condo

: 8-storey Condominium. Under concept “Revolution of Life”

Project Type

Target Customer

vy Lalim Props

Selling price’s approximately 1.8 — 3.0 Million Baht.

LIB Condo

LiB

MHTLT

Project Type

Target Customer

: 8-storey Condominium. Under concept “Liberty of Living”

Selling price’s approximately 1.4 — 2.5 Million Baht.

I_I i LIUI I_I Tl

BY LALIN PR

: Townhouse for young generation under concept “Modern Ecology”

3 p

: Medium-Low Income Segment. Selling price’s approximately 1.5 — 2.5 Million Baht.

: Young generation who want to live in town, and close to electric train station.

: Young generation who want to live in town, and close to electric train station.

The company’s main revenue comes from the real estate business, which can be divided into four types of housing products,

namely, single homes, duplexes, townhouses and condominiums. The revenue from each type of product can be summarized as

follows:

Product Types

Million B Million B Million B
Revenue from Sales
Detached House & Semi-Detached House 1,506.38 55.64% 1,836.20 51.16% 1,862.76 45.63%
Townhouse 1,134.42 41.91%| 1,696.03 47.25%| 2,205.61 54.03%
Condominium 66.27 2.45% 56.97 1.59% 13.69 0.34%
Total 2,707.07 3,589.20 4,082.06
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13,056 11,837 12,736 12,183 14,897
- tuuen 2,820 2,366 1,895 2,533 2,028
- nallinduazaianswitlaed 18,059 19,624 17,111 16,262 19,853
- 91P191A 75,058 67,474 72,886 63,319 65,808
gantszinnasnelaedilsznaums 108,993| 101,301 104,628 94,297 | 102,586

2. d5elnelszagudsnaas
- fhwifien 20,537 19,591 19,156 17,964 17,890
- Thulie 86 95 119 142 104
- masdiEnduazanatswaoiae 3,823 2,689 2,640 2,100 2,297

ganlszinnilssagudsnaiag 24,446 22,375 21,915 20,206 20,291

equi?‘i'agimﬁﬂﬂ%ﬂua?qqmwzsﬁﬂuﬁy’mm 133,439 | 123676| 126,543 114,503| 122,877

ansamsilaznunias (% Yov)

1. a5 nleadilszmaums (Anass)

- hwidien -5.86% -9.34% 7.59% -434% | 22.28%
- tuueln 14.17%| -16.10%| -19.91% 33.67%| -19.94%
- mMadlEnduazanmrswaciael -14.97% 8.67%| -12.81% -4.96% 22.08%
- 81A90 5.06% | -10.10% 8.02% | -13.13% 3.93%

santszianaslaedilszmaums -0.02% -7.06% 3.28% -9.87% 8.79%

2. g519lngilszandudsnaas
_fhwien 16.71% -4.61% -2.22% -6.22% -0.41%
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- nullEduazatAIwI el 16.40% 18.04% 15.61% 16.04% 18.03%
- 81A9% 56.25% 54.56% 57.60% 55.30% 53.56%
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Overview of Real Estate Industry

Condition of Real Estate Industry in 2018

Registered housing units in the Bangkok and Vicinities

Number of newly completed and registered housing units in Bangkok and Vicinities during year 2013-2017

Number of newly completed and registered housing (units)
1. Built by Developers
- Detached house 13,056 11,837 12,736 12,183 14,897
- Semi-detached house 2,820 2,366 1,895 2,533 2,028
- Townhouse and shop house 18,059 19,624 17,111 16,262 19,853
- Condominium 75,058 67,474 72,886 63,319 65,808
Total of building by developers 108,993 101,301 104,628 94,297 102,586
2. Private construction
- Detached house 20,537 19,591 19,156 17,964 17,890
- Semi-detached house 86 95 119 142 104
- Townhouse and shop house 3,823 2,689 2,640 2,100 2,297
Total for private construction 24,446 22,375 21,915 20,206 20,291
Total of newly completed and registered housing 133,439 123,676 126,543 114,503 122,877
Rate of change (%)
1. Built by Developers
- Detached house -5.86% -9.34% 7.59% -4.34% 22.28%
- Semi-detached house 14.17% -16.10% -19.91% 33.67% -19.94%
- Townhouse and shop house -14.97% 8.67% -12.81% -4.96% 22.08%
- Condominium 5.06% -10.10% 8.02% -13.13% 3.93%
Total of building by developers -0.02% -7.06% 3.28% -9.87% 8.79%
2. Private construction
- Detached house 16.71% -4.61% -2.22% -6.22% -0.41%
- Semi-detached house -34.35% 10.47% 25.26% 19.33% -26.76%
- Townhouse and shop house -31.22% -29.66% -1.82% -20.45% 9.38%
Total for private construction 4.99% -8.47% -2.06% -7.80% 0.42%
Total of newly completed and registered housing 0.86% -7.32% 2.32% -9.51% 7.31%
- Detached house 2517% 25.41% 25.20% 26.33% 26.68%
- Semi-detached house 2.18% 1.99% 1.59% 2.34% 1.74%
- Townhouse and shop house 16.40% 18.04% 15.61% 16.04% 18.03%
- Condominium 56.25% 54.56% 57.60% 55.30% 53.56%
100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Annual Report 2018 47
Lalin Property Public Company Limited




andeyasananegandeaituaiaannzidauluanngunnumung uazlinoma sesruddeyaadsniauning (REIC) wudn
fonafiaganduainvaiaannzidounneaialaedisznaunts (aaes) Tull 2561 HauousanTisdn 102,586 giln UFuiinauan

1
a

Hreufenaz 8.79 lnafinaairasaaansiduutlssaniiuaasull 2561 et 14,897 giln iistufesay 22,28 (Fawnfiarsan
Usznvilasaziden fhuinogesu Suiedududman asdfesaanadoued 11,485 gin Jiuisduanilnewnihiitesas
15.65) lusniiiinrairasaannadulssnmmadidnduazaneedadlull 2561 agil 19,853 giln iatufanaz 22.08 (39
mnfansnenzauimailindaziifasaamadovesii 17,479 4in Maduanntieufenss 33.54 luneiisaeaanziau
Wmil,%"m’mm%u%@ﬁ 13,420 g/ilm Wduanniiieuasaz 28.42) luanizfidinaenmeeiaiaaiaaanzidoulull 2561 atf
65,808 4in Uiufisdwdntiesanntinawninisedii 63,319 il sideAnilunsfiniufenas 3.93
Sennsiaafiegenduahasiaaanadoulssnndnass asnudnmauunulaifimesesiaelugas 3-4 D atndls
ARLTEMaaA ﬁﬂ@mwLmzﬁ@m%uiﬁtﬁuim&imﬁmmmmm‘luﬁiq\i 3-4 Tt gzfeuiiapmuanunsnlunisutsiures S

- X | ) 2 = Y = X
ANHNNAY ATHN9D LLEQ@Q‘L&LLU\?H’]?@]@’]@Q’]HQﬂi%ﬂ'ﬂun’]ﬁ‘i"m'ﬂuiuﬁ]@’]miﬂLWNN’]H“H‘H

SLuLL\‘iﬂnmﬂﬂmﬁﬁmauﬁﬂ'ﬁ'@ﬂmﬁﬂ ‘-MﬂﬁQLm@uL%ﬂﬁ@Eiﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬂ@ﬂ (Mortgage) 'ﬂ@'@ﬂlﬁﬂ'ﬁLﬁmqmwimﬂﬁuﬁ@m
adIuTuNINe (REIC) mnﬁmmiwqmmﬂmaj fUIANTNATY LL@"’@G’]U‘L&H’]?L\‘]HM’N“] mmewmmmaummﬂmﬁﬁ‘wﬂ@mﬂ
Tuailut] 2561 @l 717,557 A1uu ﬂmmmumnﬂn@uummﬂw 633,991 A1ULW vaanaulszanaenas 13.18 Faflunns
geneinldARnsefuihilfigesRaseiu anfiunuldfinnsenasfnseriuun 2 Tlugaddl 2558 uaz 2559 (aenafaFaeas 0.38 lu
1 2558 uavpsnasafasas 1.42 Tuil 2559) ’LummzﬁﬁqLmauﬁ@ﬁ@fgmﬁmmﬂ'@ﬂﬁmﬁﬂ\mg’ o 2] 2561 @g}ﬁl 3,790,532 AU
U Fiaduann o Aullneunti 265,326 1uun viseifindutenas 7.53

yarAuTaagande Growth (%) yarAuTaagande Growth (%)

Uaaslus AIAS

(®1ULN) (@1ULN)
2556 534,844 15.06% 2,554,780 11.16%
2557 575,637 7.63% 2,844,646 11.35%
2558 577,846 0.38% 3,092,946 8.73%
2559 586,050 1.42% 3,320,469 7.36%
2560 633,991 8.18% 3,525,206 6.17%
2561 717,557 13.18% 3,790,632 7.53%

Tuwdresginiu andeyanisdimanisidlalasenislvsiluanngamny wazlsunmna 18915Hm 1o i Wes Buaingiom uew
wa A1rim wudlutl 2561 ﬁfqﬂmuﬁ@mmﬂm%ﬁu 125,040 giln Usuifisdudasas 9.23 antliauuth Thefiagandenlsziom
aransa Snndlafsduinsemuduifiaes vdeanfifinisdanelmianassieiien 3 Tiewniih Inelull 2561 a1ansyadl
SrunrmdaeiTlnanglwaleg 74,380 il weiuiintutenaz 16.90 antiieuuth luanizfinmeauueny srusilasansde
Twailudl 2561 Fuissansdfuanasandiewindniesiifasas 0.38 atdlafmuiefansanuantlssnm wuddudlszam
fhuinen Uiudafistuanntneunth Tnefmaumiaednanelvsinedu 11,071 gilm viseRmfunnsUsufisdufenas 8.36 a1
Hraunh Audndssnminuudadisusumiedlamnalmsineau 7,240 gilm U5 Wiaduberas 78.19 antineunth lusnisiiaudn
Usznmmadidnd S unumisadenalmaifianas Taelull 2561 Sauaumisadlaanglvaiiedu 31,717 giln Yiuanasfesas
10.56 Antinaunti

48 sngvuUs=91U 2561
USUN ada wSowiwosa $1ia (Usu)



Summary of Overall Real Estate Industry

According to data, the number of completed and registered housing in the Bangkok Metropolitan Area and surround-
ing provinces constructed by the entrepreneur (allocated) in 2018 was 102,586 units, an increase of 8.79 percent from the
previous year. The number of completed and registered single homes in 2018 was 14,897 units, an increase of 22.28 percent
(if categories are considered in detail, two-story single homes, which are the Company’s main product, will be registered at
11,485 units, an increase of 15.65 percent from the previous year). In the meantime, the number of completed and registered
townhouses and commercial buildings in 2018 was 19,853 units, an increase of 22.08 percent from the previous year (when
only townhouses are considered, registration numbers amounted to 17,479 units, an increase of 33.54 percent from the previ-
ous year, while the registered number of two-story townhouses is 13,420 units, an increase of 28.42 percent from the previous
year). At the same time, the number of completed and registered condominium buildings in 2018 was 65,808 units. This number

increased slightly from the previous year to 63,319 units or an increase of 3.93 percent.

In fact, the number of completed and registered housing constructed by the entrepreneur (allocated) is almost showed
no growth in the past 3-4 years. Lalin; however, has growth in sales and revenues each year in the past 3-4 year. The growth

indicates more competitiveness of the company, which can gain market share from other competitors.

In terms of residential loan demands, data on the number of newly released mortgage loans collected by the Real Es-
tate Information Center (REIC) from commercial banks, government banks and financial institutes showed the total number of
mortgages in 2018 to be 717,557 million baht, an increase from 633,991 million baht in the previous year by 13.18 percent,
which is a growth in two consecutive year, after nearly no growth during the previous two years (0.38 percent growth in 2015
and 1.42 percent growth in 2016). Meanwhile, outstanding mortgage loans at the end of 2017 were 3,525,206 million baht, an

increase from the previous year by 204,737 million baht, or 6.17 percent.

Year Value of New Home Loans (million Growth (%) Value of Outstanding Home Loans Growth (%)
baht) (million baht)

2013 534,844 15.06% 2,654,780 11.16%
2014 575,637 7.63% 2,844,646 11.35%
2015 577,846 0.38% 3,092,946 8.73%
2016 586,050 1.42% 3,320,469 7.36%
2017 633,991 8.18% 3,525,206 6.17%
2018 717,557 13.18% 3,790,532 7.53%

In terms of supply, a survey on newly opened projects in Bangkok and surrounding provinces by Agency for Real Estate
Efforts Co., Ltd. found 114,477 units of supply newly opened for sale in 2018, an increase from the previous year by 9.23 per-
cent. More condominium residences were opened for two consecutive year, after three consecutive years of reductions in new
openings. In 2018, the number of new condominium units opened for sale was at 74,380 units or an increase from the previous
year by 16.90 percent. Horizontal overview for newly opened projects in 2018 showed slightly reductions in sale units by 0.38
percent from the previous year. When considered separately, single homes were found to be lower than the previous your
with 11,071 newly opened units for sale, or increase from the previous year by 8.36 percent and 7,240 units of duplexes were
opened for sale, which is increase by 78.19 percent from the previous year. In the meantime, the number of new townhouses

opened for sale increased to 31,717 units in 2018, or an increase by 10.56 percent from the previous year.
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New Supplies in the Bangkok and Vicinities (Separated by types)

Launched in 2015 | Launched in 2016 | Launched in 2017 | Launched in 2018 Growth (%)

Detached House 12,564 12,146 10,217 11,071 8.36%
Semi-detached House 5,073 7,287 4,063 7,240 78.19%
Townhouse 25,000 29,932 35,462 31,717 -10.56%
Shop house 2,518 2,860 1,109 632 -43.01%
Total of Low rise 45,155 52,225 50,851 50,660 -0.38%
Condominium 62,833 58,350 63,626 74,380 16.90%
Vacant land 2 2 0 0 0.00%
Total 107,990 110,577 114,477 125,040 9.23%

Source : Agency for real estate (AREA)

In recently year, the ratios of projects opened by listed companies increased significantly, reflecting higher confidence from
consumers than unlisted companies. Furthermore, superior competitive ability of companies in the market enabled companies
in the market to increasingly take market shares from companies outside the market in the past several years. In present, the
number of new projects and units launched for sale by companies in the market accounted for ober 80 percent of all units

opened for sale.

Trends for the Real Estate Industry in 2019

Concerning real-estate industry trends in 2019, the Company expects this year to be another challenging year for en-
trepreneurs. Competition will increase in severity between professional entrepreneurs in the market. New entrepreneurs and
entrepreneurs outside the market will have difficulty accessing capital sources and have higher costs. The Company expects
the overall market to continue to grow at a slower rate in line with economic trends in 2019, which are expected to be slower
than the previous year. In addition, housing loan control measures under the LTV criteria of the Bank of Thailand will become
effective on 1 April 2017, thereby reducing some purchasing needs, particularly in the condominium market where customers
purchase and invest to speculate profits. Furthermore, condominium purchase demands from foreigners who absorbed market
supply in the past is showing signs of slowing down and abandoning down payments, particularly among Chinese customers

due to the slowing Chinese economy and reductions in investment in foreign real-estate due to government sector measures.

However, there are also positive factors in 2019 such as the election at the end of March. If the event is calm with a stable
government managing the country, domestic and foreign investors will be encouraged to have confidence, thereby resulting in
investments and triggering overall growth for the economy. Furthermore, interest in 2018 was clearly in an upward trend. The
Federal Open Market Committee (FOMC) raised interest rates for four times while Thailand’s Monetary Policy Committee (MPC)
raised the policy rate once in December from 1.50 percent to 1.75 percent. In 2019, however, the interest rate is expected to

be stable without rising and remain at levels supporting economic activities and people who want to buy homes.
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Risk Factors

In the business operation of the Company, the potential risks affecting to the operation of the Company in the future are
as followed;

1. Risks arising from economic slow-down

The overall Thai economy grew by 4.1 percent, continuing from growth in 2017 and 2016 at 4.0 percent and 3.4 percent,
respectively. The main factor supporting economic growth in 2018 was private sector spending, particularly good growth
in private sector consumption. In 2018, private sector consumption grew by 4.6 percent from 3.0 percent in 2017. In the
meantime, numbers from the goods and services export sector showed good growth in the first half of the year at 8.8 percent
before contracting in the second half of the year by 0.2 percent, causing numbers from export of goods and services growth to
drop to 4.2 percent. This was partly due to the impact of global economic slowdown, including problems from trade disputes
between the United States and the People’s Republic of China, causing economic impacts on Thailand’s trading partners.
Tourism sector growth dropped due to declines in the number of Chinese tourists from a boat capsizing incident in Phuket,
assaults on tourists at Don Mueang Airport and a slowdown in the Chinese economy. In addition, the real-estate development
business is closely connected with movements in the same direction as the economy. If the overall economy is in recession or
slows down, there will be effects on consumer confidence and purchasing power because decisions to purchase homes will
create long-term obligations. Therefore, if the economy or future economic directions are in slowdown, this factor will cause
consumers to delay home purchases to monitor the situation.

In 2019, the overall economy is expected to remain capable of growth at a slower rate. The economy is expected to grow
by 3.8 percent with support from private sector spending, including government sector spending and investment in infrastructure
project, thereby causing more tangible funds to enter the economy. In addition, if the election on 24 March 2019 is calm and
results in a stable government, the business sector will gain confidence, thereby triggering more investment. However, exports
are expected to continue to be affected by the slowdown in the global economy and effects from the trade war between the
United States and the People’s Republic of China.

Risks from economic slowdown in 2019 continue to be a factor requiring close monitoring and assessment of the situation.
If disturbances, or unforeseen incidents occur, or in cases where the global economy, particularly the economies of major
countries, do not grow as anticipated and post-election situations have conflicts and turmoil without government stability, there
may be effects on the Thai economy in general, thereby causing the economy to slow and be unable to grow as expected.
This will create direct and psychological effects possibly causing consumers to delay purchasing decisions. The Company
has always assessed economic risks closely with regard to the domestic and foreign economy by jointly considering risks in
meetings at the level of the Company’s directors and executive directors in order to assess economic conditions and future
trends normally for twice a month. The aforementioned jointly assessed risks are used in planning and adjusting the organization’s
strategy to be appropriately consistent with economic directions at each time.

2. Risks arising from Higher Competition in the Real-Estate Business

Concerning overall real-estate business conditions in 2018 when registration numbers are considered, a growth of
approximately ten percent may be found. However, this is because the base number in 2017 is low. When considered
retrospectively in the past 2 — 3 years, overall registration numbers in the real-estate business were found to have almost no
growth in line with economic conditions preventing full growth. Furthermore, although household debt to GDP is beginning to
adjust lower, household debt to GDP remains high, making consumer purchasing power weaker. In addition, land prices have
skyrocketed in the past year, particularly for land in monorail lines, causing consumer purchasing power to be unable to catch
up as overall demand for residences showed only slight growth. However, several entrepreneurs, especially entrepreneurs
listed with the Stock Exchange, have continued to set business goals and investments for new projects in the past 2 — 3
years at higher levels than overall market capacity. Moreover, over the past 1 — 2 years, several entrepreneurs have adjusted
strategies to create business growth by expanding markets to other segments. Some entrepreneurs who formerly developed
only upper-class residences expanded to lower markets while most entrepreneurs marketing middle-to-lower class residences
attempted to increase proportions of upper-class residences. In addition, some entrepreneurs who emphasized vertical project
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development began to increase the ratios of horizontal residence project developments to compensate for contractions in
the condominium market. This will cause overall competition in 2019 to show more severe competition trends, particularly in
locales with oversupply from many projects launched by entrepreneurs.

The company has been in the business for 30 years. Therefore, the company has expertise in the real-estate business.
Investments for the development of each project receive thorough consideration by the Executive Committee with feasibility
studies for each project, including in-depth market studies of supply and demand at each location. The company has research,
business development and product development sections in the company. Therefore, the company is able to reduce risks
caused be higher competition in the real-estate business.

3. Risks arising from inferest rate change

Financial conditions in 2018 were in considerable flux. Overall returns for U.S. and Thai government bonds rose, particularly
in the second and third quarters. In 2018, the Federal Open Market Committee decided to raise policy rates by four times,
thereby causing U.S. policy rates to be at 2.25 — 2.50 percent at the end of 2018. Meanwhile, the Monetary Policy Committee
(MPOQ), Bank of Thailand, increased policy rates once at the meeting in December, the first such increase in seven years.
Consequently, Thailand’s policy rate rose to 1.75 percent from 1.50 percent. With regard to the minimum retail rate (MRR) of
commercial banks, which will affect consumers’ ability to purchase residences, commercial banks maintain the same minimum
retail rate even though the MPO raise the policy rate by 0.25 percent. Commercial banks’ MRRs are at 7.12 — 7.37 percent.

If interest rates rise, this may have some effect on consumers’ ability to purchase residences in addition to potentially influencing
the Company’s financial costs. Even though FOMC raised policy rates for four times in 2018, the FOME is expected to carry out
a more lenient policy in 2019 with expectations of possibility for no interest hikes in 2019 or only one increase. In the meantime,
the MPO is expected to not raise Thailand’s policy rates in 2019. The Company has low liabilities. Thus, the Company’s interest
expenses are low when compared to the Company’s income. Furthermore, the Company has strict management of risks from
interest rate changes and liquidity. For example, the Company issues long-term loans shares with fixed interest rates and adjusts
loan share terms to be suitable to changing situations. Moreover, the Company issues bills of exchange to adjust short-term
liquidity and cut financial costs. The Company negotiates with financial institutes to make long-term loan agreements with fixed
interest rates, makes committed lines with commercial banks as a reserve balance and the Company consistently monitors
domestic and overseas financial situations by inputting issues for consideration at every Executive Committee meeting in order
to assess situations and manage appropriately in a timely manner.

4. Risks arising from more stringent loan offerings by commercial banks

Commercial banks have recently become stricter in their consideration of credit and loans concerning both loans for
entrepreneurs (pre-finance) and loans for consumers (post-finance). In terms of pre-financing, commercial banks began to
increase stringency in financial support for projects during the past year by setting various additional terms, particularly for
groups of people with no previous experience in the real estate business and groups of non-listed companies. Hence, those
companies are finding it more and more difficult to access sources of financial support which can be considered an advantage
for the industrial sector in helping to increase market supply. Business-wise, risks are incurred with such low access to monetary
sources. Due to the Company’s strong financial status, our debt-equity ratio is very low in comparison to the industry average.
Furthermore, the Company has a good history of long-term financial discipline without ever applying for debt restructuring or
non-performing loans with any financial institution, even in during the economic crisis in 1997. Hence, the Company is well-known
by various commercial banks. Apart from this, the Company has made succinct financial plans with preparation of sufficient
liquidity and in concurrence with the Company’s plans for business growth. Moreover, the Company has also prepared sufficient
long- and short-term lines of credit for business growth in line with the Company’s plans, including sufficient liquidity to handle
severe economic deceleration.
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In terms of credit for consumers (post finance) last couple year, commercial banks have also been stricter in their
considerations, partly due to the figures for household debts which escalated late last year. The current conditions in which the
personal credit industry is enjoying rapid growth have had impact on consumer spending behavior where consumers spend
money in advance via personal credit, e.g. credit cards and various personal loans, and also the Government's first car buyer
policy. This has had the effect of reducing the home buying power of consumers. At the same time, commercial banks have
stricter criteria in considering loans for people who want to buy homes. For home purchases, most customers need to rely on
loans from commercial banks for approximately 90 — 95 percent of the home price. Therefore, the Company’s realized income
inevitably depends upon the consideration of commercial banks in granting loans. If commercial banks become stricter, the
Company’s realized income may be reduced in conjunction with sales due to some customers who are refused loans by
commercial banks. Nevertheless, the Company has closely monitored consumer conditions and the policy of each commercial
bank in granting loans in order to revise policy as suitable for each period of time. In addition, the Company cooperated with
some commercial banks in order to propose special conditions for customers buying homes in the Company’s projects, e.g.
granting loans for 100 percent of the home price at a lower interest rate than the market and step payment programs, etc.

5. Risks arising from Housing Loan Governance Measures of the Bank of Thailand

At the end of 2018, the Bank of Thailand (BOT) issued criteria governing for housing loans and other loans related to
housing loans by setting controlling criteria to prevent financial institutes from allowing housing loans and related loans exceeding
the loan to value ratio (LTV ratio) specified by the Bank of Thailand. The aforementioned measures will become effective on 1
April 2019 and onward.

According to the new criteria, in cases where residences are valued below ten million baht and the residence is a first
horizontal home, the LVT ratio is set at 95 percent. However, the LTV ratio for condominium residences is 90 percent. In the
case of loans for a second home, the LTV ratio is 80 if the first home’s payments have been made for less than three years.
However, if the first home’s payments have been made for more than three years, the LTV ratio is set at 90 percent. In the case
of loans for a third home and up, the Bank of Thailand specified the LTV ratio at 70 percent.

Effects from the aforementioned LTV control measures will require people who want to purchase homes to have more
savings before purchasing homes. Nevertheless, the Company believes issuance of the aforementioned LTV control measures
will have a positive effect on the overall housing industry in the long-term. The Company’s risks of effects from the aforementioned
measures are rather limited because most of the Company’s products are in the horizontal group. Furthermore, the Company’s
customers are real demand customers who make purchases to live in and are first-home purchasers. Ordinarily, customers
have some savings already before making a decision to purchase a residence. Nevertheless, the Company will closely assess
effects on the overall industry after the aforementioned measure becomes effective and the Company will adjust business plans
to be consistent with the situation.

6. Risks arising from the rise of construction cost

In 2016, crude oil prices gradually rose back to the balance point. In the past, oil prices had peaked at over 110 dollars
per barrel in mid-2014 before continually dropping until the end of 2014 to only 30 dollars per barrel in early 2016, or a
reduction of more than 70 percent. Nevertheless, in 2016, especially during the first half of the year, oil prices continually rose
to approximately 50 dollars per barrel. Oil is a cost for nearly every type of product, including construction materials and a cost
for various products usually moves in the same direction as oil prices. Therefore, signs of higher prices for some construction
materials were obvious from previous reductions. In 2017, some construction materials may rise due to higher demand pull
from construction in large government public utility construction projects steering investments. Previously, after seeing signs
of higher prices for certain types of construction materials, the company made appointments with the company’s suppliers to
make agreements and set fixed prices for certain items before prices are higher. However, with unclear growth in the overall
global and national economy, stable oil prices have low potential for driving prices higher as in 2013 — 2014. Therefore, potential
risks from higher construction costs are limited in 2017. The company has compact management of construction material
cost risks by making independent purchases of main materials. And because the company has many projects on hand, the
company has high negotiating power with ability to make agreements with sellers on prices for large purchases. Furthermore,
the company closely monitors price movements of key construction materials including domestic and foreign market directions.
If the company considers price trends to be escalating, the company will make agreements on fixed prices in advance. The
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company will negotiate with the company’s suppliers for key items such as steel, floor panels and roofs, etc., to set appropriate
purchasing prices. Moreover, the company attempts to seek other quality replacement materials in addition to implementing
new construction technologies as deemed fitting.

7. Risks arising from lack of skilled labors in construction works

The unemployed rate in Thailand has been in the low level for consecutive years which cause the lack of labors in some
fields of work. In addition, by reason of the expanding in construction and real estate sector, the expanding investment in
large public utility projects, both roads and railway mass transportation system, of the Government, and also that of Thailand
becoming aging society. As a result, the lack of labor in the construction sector was increasingly severe in the past few years.
However, the Company has the policy of risk management in this aspect by applying new construction technologies to replace
some previous construction system, which can reduce labors. For example, the tunnel form construction system is applied to
the construction of town houses and the precast system is applied to the construction of single houses and condominiums.
Moreover, the Company assigns the section responsible for supervising and studying new construction technologies, both
domestic and international, in order to consider the appropriateness and application. Additionally, the Company plans to retain
the former contractors by continuously and regularly assigning construction works so that contractors are able to support their
own labors, building the good relationship with contractors of the Company; such as, holding banquets, awarding contractors
having the best performance; and distributing construction works based on skills and abilities of each contractor. The Company
will also establish project construction manager, project engineer, head of project construction supervisor, construction works
supervisor, and quality control officers to control and oversee construction works of contractors so that the quality of construction
works of each contractor will be assured.

8. Risks arising from the construction of pre-built homes

Following the economic crisis, most entrepreneurs apply the strategy of semi-pre-built homes to create the confidence of
consumers. Such strategy is necessary to spend the high cost which probably causes the risk of financial liquidity and the risk
arising from the changing behavior of consumers. However, the Company has the low level of such risk because the Company
has studied the behavior of consumers thoroughly and established the construction plan efficiently. The plan is to combine the
products, such as, pre-built home, semi pre-built home, and built-to-order home. The beginning of the construction depends
on the estimation of sales. In addition, since the Company has the low ratio of liability per capital, the strict policy of cash flow
management, and the large amount of excess equity in any financial institutes, so the Company has the extremely low risk of
financial liquidity shortage.

9. Risks arising from natural disasters

At the end of the year 2011, Thailand suffered from the most severe flood crisis in 50 years, which widely caused impacts
and damages totaling over 1.2 trillion Baht. The real estate sector was affected directly and indirectly from this situation,
resulting to the buying decision of consumers, especially the project located in the severe flood-affected area. In addition, some
consumers decided to change locations from severe flood-affected area to no flood-affected area. Some consumers changed
their minds to buy accommodation in form of condominium instead. However, this risk factor is limit in present situation.

Regarding to the Company, the risk management is provided to various aspects, such as, the project opening in many
areas, which is the original business operation principle of the Company. As a result, the impact of the flood is limited to some
projects only. Many projects of the Company are located in no flood-affected areas. It is considered to be the management
of risk sharing in terms of location which the Company is aware of this prior to the flood situation. Additionally, the Company
also shared the risk of products by expanding more vertical projects in 2012. Furthermore, the Company also expanded the
projects to the region market where 17 projects have been launched in the Eastern part and North-eastern part of Thailand.
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10. Risks arising from land procurement for project development

Over the years, the price of lands in some locations, especially the location nearby sky train and areas providing new
developed utilities, such as, extension line of BTS, new line of BTS, extension line of roads and expressways, etc., dramatically
increased since the economy and real estate business expanded by reasons of the increasing accommodation demand of
citizens and the expansion of regional market. This resulted to the higher price of lands in provincial areas which increased
rapidly in such period.

In addition, land procurement for project development is necessary to carefully study the use of such land, including
the financial and marketing feasibility, and also consider relevant laws, such as, City Planning Act, etc. However, the new
City Planning Act which was announced in 2013 has been modified the use of land in some locations. In acquiring land, it's
necessary to study of land use act. Some types of accommodation may be unable to construct in some locations. Also has
to study the provisions of Floor Area Ratio — FAR and Open Space Ratio — OSR, including the provisions of the environment
permit. All of these are risks that may occur from land acquisition. Nevertheless, the Company strictly manages the risk from
land purchase by studying marketing feasibility, deeply analyzing returns obtained from the investment of each land, and
studying limitations of laws and other regulations of each land before buying. The decision of land purchase will be considered
carefully and approved by the Executive Committee.

11. Risks arising from Liquidity Risks

Based on the Company’s financial ratios at the end of 2018, the Company’s current ratio is 4.78 times and the Company’s
quick ratio is at 0.33 times. The aforementioned ratios may be considered low in line with the nature of the real-estate development
business, which has a high proportion of inventory out of all assets. According to consideration of the Company’s interest
bearing debt at the end of 2018, the Company’s liabilities from short-term loans were at 19.42 million baht and the Company’s
long-term loans due for payment in all of 2019 are at 800 million baht while the Company’s cash and cash equivalents at the
end of 2018 were at 536.60 million baht.

At the end of 2018, the Company’s debt/equity ratio was 0.74 times, a decline from 2017 and 2016 at 0.79 times and
0.85 times, respectively. In the meantime, net interest bearing debt/equity ratio was at only 0.45 times when compared to 0.56
times and 0.63 times in 2017 and 2016, respectively. This ratio is low when compared to the overall industry average. The
Company adheres to financial discipline and has done so for over 30 years from the Company’s founding. The Company never
creates overwhelming and uncontrollable debts. The Company is one of only a few real-estate development companies in
Thailand to have not been required to enter a debt restructuring process with any financial institute during the economic crisis
of 1997. Thus, the Company receives good reliability and support from commercial banks. At the end of 2018, the Company
has approximately two billion baht in unused committed lines with commercial banks, which is sufficient to repay all loans due
for payment in 1 — 2 years.
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Shareholding Structure and Management

Corporate securities

1. Ordinary Shares

As of December 31, 2018, the Company had registered capital equivalent to 925,000,000 Baht, of which 924,999,441
Baht was paid-up. This comprises 924,999,441 ordinary shares carrying a par value of 1 Baht per share.

According to Thai NVDR Co., Ltd.’s data, 29,838,766 of the Company’s ordinary shares were held by investors
investing through non-voting depository receipts (NVDRs) as of August 30, 2018, representing 3.23% of all paid-up shares.
As such shares are not entitled to a voting right (except for a decision to delist the stock), the holders of non-NVDR shares
have 3.33% more of the voting right. As a result, holders of only 24.19% of the paid-up ordinary shares will have a voting
right equal to 25% of all voting shares. The investors can check the most updated names of company’s stock holders
investing through Thai NVDR Co.,Ltd. at The Stock Exchange of Thailand’s website (www.set.or.th)

2. Debentures

As of December 31, 2018, the company had 10 tranches of outstanding debentures which have total value at 3,240

Million Baht as below.
2.1) Unsecured debentures No.1/2016  Details of debentures as below.

Debentures’ name . Unsubordinated and Unsecured Debentures of Lalin Property Public Company
Limited No. 1/2016 Due B.E. 2019

Types of Debenture : Name registered certificate, Unsubordinated, Unsecured, and without debenture
holder’s representative Debentures

Amount : 300,000 Units

Subscription Price ;1,000 Baht

Value : 300 Million Baht

Offering : Private Placement to not more than 10 investors (PP10)
Issue Date : June9, 2016

Maturity Date : June 11, 2019

Interest Rate :  Fixed coupon rate of 3.25%

Interest Payment : Semi-Annually

Principal Payment . Bullet principal payment at maturity on June 11, 2019
Early Redemption . None

Underwriter : United Overseas Bank Public Company Limited
Registrar . Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Secondary Market . Thai BMA
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Debentures’ name

Types of Debenture

Amount
Subscription Price
Value

Offering

Issue Date
Maturity Date
Interest Rate
Interest Payment
Principal Payment
Early Redemption
Underwriter
Registrar

Secondary Market

Debentures’ name

Types of Debenture

Amount
Subscription Price
Value

Offering

Issue Date
Maturity Date
Interest Rate
Interest Payment
Principal Payment
Early Redemption

Underwriter

Registrar

Secondary Market

2.2) Unsecured debentures No.2/2016  Details of debentures as below.

Unsubordinated and Unsecured Debentures of Lalin Property Public Company
Limited No. 2/2016 Due B.E. 2019

Name registered certificate, Unsubordinated, Unsecured, and without debenture
holder’s representative Debentures

200,000 Units

1,000 Baht

200 Million Baht

Private Placement to not more than 10 investors (PP10)
July 5, 2016

July 8, 2019

Fixed coupon rate of 3.25%

Semi-Annually

Bullet principal payment at maturity on July 8, 2019
None

Thanachart Bank Public Company Limited
Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Thai BMA

2.3) Unsecured debentures No.3/2016  Details of debentures as below.

Unsubordinated and Unsecured Debentures of Lalin Property Public Company
Limited No. 3/2016 Due B.E. 2019

Name registered certificate, Unsubordinated, Unsecured, and without debenture
holder’s representative Debentures

300,000 Units

1,000 Baht

300 Million Baht

Private Placement to not more than 10 investors (PP10)
July 28, 2016

July 30, 2019

Fixed coupon rate of 3.25%

Semi-Annually

Bullet principal payment at maturity on July 30, 2019
None

United Overseas Bank Public Company Limited
Thanachart Bank Public Company Limited
Asia Plus Group Holdings Public Company Limited

Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited
Thai BMA
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Debentures’ name

Types of Debenture

Amount
Subscription Price
Value

Offering

Issue Date
Maturity Date
Interest Rate
Interest Payment
Principal Payment
Early Redemption

Underwriter

Registrar

Secondary Market

Debentures’ name

Types of Debenture

Amount
Subscription Price
Value

Offering

Issue Date
Maturity Date
Interest Rate
Interest Payment
Principal Payment
Early Redemption
Underwriter
Registrar

Secondary Market

2.4) Unsecured debentures No.1/2017  Details of debentures as below.

Unsubordinated and Unsecured Debentures of Lalin Property Public Company

Limited No. 1/2017 Due B.E. 2020

Name registered certificate, Unsubordinated, Unsecured, and without debenture

holder’s representative Debentures

500,000 Units

1,000 Baht

500 Million Baht

Private Placement to Institute Investor and High net worth (II/[HNW)
February 24, 2017

February 24, 2020

Fixed coupon rate of 3.40%

Quarterly

Bullet principal payment at maturity on February 24, 2020
None

CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited

United Overseas Bank Public Company Limited

Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Thai BMA

2.5) Unsecured debentures No.2/2017  Details of debentures as below.

Unsubordinated and Unsecured Debentures of Lalin Property Public Company
Limited No. 2/2017 Due B.E. 2020

Name registered certificate, Unsubordinated, Unsecured, and without debenture
holder’s representative Debentures

70,000 Units

1,000 Baht

70 Million Baht

Private Placement to not more than 10 investors (PP10)
July 7, 2017

July 7, 2020

Fixed coupon rate of 3.30%

Semi-Annually

Bullet principal payment at maturity on July 7, 2020
None

United Overseas Bank Public Company Limited
Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Thai BMA
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Debentures’ name

Types of Debenture

Amount
Subscription Price
Value

Offering

Issue Date
Maturity Date
Interest Rate
Interest Payment
Principal Payment
Early Redemption

Underwriter

Registrar

Secondary Market

Debentures’ name

Types of Debenture

Amount
Subscription Price
Value

Offering

Issue Date
Maturity Date
Interest Rate
Interest Payment
Principal Payment
Early Redemption
Underwriter
Registrar

Secondary Market

2.6) Unsecured debentures No.3/2017  Details of debentures as below.

Unsubordinated and Unsecured Debentures of Lalin Property Public Company
Limited No. 3/2017 Due B.E. 2020

Name registered certificate, Unsubordinated, Unsecured, and without debenture
holder’s representative Debentures

370,000 Units

1,000 Baht

370 Million Baht

Private Placement to Institute Investor and High net worth (II/HNW)
July 27, 2017

July 27, 2020

Fixed coupon rate of 3.30%

Quarterly

Bullet principal payment at maturity on July 27, 2020
None

Thanachart Bank Public Company Limited

Asia Plus Group Holdings Public Company Limited
Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Thai BMA

2.7) Unsecured debentures No.1/2018  Details of debentures as below.

Unsubordinated and Unsecured Debentures of Lalin Property Public Company
Limited No. 1/2018 Due B.E. 2021

Name registered certificate, Unsubordinated, Unsecured, and without debenture
holder’s representative Debentures

500,000 Units

1,000 Baht

500 Million Baht

Private Placement to Institute Investor and High net worth (II/HNW)
March 7, 2018

March 7, 2021

Fixed coupon rate of 2.95%

Quarterly

Bullet principal payment at maturity on March 7, 2021
None

Thanachart Bank Public Company Limited

Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Thai BMA
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Debentures’ name

Types of Debenture

Amount
Subscription Price
Value

Offering

Issue Date
Maturity Date
Interest Rate
Interest Payment
Principal Payment
Early Redemption
Underwriter
Registrar

Secondary Market

Debentures’ name

Types of Debenture

Amount
Subscription Price
Value

Offering

Issue Date
Maturity Date
Interest Rate
Interest Payment
Principal Payment
Early Redemption
Underwriter
Registrar

Secondary Market

2.8) Unsecured debentures No.2/2018  Details of debentures as below.

Unsubordinated and Unsecured Debentures of Lalin Property Public Company
Limited No. 2/2018 Due B.E. 2021

Name registered certificate, Unsubordinated, Unsecured, and without debenture
holder’s representative Debentures

100,000 Units

1,000 Baht

100 Million Baht

Private Placement to not more than 10 investors (PP10)
April 17,2018

March 25, 2021

Fixed coupon rate of 2.95%

Quarterly

Bullet principal payment at maturity on March 25, 2021
None

Thanachart Bank Public Company Limited

Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Thai BMA

2.9) Unsecured debentures No.3/2018  Details of debentures as below.

Unsubordinated and Unsecured Debentures of Lalin Property Public Company
Limited No. 3/2018 Due B.E. 2021

Name registered certificate, Unsubordinated, Unsecured, and without debenture
holder’s representative Debentures

400,000 Units

1,000 Baht

400 Million Baht

Private Placement to Institute Investor (II)
August 10, 2018

August 2, 2021

Fixed coupon rate of 3.22%

Quarterly

Bullet principal payment at maturity on August 2, 2021
None

Thanachart Bank Public Company Limited
Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited
Thai BMA
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2.10) Unsecured debentures No.4/2018  Details of debentures as below.

Debentures’ name

Types of Debenture

Amount
Subscription Price
Value

Offering

Issue Date
Maturity Date
Interest Rate
Interest Payment
Principal Payment
Early Redemption
Underwriter
Registrar

Secondary Market

Unsubordinated and Unsecured Debentures of Lalin Property Public Company

Limited No. 4/2018 Due B.E. 2023

Name registered certificate, Unsubordinated, Unsecured, and without debenture

holder’s representative Debentures
500,000 Units

1,000 Baht

500 Million Baht

Private Placement to Institute Investor and High net worth (II/[HNW)

November 16, 2018
November 16, 2023
Fixed coupon rate of 4.50%

Quarterly

Bullet principal payment at maturity on November 16, 2023

None

Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited
Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited
Thai BMA

The Outstanding of Bill of Exchange as of December 31, 2018 is 0.00 Baht

Top 10 major Shareholders as of August 30, 2018

As of August 30, 2018, the top 10 Shareholders as recorded in the Shareholder Registrar are presented as follows.

[\[o} ‘

Name of Shareholder ‘ Number of Shares ‘

%
1 Mr.Taveesak Watcharakkawong 261,806,113 28.30
2 Mr.Chaiyan Chakarakul 233,775,810 25.27
3 Mr.Churat Chakarakul 58,863,636 6.36
4 Ms.Pornchanok Watcharakkawong 37,319,657 4.03
5 Miss.Usana Chakarakul 30,833,333 3.33
6 Thai NVDR Co.,Ltd. 29,838,766 3.23
7 Mr.Tanakrit Saimuckka 28,557,290 3.09
8 Mr. Kenneth Rudy Kamon 25,628,778 2.77
9 LGT BANK (SINGAPORE) LTD 25,148,257 2.72
10 Mr.Supot Lertlittipun 21,883,481 2.37
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Company has group of shareholder which might vote in the same direction as follow.

AMUIUNY

Group of Mr.Taveesak Watcharakkawong

1 Mr.Taveesak Watcharakkawong 261,806,113 28.30
2 Ms.Pornchanok Watcharakkawong 37,319,657 4.03
3 Mrs.Paetai Watcharakkawong 5,606,060 0.61

Group of Mr.Chaiyan Chakarakul

1 Mr.Chaiyan Chakarakul 233,775,810 25.27
2 Mr.Churat Chakarakul 58,863,636 6.36
3 Miss.Usana Chakarakul 30,833,333 3.33
4 Mrs.Kannika Chakarakul 5,606,060 0.61

Dividend payment policy

The Company has a policy to provide dividends in the rate of not less than 30 percent of net profit after taxes,
barring any exceptional circumstances and so long as such payment does not significantly affect the normal operations
of the Company. The decision to offer dividends takes into account various factors, such as the Company’s operating
performance and financial status; liquidity; business expansion; and other factors relating to corporate administration.

The dividend pay-out must be approved by Shareholders as appropriate, as well as the Board of Directors.

In 2018, the company proposed to the Annual General Shareholder's Meeting to consider and approve the allocation
of profits by paying cash dividend at the rate of 0.34 baht per share which is approximately 314,499,810 baht (or approx.
40.47% of net profit), details as follows.

Historical Dividend Payments

Net Profit / Share (Baht) 0.36 0.33 0.51 0.52 0.43 0.61 0.74 0.84
Dividend Paid / Share
Cash Dividend / Share (Baht) 0.18 0.18 0.245 0.27 0.225 0.1385 0.30 0.34
Stock Dividend / Share (Baht) - - - - - 0.1212 - -
Paid ratio (Existing : New share) - - - - -| 8.25:1 - -
Dividend Paid / Share (Baht) 0.18 0.18 0.245 0.27 0.225 0.2597 0.30 0.34
Dividend Paid / Net Profit (%) 50.60% | 55.16% | 48.20% | 51.44% | 52.26% | 42.82% | 40.76% | 40.47%
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(Board of Director)
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(Executive Board)
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(Managing Director)
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(Managing Director’s
Ofce)
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(Deputy Managing Director)

(Deputy Managing Director)
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(Audit Committees)
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(Internal Audit Department)
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Management Structure

1) The Board of Directors

In 20

18, the Board of Directors convened a total of 5 meetings and as of December 31, 2018, the Board had 7

members. Of this number, 3 were Independent Directors, with details as follows.

Name of Director Position

1. Mr. Taveesak Watcharakkawong Chairman

2. Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul Director & Executive Chairman

3. Mr. Suvarn Thansathit Director, Independent Director & Chairman of the Audit Committee
4. Mr. Niputh Jitprasonk Director, Independent Director & Member of the Audit Committee
5. Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul Director, Independent Director & Member of the Audit Committee
6. Mr. Nat Sangarsongkogk Director & Executive Director

7. Mr. Churat Chakarakul Director & Executive Director

Mr. Seri Sintuas serves as Company Secretary.

Name of directors authorized to enter into binding obligations

(1)

(2)

Two of these three directors, namely, Mr. Taveesak Wacharakawong, Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul and Mr. Nat

Sang

arsongkogk, must sign together with company seal affixed. There are no limitations to director authority.

One of these three directors, namely, Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul or Mr. Nat Sangarsongkogk or Mr.Churat Chakarakul,

signs with the company’s seal affixed on the following matters:

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

2.6

Requests for temporary or permanent use of electrical power, extension of electrical power use, electrical
power use right transfer/receipt, requests to expand distribution area within/outside the land housing project,
requests for power guarantee refunds, transfers and receipt of power use security deposits and power use
termination.

Requests for temporary or permanent use of water, extension of water use, water use right transfer/receipt,
requests for plumbing system design and appraisal, requests for expansion of water distribution area within/
outside the land housing project, requests for water use security deposit refunds, transfer and receipt of water
use security deposit, water use termination, requests for permanent water use transfer.

Filing of complaints about telephones, telephone number right rental, filing of general complaints to the
Thailand Post Company to take any action and requests for house numbers.

Requests for license renewal/license amendment/changes in license type with any public agency or organization
such as permits for construction, permits for building demolition, all types of building modifications, land fill,
requests to install signs, link roads, cut foot paths, drain wastewater, verify and issue certificates, building
construction and the placement of security deposits in the aforementioned matters.

Requests for permission to do business with the Land Department or public agencies related to land and
housing, amendments of land housing diagrams and land housing project methods, all types of land surveys,
e.g., sub-divisions/merging, boundary checks, etc., boundary indicators and boundary certification, reductions
or cancelations of security deposits for utilities and/or utility maintenance, documents concerning the setting
of village housing juristic persons, condominium juristic person registrations, condominium registrations,
signatures to participate in village housing juristic person meetings or condominium juristic person meetings,
signatures in documents for the sale, mortgage or termination of mortgage and records of late right transfer
of the contract to purchase/sell residential land/land with structures/condominium/ building structure.

The filing of complaints to interrogate officers, retract complaints, appoint attorneys, authorize the power of
attorney to file lawsuits, drafting letters to inquire about/cancel contracts, letter to explain to public agencies,

or individuals, or juristic persons.
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2.7 Signing contracts to purchase/sell condominiums, condominium unit purchase reservation contracts, contracts
to purchase/sell land (in land housing projects), contracts to purchase/sell land with structures (in housing
projects), land rental contracts, building rental contracts, condominium unit rental contracts, furniture rental
contracts, contracts for the purchase/sale of kitchen furniture, equipment and other related premiums and
furniture installation, contracts for signing frame rentals, contracts for advertisement services, contracts for
construction employment, contracts for design employment, letters of confirmation for service/merchandise
receipts, purchase orders, documents for conducting and presenting environmental impact assessment
reports, the filing of local taxes/sign taxes/household taxes/ security guards, maid/ messenger employment
contracts, photocopier rental contracts, property (clubhouse) rental contracts, memoranda of understanding
(repair/remodeling utility systems) made available for housing village juristic persons.

2.8 Purchase/sales/removal/renewal of financial notes for purchasing material in normal business; letters to request
lines of credit, forms for financial transaction requests, request to use services/change internet banking service
information, requests to issue letters of guarantee/extend letters of guarantee, requests for confirmation of
balance for the auditor's annual audit.

2.9 Signing to receive privileges such as land deeds and/or any documents from banks, financial institutions,
individual or juristic persons.

2.10 Signing letter to inquire and/or verify any information, to make any requests or coordinate with public agencies,
government enterprises, private companies, associations, individuals or juristic persons on business matters
related to the company’s normal business operations.

Scope of duties and authorities of the Board of Directors

1.

Manage the Company in accordance with laws, the objectives, Articles of Association and resolutions of Shareholders’

Meetings

2. Formulate policies and determine the direction for operations, financial management and business risk management;
oversee management operations in line with the predetermined policies with efficiency and effectiveness

3. Consistent responsibility to Shareholders; protect the interests of Shareholders; disclose information with accuracy,
completeness, to standard and with transparency

4. Authority to appoint any number of Directors as Executive Directors for performing one or more tasks, except those
prescribed by law as requiring the mandate of Shareholder’'s Meeting resolutions.

5. Transactions in which Directors or other individuals may have a potential conflict of interest or vested interest, or
any other form of conflict of interest with the Company obligate the said Director to refrain from exercising or casting
votes concerning the matter in question
Board of Directors’ Meetings are required to be held at least every 3 months
Regular Shareholders’ Meetings are to be organised within 4 months of the end of the Company’s accounting year.
Directors may not engage in any business or have shareholdings in other juristic persons of a similar nature with
the Company’s business, or that are competitors to the Company, except as informed to Shareholders prior to
appointment as a Director

Management

As of December 31, 2018, the Company’s Management Board comprised 7 individuals as follows.

Name of Director Position

1. Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul Managing Director

2. Mr. Nat Sangarsongkogk Deputy Managing Director

3. Mr. Churat Chakarakul Deputy Managing Director

4. Mr. Wanchai Aranvutikul Assistant Managing Director

5. Mr. Montree Montreemanee Assistant Managing Director

6. Mr. Seri Sintuas Finance Director and Company Secretary
7. Mrs. Kanittha Tumviseth Account Manager
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3)

Scope of authorities and responsibilities of the Managing Director

The Managing Director is responsible for performing any ordinary operating activities as assigned by the Board of

Directors or the Executive Committee specified under the rules and regulations of the company. The ordinary operating

activities of the company are defined as follows:

To approve the purchase of the construction material and any relevant services for the benefits of the company.

This shall not include the purchase of the land.

To approve the operating expenses, selling and administrative expenses and investments to be in accordance
with the budget approved by the Board of Director or the Executive Committee. This shall not include any loans

or guarantee.

Such Managing Director shall not perform any operations that may lead him or any person to have a conflict of

interest with the company or the subsidiaries.

Company Secretary

The appointment of the Company Secretary relies on the discretion of the Company’s board of directors because

the board of directors is responsible for the appointment of a Company Secretary to handle meetings of the Company’s

board of directors, shareholders’ meetings and various activities of the Company’s board of directors in order to help

the board of directors and the Company practice in compliance with related laws and regulations. At Board of Directors

Meeting 3/2556 on 13 August 2013 Mr. Seri Sintuas was appointed to the position of Company Secretary to replace Mr.

Nat Sangarsongkogk. The appointment became effective as of 14 August 2013 onward until the present.

Company Secretary Scope of Authority and Duties

1.

Manages shareholders’ meetings and board of directors’ meetings in compliance with the law as well as the

Company’s rules and regulations as well as the code of best practice.

Reports resolutions and policy of the Company’s board of directors and shareholders to the executives involved

and monitors practice in compliance with resolutions and policies.

Offers preliminary advice to the Company’s board of directors on issues involving the law and the Company’s
rules and regulations as required by the board of directors and monitors practice for accurate and regular

compliance, including reports on changes in legal specifications relevant to the directors.

Records minutes to the shareholders’ meetings and meetings of the Company’s board of directors, including
follow-up on practice in compliance with resolutions passed by the meetings of shareholders and the Company’s

board of directors.

Compiles and stores reports on stakeholders reported by the directors and executives in addition to other
important certificates or documents, e.g. company registration, letters scheduling meetings of the Company’s
board of directors, minutes to the meetings of the Company’s board of directors, annual reports and letters

scheduling shareholders’ meetings with the minutes to shareholders’ meetings.

Handles disclosure of information and informative reports under obligation to report to the agencies regulating

the Company in compliance with the official rules, regulations and specifications of those agencies.

Contacts and communicates with general shareholders to inform them of various rights or privileges granted

to shareholders and to also keep them informed about Company news.
Handles the activities of the Company’s board of directors.

Performs other tasks as stipulated by the law or as assigned by the Company’s board of directors or as notified

by the Capital Market Supervisory Board.
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4) Remuneration for Directors and Management
1. Monetary remuneration

(a) The remuneration of the Company’s Directors in 2018

msnsansea HARBLUWNY

1 '
AT AT biel A1 SANNA

nITUMT | NssuMs | Usetn | AU | poqiunu
AU USHN | MSIadaU| AmME | NSTNMS il
nNgsNMS | MTAAFAAU (ﬁ'f]uu’]‘w)

UTHN s1eil

(@1ULN)| (RA1ULN)

1. Mr.Taveesak Chairman 5/5 - 0.10 - 0.10
Watcharakkawong

2. Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul Director & Executive Chairman 5/5 - 0.10 - 0.10

3. Mr. Suvarn Thansathit Director, Independent Director & 5/5 4/4 0.10 0.60 0.70

Chairman of the Audit Committee

4. Mr. Niputh Jitprasonk Director, Independent Director & 5/5 4/4 0.10 0.45 0.55
Member of the Audit Committee

5. Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul Director, Independent Director & 5/5 4/4 0.10 0.45 0.55
Member of the Audit Committee

6. Mr. Nat Sangarsongkogk Director & Executive Director 5/5 - 0.10 - 0.10
7. Mr. Churat Chakarakul Director & Executive Director 5/5 - 0.10 - 0.10
Total 0.70 1.50 2.20

Details of the director’s remuneration for the year 2018 (Resolutions of the 2018 Annual General Shareholder’s
Meeting held on April 25, 2018) as follows :

1. Directors’ meeting allowance Baht 20,000 / Meeting
(No annual remuneration for directors)
2. Annual remuneration for Chairman of audit committee Baht 600,000 / year

3. Annual remuneration for Audit committee Baht 450,000 / person / year

(b) Remuneration for Executive Directors and management as of the end of 2018 was provided in the form

of salary, transportation allowance and bonuses, totaling 37.52 million Baht.
2. Other remuneration

- none
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5) Personnel

The Company accords a high importance to its personnel and offers various benefits for employees, such as :

1. Housing loans, provided by the Government Housing Bank
2. Provident funds
3. Social security

4. Financial assistance for various events such as entering the monkhood, marriage, maternity leave, injury,

housing, natural disasters, or death of an employee or their immediate relatives and spouse.

Moreover, the Company values the importance of safety in the workplace. Consequently, the company has organized
annually fire drills and activities related to safety. Also, the company has promoted 5S activity in organization, and arranged

to check the elevator in company’s building monthly.

As of December 31, 2018, the Company had a total of 587 employees (not including Directors and management),

categorized according to the major operations as follows.

Full-time Part-time Total

Project Sites 130 - 130
Construction 227 72 299
Head Office 158 = 158

Total 515 72 587

In 2018, employees received remuneration in the form of salaries and bonuses totaling 238.23 million Baht.

Human Resources Development Policy

In today’s economic environment and intense competition, Lalin Property PCL. is determined to create quality products
under the slogan “Home Planted on the Roots of Goodwill.” Therefore, the company gives importance to management

and manufacturing resource preparations, which includes preparing people with sustainable competitive potential.

Human resources development is considered one of the policies to which the company gives top priority. The company
has a systematic and continuous human resources development policy focused on potential development for people to
gain knowledge and skills consistent with their work responsibilities. A good attitude toward work and the organization is
fostered in conjunction with promoting values that form the foundation for the corporate culture. The company is determined
to develop human resources in all aspects. When employees start work, they are required to pass a new employee

orientation course with emphasis on service-minded people and direct understanding of work roles for regular employees.

The company makes annual training plans by establishing courses that cover employee development on all levels,
e.g., knowledge management, strategic planning, etc. for management and operation employees, e.g., value engineering,
service excellence, etc., including basic courses to prepare employees for future effective work in various positions.
Moreover, the company has specifically arranged individual development programs for star employees in order to further

their knowledge and skills and allow them to perform work as company managers in the future.
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Furthermore, the company organizes activities promoting attachments among employees and the organization
(Engagement) by fostering a good work atmosphere with safety and happiness. Closeness is established between
managers and employees through various activities, which are considered a means of building employee spirit and
morale, allow them to recognize their importance and value, and to foster work ethics and moral conscientiousness for

responsibility to work with care and attention to society.

Finally, the company gives importance to work-life balance. The company holds the view that good work-life quality

is a factor that will sustainably attract and retain skilled and knowledgeable employees in the organization.

Lalin Property PCL. believes that the company’s human resources development policy is an important foundation

that requires constant structured implementation in order to achieve sustainable growth for the organization.
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Corporate Governance

1. Corporate Governance Policy

Lalin Property public company limited recognizes the essence of the good corporate governance as an important factor
to lead the company to have the efficient system and a foundation for the sustainable growth of the company. The company
abides by the principles of Good Corporate Governance for listed companies of the SET, and has implemented the good

corporate governance to be a practice guideline as follows:

1. Rights of Shareholders

The company always recognizes and respects the rights of the shareholders. These rights include the rights to
purchase/ sell or transfer the shares, profit sharing, sufficiently access to company’s information, attend the meeting to
vote at the shareholder’'s meeting.

The annual general meeting of shareholders shall be held annually within 4 months after the end of accounting period.
The notice of this meeting and the meeting agendas including the meeting document shall be sent to the shareholders
at least 21 days before the shareholders’ meeting and shall be advertised on the daily newspaper at least 3 consecutive
days. Moreover, the company shall have the notice of the meeting and the meeting document posted on the website of
the company (www.lalinproperty.com) not less than 30 days before the meeting. In this case all shareholders shall have
enough time to study and look through the entire meeting document and be well preparing for the meeting. The Company
encourages shareholders to attend in the shareholders’ meetings to fully exercise their rights in delivering opinions and
suggestions in participating in decision making on crucial issues, and in inspecting the operations of the Board of Directors
and Management.

The notice of meeting shall include information such as date, time and venue of the meeting, including location map
and all relevant supporting documents that shall be used for making decision at the meeting. Moreover, in the notice of
meeting, the company should also inform all shareholders the meeting rules, including the Articles of Association on the
Shareholder Meeting, meeting regulations and practice, procedures and documents to be presented by shareholders
before attending the meeting for both cases whereby the shareholders are attending the meeting in person and by proxy.
The proxy forms of type A, B and C are attached at the end of this notice letter as for the convenience of the shareholder
to appoint their proxy. Moreover, the postage is provided by the company on the meeting date for the convenience of the
proxy. For the shareholders who cannot attend the meeting, such shareholders can appoint any independent director to
vote on their behalf.

Furthermore, for the convenience of the shareholder meeting, the company has set the appropriate date, time and
venue of the meeting by not having the meeting on the bank holiday. The company also set the meeting to be held during
8.00 a.m.- 4.00 p.m. and the venue to be located at the area whereby it is easy to access for all shareholders. For the past
meetings, the company has always chosen the venue which is nearby the BTS, MRT station as for the convenience of
the shareholders to commute. At the annual general meeting of shareholders, the company shall open for registration at
least 2 hours before the commencement of the meeting in order to provide sufficient time for all shareholders to register
and to hold welcome reception for shareholders attending the meeting.

The company allows shareholders who join the meeting after the meeting has already commenced to vote on agenda
items that are in the process of being considered and do not yet have a resolution.

In the agenda of directors’ election, the company provides opportunities for shareholders to vote on individual
directors. The invitation letter will have accompanying documents with details of the directors nominated for election
including their education and working experience backgrounds, shareholding in the company, and the record of their
meeting attendance in the passing year. Shareholders; therefore, have sufficient information to support their consideration
in voting.

At each shareholder meeting, the company shall give all shareholders equal opportunity to present their opinions
and suggestion, including raise questions at the end of each agenda. Moreover, the company shall provide sufficient time
for further discussion whereby the chairman of the meeting, directors and the management shall equally pay attention
to every question and give the clear answers. A clear and complete minute shall be recorded with total votes of each
agenda. Company has invited auditors from C.W.W.P Company Limited to observe the meeting and check transparency
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of voting summary every time. The company issued and submitted the minutes of the meeting to Stock Exchange of
Thailand and Ministry of Commerce within 14 days as specified by law, and posted on company’s website for interested
shareholders to read and examine the information.

At the 2018 annual general meeting of shareholders, All 7 directors are attending the meeting. Chairman, Chairman
of the Audit Committee, Managing Director, C.F.O. and high level management from each important department whereby
these people are required to attend the meeting in order to answer the inquiries of the shareholders.

2. Equal Treatment to Shareholders
The company has treated all shareholders equally and fairly no matter the shareholder is the executive director or
non-executive director or has the alien nationality. The Company prepares the shareholders’ meeting documents in both
Thai and English.
The company offers the opportunity for shareholders who cannot attend the meeting in person by letting them appoint
other persons to attend the meeting and vote on their behalf. When sending out the notice of meeting, the company
shall have the proxy form attached with the letter every time. Such shareholders can determine their voting direction and
appoint at least 1 person to be their proxy. Moreover, the company has provided the postage at the registration area in
front of the meeting room for the convenience of the proxy in case they have not affix the postage.
For this annual general meeting of shareholders, after the details of each agenda have been explained then the
shareholders will be given equal opportunity to raise the questions and present their opinions to the meeting. The voting
ballots shall be distributed to shareholders attending the meeting for voting especially for the disapproved votes or
abstained votes. Moreover, the company has separated each agenda from one another so that the shareholders can
vote each agenda independently, for example, agenda on the election of directors. For this agenda, the shareholders
can vote for directors individually and then the voting ballots shall be collected from all shareholders.
The company also sets the policy that Directors, Executive, Staffs, and Employees shall not use the material internal
information of the company that has not been disclosed to the public for their own or other benefits, including buying/
selling securities of the company. The company has a management procedure for the case whereby the management
uses the internal information of the company for their own or other benefits. The details of procedures are as follows:
* Inform the directors and the management their obligation to report on their holding securities including those
securities held by their partners and minors and report on the changes in securities investment specified under
Section 39 and the Determination of Punishment under Section 275 of the Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535.

+  Circulate the memo to Directors, Executive, Staffs, and Employees informing that Directors, Executive, Staffs, and
Employees who have received the material internal information that may effect on the prices of the securities,
shall avoid or temporarily stop the purchase/ sale of the company'’s securities for 1 month. Moreover, they shall
not disclose material information to other persons before the financial statement or such internal information has
been disclosed to the public. In order to monitor and examine the abovementioned operation, the company has
set the policy that the management shall report the holding securities and changes in securities as specified
under Section 59 to the Board of Directors.

+ The company specifies that each director has duty to report transaction of buy and sell of company’s share to

the board of director.

+ Failure to follow the rules above may result in disciplinary action by the company. This may range from a verbal

warning, a written warning, probation and all the way up to termination of employment.

3. Roles of Stakeholders

The company is aware of the rights of each group of stakeholders, either internal stakeholders or external stakeholders
e.g. customers, shareholders, competitors, related government agencies and employees, including social and environmental
responsibilities. The company also encourages the cooperation between the company and the stakeholders in order to
promote the sustainable growth of the company in a long term. The details are shown as follows

Annual Report 2018 93
Lalin Property Public Company Limited



94

k.
QANAN :
u

24y
na
U

1.

a o A i 1% =] 2 o ¥ ¥ a o rd'd 19
U?HV]NP]Q’WJ\IHQN‘LAIHH’]?@?’NﬂQWNW\‘i‘W@SL”’QsLMﬂ‘LI@uﬂﬂq AIENITNRUNRANTUNNNATUNTN LL@ZVLﬁﬂJWmﬁ‘ﬁ’lu
= v a Ao > XA Y @ o a a o ¥ al H Al

mm@mmmﬂﬂmmmu@mmw netliva liiduaaduiliianuaasssngn “muwﬂgﬂuummm%m”

a o = I o = v a0 Y ve § sy S A o e A =
Ui aouyaiulunisimugunnaesdus Inausimladnliidouanuiddananineiau iivedn
ANNARINT9T8IgNAT BazTNIWEWNLFULNAINWaRsAUA Bt NesaLTeq

Ui lidnlidinsmaanmunniuangiumanasneinnu tnanisnsmaiuauiuinisacuan Heaing

AOLIANY TauinAcUANANU FAans Lazgdanislasanisansnaa¥is auansu wananilivelidulaly
o a o v v X ~ Py b a v
AN U LA4n1HRNN QC naneay inednssaaauamunnduansdae

W i Bnsudanisaneulilesnafidss@nsnan 13l aansamiaesiu Customer Relationship Management
(CRM) 214 LW@@LL@ﬁZyWWi’N’] TifiugnaAn AABAAUIANANTINAN] Iulunsaclazanisre9LsEN

U3t lddaansiun1egnAn f1un19189n1e Website 28915159 saudesansnelasunaiianistnomsig
ANARaUlIg AaaRAuRansINFne fugnAn

[

Uu :

Q

Ao o Ve A o PRy P o = =& Ao a a \
UiHWNﬂQqNHQNquzLﬂuWQLLWHW@%@QED@‘VZH Imﬂﬂ’]udmm@ﬁl’ﬂmmuﬂﬂ LL@zﬂq?LQﬁ\m‘vLWUIWIHH@W’]T@\?
15 luszazeng (Maximize Long Term Shareholder’s Wealth)

Ao Yoo o vy . \ . P v P Ao o
U?HWiﬂm'ﬂ@’]ﬁ‘ﬂU%ﬂ@nu NIUNWITAINIT Website AU TEN LW@LLN"II']QWT’]QW)’]MLﬂ@@uiﬂqwmﬂ tUUBN

o

U3 a7t eaziden wazenansisznaunisdnlsygugnaiy usu

a o a vy % o ¥ < J dl o o a o [
wisnidlalanialignediu uastinamu aaunsnasunudeyalutlszifusinge Nasdaundandmm laidas
unnsnpaariunisadne vizanisaaunnulunysygue

v &
LAIUU

ed.

—

'
a

P T dll vy > o Aa
‘J_I‘Q‘HV]']J{]‘LIWm’]NN@‘Lﬂ"ﬂﬂ’]ﬁ‘QﬂNm’?Nﬁlﬂmn@ﬂ LASUUINNNIN

e Ay @ v X y o X
ABLITUU 1mwmﬂu FRIUUNIWNITAT BITUL
v

o a 1 % dwyd £ % ¥ a o |
ADUUNITRUANT LATLRTUULDNDUNVANLTEN sy

=

L3ENANILIMNIUREN9SANN Imﬂwqwmqﬂivmumwmm AN Aaeialii3Em Lﬂul,wmiuﬂumﬂun@u

a o

FINANENUIDFINITUNTNE m”Lummmuﬂmavuu Y3} Lﬂﬂmmmmmaﬂuﬂmmaﬂmmuummiﬂm Tu

a
a

TaNGALATEFAAL 2540

=)

1FENHNN3a519A 1IN RBIE NN wazaTANNANTWETATLAAetesRITeq a17ikdu nssanieriug
AlumsuasasA AN ZE09UEEN Waznssanieiunieau AN fiaesinge lunislidnmaanids
ArAugnAesUTEm s

ummﬂgummmmmm@ﬂm uazdny WV]W\?ﬂ’]?ﬂ’]@EI’]\‘imN’]vZQN ‘Emmmm‘a’m‘lun’mmmuﬁ ANBEINY

'
=

mmmnﬂﬁﬂmu AADATILIATNNIUNN

. ALY
u

sne9uUs:9U 2561

wEninsUfiRsaunsaunfniesnisuaeiung lainanedeldeuegutanianisdsaanisnanonily
e

a o a 1% @ A = 1 a o A ! % o ' Y as v
wsEnisznavgsiadeaauiiuiioandn luazilnanndy vieasfanuduresgudeinnissean Inelu
paaataanafiiiunn L ldideinole luGesminaadugudemanisd

USUN ada wiowiwosd oria (Urnisu)



. Customers :

1.

The company has emphasized on promoting the satisfaction of the customers by offering customers with
good quality products and great service to be accordance with our determination “to build the house
with good willingness”.

The company has emphasized on developing the quality of the products. As such, the product research
and development unit has been established in order to study the requirements of the customers and
continuously develop quality of products.

The company has set the quality control for the houses built by the contractor. The inspection shall be
conducted by the supervisor, head of supervisor, engineers and project manager, respectively. Moreover,
to ensure the quality of the house, the company has set the centralized quality control unit to inspect the
quality of the houses.

To enhance the efficiency of the after sale service, the company has set the Customer Relationship
Management (CRM) unit to resolve any problems of the customers and organize the events of each
project of the company.

The company has communicated with the customers via the website of the company and the quarterly
newsletter to update the news and other activities to customers.

. Shareholders :

1.

The company determines to be a good representative of the shareholders by considering a good return
and maximizing long term shareholder’s wealth.

The company has communicated with the shareholders via the website of the company to update the
news of the company e.g. details and supporting document of the shareholder meeting, etc.

The company is welcomed any inquiries or questions raised by the shareholders and investors via the
telephone or at the meeting.

. Creditors :

1.

The company complies with the terms of loans and obligations to its creditors including business creditors,
financial institutes, and company’s bondholders.

The company always carefully considers and manages its risks in doing business. Thus, company is only
a few companies in property development sector that has never been NPLs with any financial institutes
during Asian financial crisis in 1997

. Trading partners :

1.

The company continuously promotes the cooperation and maintains good relationship with their trading
partners e.g cooperating with the partners in producing the roof in the specific color of the company and
cooperating with the commercial banks to offer a special interest rate to the customers of the company.

The company has treated the partners fairly and appropriately under the condition and trade agreement.
The company has always made the payment to the partners on time every week.

. Competitors :

1.

The company has operated under the competitive rules. As such, the company shall not destroy the
reputation of the competitors with some negative accusation.

The company operates its business with professional. There is no violation of competitor confidentiality or
deception to get the confidential information of the competitors. As for now the company has no disputes
with their competitors.
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. Employees :

1. The company believes that employees are valuable assets and treats all employees equally and fairly
by offering the fair and appropriate remunerations and fringe benefits.

2. The company offers several fringe benefits to employees, for example, employee home loans with the
Government Housing Bank, Retirement Mutual Funds, health insurance card to all employees, including
some contribution money in the events of ordination, marriage, maternity, iliness, disaster to your home
and funeral of the parents, child, partner or employee.

3. The company has continuously provided employees with training. The company shall study the
requirement and develop the annual training plan to employees in all level to enhance their knowledge
and capabilities. Apart from the annual training plan designed to employees in all levels, the company
has specially designed the individual development program for the high potential employees (star) to
enhance their knowledge and capabilities to a higher level and to become the management in the future.

4. The company has emphasized on environment and safety issues in the workplace by organizing regular
fire drills, activities related to safety, 5S, and arranging for monthly elevator maintenance.

. Mass Medium :

1. The company has emphasized on disclosure company’s information to mass medium; therefore, public
can receive the correct and timely information. The company also organizes various projects in order
to keep good relationship with mass medium such as arranging a company'’s site visit and cooperating
in several social activities.

. Community and Social :

1. The company is responsible for the environment, social and community. Therefore, the company has
regularly involved in several social activities, such as, offering some contributions to disaster victims,
giving out the scholarships to students every year, etc. Some of activities in 2018 are revealed under
“Corporate social responsibility” section.

In case shareholders and stakeholders didn’t received fair treatment from the company, the company has established
a channel for them to contact, file complaints or provide information through the internal audit department at the address
below, in order to verify information, investigate the truth and proceed according to the Company’s procedures and report
to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors if any crucial issues found.

Internal Audit Department - Lalin Property Public Company Limited (Building 2)

222/2 Lalin Property Tower, 2nd floor

Srinakarin Road, Huamark, Bangkapi

Bangkok 10240

Tel: 0-2732-1041-5 # 310 Fax: 0-2377-9656

4. Disclosure and Transparency

The company has emphasized on equally disclosing the correct and transparent material information of the company,
including the financial statement and non-financial information to investors and related persons in a timely manner. The
company has set up one unit to be responsible for the investor relations. Its responsibility includes communicating with
the investors and related persons through several communication channels e.g. news release via the Stock Exchange
of Thailand, performance press release to the analyst, press release, telephone, e-mail and website of the company.
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The Investor Relations department will be responsible for disclosing important information and answering queries
to investors. Interested investors can view company’s financial statement as well as importance operating performance
from the Company’s website at www.lalinproperty.com or contact Investor Relations department for more information at:

Investor Relations Department - Lalin Property Public Company Limited
222/2 Lalin Property Tower, 2nd floor

Srinakarin Road, Huamark, Bangkapi

Bangkok 10240

Tel: 0-2732-1041-5 # 202 Fax: 0-2377-9656

In the annual report, the company shall report the responsibilities of the Board towards the financial report along
with the auditor’s report, including the roles and responsibilities of the Board, the Audit Committee and the Executive
Committee. This includes the number of the meeting and the number of attendance by each director in the past year.
Moreover, the company should disclose the remunerations (including those in money term and other benefits) of the
directors, Audit Committee and the management of the company in the annual report and the report 56-1.

5. Responsibility of the Board of Directors
5.1 Structure of the Board

The Board of Directors comprises of persons with good knowledge, capabilities and experience in various
areas. The Board is responsible for setting the vision, mission; and approval of the business direction, policy,
strategy and goal of the company in order for the management to use as a guideline in developing the annual
business plan, supporting plan and budget. The key performance indicators (KPIs) system is used to monitor the
performance. In 2018, Board of Directors had considered, reviewed and approved vision, mission, and strategies,

So that Management and staffs had the same goal.

In order to have a clear roles and responsibility, the Board has set the clear roles and responsibilities of the

Board, Audit Committee, Executive Committee and the managing director.

The Board of Directors comprises of 7 persons. Of that amount, 3 of them are the directors who are the
management and another 4 are not the management. Of those 4 directors who are not the management, 3 of them
are the independent directors and in the Audit Committee whereby this figure is more than one-third of total directors,
this gives them the authority in examining the operations of the company and balancing the power of other directors.
Moreover, the Chairman of the Board shall not be the same person as the managing director as there should be a
segregation of duties whereby the governance policy setting and the day-to-day operation shall be separated from

each other.

Under the Item 15 of the company regulation, it is stated that one-third of total directors, whereby currently
there are 7 directors, shall be released from the post at the annual general meeting of shareholders. Each director
has a term of 3-4 years. After the term is reached, the Board shall hold a meeting to consider the person with
qualification to be the director in order to propose to the shareholder meeting. The Board can reelect the director

who is released from the post back to be the director.

The company has prepared documents and described the overall image of the company’s business, along
with other information related to the company’s business for newly appointed directors to ensure that appointed

directors understand the company’s business.
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5.2 Sub Committee

The company has established the Audit Committee whereby the term of directors is 2 years. Its roles and
responsibilities have been set clear and stated under the roles and responsibilities of the Audit Committee under

the Section of Management.

The Board has not established the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. The remunerations
set by the Board have been well considered whereby the Board has compared remunerations to those set by the
same industry. Such remunerations shall be approved by the shareholder meeting and the remunerations of the

management shall be in accordance with the principal and policy set by the Board.

5.3 Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for managing the company to be in accordance with the law, objectives, regulations
and the resolution passed from the shareholder meeting. The Board shall consider and give an approval, including
develop the vision, mission, strategy and direction of operations, treasury, risk management. Moreover, the Board is
responsible for overseeing the management to efficiently and effectively operate under the policy set. Furthermore,
their responsibilities include protecting the interests of the shareholders and disclosing the correct and complete

information with standard and transparency.

The Board can assign and appoint the director to be the managing director to perform any business except
for those required by the law stating to have the resolution passed from the shareholder meeting. For any issues
whereby the director or the person may have a conflict of interest, such directors shall waive their right to vote on

those issues.
5.4 The Board of Directors Meeting

The company’s board of directors regularly organizes meetings. The chairman of the board promotes thorough
consideration and sufficient time allocation for each meeting. In preparing meeting agendas, the company offers
opportunities for directors to propose meeting agendas with the Chairman of the Board and Managing Director
as the people in charge of granting approval for meeting order and agendas. Hence, the corporate secretary will
coordinate with all directors and schedule meetings in advance throughout the entire year, sending meeting invitations,
agendas and minutes to the meetings to the company’s board of directors at least seven business days before
every meeting so that directors have time to study the information before each meeting. Furthermore, directors are
charged with attending the company’s board of directors’ meeting every time unless necessity dictates otherwise.
The minimum meeting quorum when the board of directors passes a resolution requires that at least two-thirds of

all directors be present.

Furthermore, the company offers opportunities for independent directors to organize their own meetings and/
or participate in a meeting with the internal auditor and/or with the company’s auditor without the presence of the
management to discuss any problems of interest each year, and fully at will. In 2018, there is a meeting between

independent directors without management for one time.

Each meeting is recorded in writing, and the board of directors is required to certify each of the aforementioned
minutes to the meeting every time in the subsequent meetings. In 2018, the company’s board of directors organized a
total of five meetings, four of which are meetings according to normal agendas, while another meeting was organized
near the end of the year in order to jointly evaluate the year’s performance along with making considerations,
reviews and setting visions or missions of the company in a period of 3-5 years, including making approvals for the
company’s business direction, policies, strategies and goals for the following year. Hence, the details of attendance

for each director are disclosed in the heading Directors and Executives’ Remunerations
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5.5 Self-assessment of the Board

The company has the policy stating that the Board shall re-assess their performance annually so that the

Board can jointly consider the performance and problems in order to use those to improve their performance.

5.6 Remunerations

The remunerations of the Board are cautiously considered and set by the Board Meeting whereby these
remunerations are compared to those set by the same industry. The proposed remunerations shall be approved
at the shareholder meeting. As for the remunerations of 2018, the directors had the meeting allowances of THB
20,000 per meeting (No annual remuneration). The chairman of audit committee had the annual remunerations of
THB 600,000, and the member of audit committee had the annual remunerations of THB 450,000 per person. For the
remunerations of the management, the management shall receive the salary and bonus based on the performance
of the company and their individual performance. Details of the remunerations of the Management shall be disclosed

and presented under the Remunerations of Directors and Management.

5.7 Development of Directors and the Management
To assure shareholders and investors that directors are knowledgeable in carrying out their duties as a director
in accordance to good corporate governance principles, the company has encouraged the directors to continuously

train with the Thai Institute of Directors (I0D). As for the management, the company has the policy to develop the

management of the company by encouraging them to pursue their further study in MBA and Mini-MBA, etc.

2. Board Committee

The Company’s board committee comprises 2 committees, the Audit Committee and the Executive Committee, with
details of names and scope of responsibilities as well as authorities presented below.

2.1) The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises 3 members as follows.

Name of Director Position

1. Mr. Suvarn Thansathit Independent Director & Chairman of the Audit Committee
2. Mr. Niputh Jitprasonk Independent Director & Member of the Audit Committee
3. Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul Independent Director & Member of the Audit Committee

All of the audit committee above has fully qualifications determined by the Securities and stock Exchange
Act, and has adequate expertise and experience to review creditability of the financial reports. In 2018 the audit
committee convened a total of 4 meetings. Ms. Prapasri Kittichalermliat, Internal audit Manager, serves as audit
committee secretary

Denition of an Independent Director

An independent director means a director who does not own a business or have any work related to the
company that will affect the director’s independent decisions. Hence, an independent director is required to meeting
the following qualifications:

1. A share holding of no more than one percent of the total number of issued shares entitled to vote of the
company; not a major shareholder or a person with directing authority in the company. Furthermore, the shares
of persons related to each respective independent director are also to be included.

2. Is not or was not a director who participated in work management, employee, worker, salaried consultant,
person of the company with directing authority, major shareholder, or of a person of the company with directing
authority, unless removed from the aforementioned status for at least two years.

3. Not a person related by blood or legal registration as a father, mother, spouse, sibling, offspring, including
spouse of offspring, of other directors, executives, major shareholders, person with directing authority or
person nominated as a director, executive, or person with directing authority in the company.
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Does not or never has had business relations with the company, the company’s major shareholders or person
with directing authority of the requester in a manner that could obstruct the director’s independent judgment,
along with not being or had not been a significant shareholder, or a person with directing authority of any
person who has business relations with the company, the company’s major shareholder or person with directing
authority unless removed from the aforementioned status by at least two years.

Is not and never has been a company auditor, major shareholder or person with directing authority, and is not
a significant shareholder, person with directing authority, or partner with the audit office where the company’s
auditor or person with directing authority in the company, unless removed from the aforementioned status for
at least two years.

Is not or never has been a service provider in any profession, which includes legal consultation services or
financial consultation, that received a services from the company amounting to more than two million baht per
year from the company, the company’s major shareholders, or persons with directing authority, and cannot
be a significant shareholder, person with directing authority or partnership of the service provider of the
aforementioned professions unless removed from the aforementioned position for at least two years.

Not a director appointed as a proxy for a company director, major shareholder or shareholder who is involved
with a major shareholder of the company.

Not engaged in the same business or in significant competition with the company’s business, or not a significant
partner in a partnership or a director participating in work management, employee, worker, regularly salaried
consultant, or a person who holds more than one percent of all shares with voting privileges of another company
operating in the same business and in significant competition with the company’s business.

No other attributes preventing the director from rendering independent decisions about the company’s

performance.

Components and Appointment of the Audit Committee

The company’s board of directors and/or meeting of shareholders will appoint at least three people to form

the Audit Committee. Appointees are to be fully qualified in compliance with notifications by the Securities and

Exchange Commission and are to hold a 2-year term of office for each appointment.
Scope of duties and authorities of the Audit Committee

The audit committee of the company has the scope of duties and responsibilities to the Board of Directors

on the following matters:

1.
2.

To review the Company’s financial reporting process to ensure that it is accurate and adequate.

To review the Company’s internal control system and internal audit system to ensure that they are suitable and
efficient, to determine an internal audit unit's independence, as well as to approve the appointment, transfer
and dismissal of the chief of an internal audit unit or any other unit in charge of an internal audit.

To review the Company’s compliance with the law on securities and exchange, the Exchange’s regulations,
and the laws relating to the Company’s business.

To consider, select and nominate an independent person to be the Company’s auditor, and to propose such
person’s remuneration, as well as to attend a non-management meeting with an auditor at least once a year.
To consider the related transactions, or the transactions that may lead to conflicts of interests, to ensure that
they are in compliance with the laws and the Exchange’s regulations, and are presented accurately and
comprehensively.

To report the audit committee’s operation to the board of directors at least once a quarter.

To prepare, and to disclose in the Company’s annual report, an audit committee’s report which must be signed
by the audit committee’s chairman and consist of at least the following information:

(a) An opinion on the accuracy, completeness and creditability of the Company’s financial report,

(b) An opinion on the adequacy of the Company’s internal control system,

(c) An opinion on the compliance with the law on securities and exchange, the Exchange’s regulations, or

the laws relating to the Company’s business,
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8.

(d) An opinion on the suitability of an auditor,

(e) An opinion on the transactions that may lead to conflicts of interests,

(f)  The number of the audit committee meetings, and the attendance of such meetings by each committee
member,

(g) An opinion or overview comment received by the audit committee from its performance of duties in
accordance with the charter, and

(h) Other transactions which, according to the audit committee’s opinion, should be known to the shareholders
and general investors, subject to the scope of duties and responsibilities assigned by the Company’s
board of directors; and

To perform any other act as assigned by the Company’s board of directors, with the approval of the audit

committee.

2.2) The Executive Committee

In 2018 the Executive Committee convened a total of 80 meetings and as of December 31, 2018 had 3

Directors, as follows.

Name of Director Position

1. Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul Executive Chairman
2. Mr. Nat Sangarsongkogk Executive Director
3. Mr. Churat Chakarakul Executive Director

Components and Appointment of the Management

The company’s board of directors will appoint management by selecting a number of people from the

company’s directors.

Scope of authorities and responsibilities of the Executive Committee

1.

7.

The Executive Committee is invested with the authority to carry out operations in accordance with the policies
of the Board of Directors, within the framework of the law and the Company Articles of Association. Exceptions
are made for conditions required by law as requiring the mandate of Shareholders’ Meeting resolutions.

The authority to approve loans or other borrowings from financial institutions and/or the issue of financial debt
instruments and/or any other forms of financial promissory notes to general investors, specific investors and
institutional investors. This includes authorization to arrange settlements or payments for the normal business
operations of the Company, such as investment outlays, or for the purchase of land or land with constructions
and other activities. The limit for each transaction is determined at a maximum of 700 million Baht, or an
equivalent amount, or as assigned by the Board of Directors

Authority to appoint and remove Company officers from designations not above the level of Managing Director
Authority to prepare, propose and determine policies, business direction and strategies for the Company to
the Board of Directors

Perform duties related to the general administration of the Company, including the determination of the
organizational structure and management, covering all details pertaining to the selection, training, hiring and
removal of Company employees.

Formulate business plans; facilitate administrative activities; approve the annual budget for business operations
and the annual expenditure budgets; carry out operations in accordance with the business plans and business
strategies to complement the policies and business direction presented to the Board of Directors

Perform other duties as assigned from time to time by the Board of Directors.

The delegation of authority to the Executive Committee requires that transactions in which Executive Directors or

other individuals may have a potential conflict of interest or vested interest, or any other form of conflict of interest with the

Company or its subsidiaries, obligate the said Executive Director to refrain from exercising or casting votes concerning

the matter in question. The authorization of transactions with a possible conflict of transaction must be carried out in

compliance with the Announcement of the Stock Exchange of Thailand concerning the guidelines, method and disclosure

of listed company related transactions.
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3)

4)

Selection of Directors and Executives

Appointment and removal of Company Directors

1. Inthe appointment and removal of Company directors, Company directors are elected by the shareholders’ meeting
whereby the appointment of directors must be approved by shareholders’ meeting with no less than half of the
total number of votes cast by shareholders in attendance and entitled to vote at the meeting. The shareholders are
entitled to exercise their rights to vote on an individual basis.

2. The Shareholders’ Meeting nominates Directors according to the guidelines and method as follows:
(1)  Each Shareholder has voting rights of one vote per share
(2) Each Shareholder will have a total number of votes determined as per Item (1) to nominate one or several
persons as Directors. However, the shares may not be divided in favour of a particular individual
(3) Individuals receiving the highest votes in descending order will be appointed as Directors according to the
number of Directors required, or to be voted in. In the event that there is a tie, but the appointment of both

candidates would exceed the number of Directors required or to be voted in, the Chairman of the Meeting will
cast the deciding vote.

3. Ateach Annual Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting, a total of 1 in 3 of the number of Directors is required to vacate
their posts. If the number of Directors is not divisible by three, the figure closest to 1 in 3 is to be used. In the first
and second years following the registration of the Company, the Directors to vacate their posts will be decided by
a lottery system. In successive years, the longest serving Directors will be obliged to vacate their posts first.

4. In addition to completion of tenure, a Director may be considered to complete their terms due to

(1) Death

(2) Resignation

(3) Lack of qualifications or possession of prohibited qualities as specified by the Public Companies Act

(4) The Shareholders’ Meeting passes a resolution seeking the removal of a Director. A vote of not less than 3 in

4 of the number of shares present and eligible for voting at the Meeting, representing at least half of the votes
in attendance and eligible to vote at the Meeting, is required

5. Any Director intending to resign must submit their formal resignation to the Company. The resignation becomes

effective upon the date the resignation document reaches the Company.
Nomination of Executive Directors

Executive Directors and management are nominated by the Meetings of the Board of Directors and are not reviewed
by the Nominations Committee, since the Company currently does not have such a committee. Nonetheless, the Board of
Directors considers candidates based on their qualifications, knowledge, capabilities and relevant working experience.
This includes qualifications as specified by Measure 68 of the Public Limited Companies Act of B.E. 2535 (A.D. 1992)
and the relevant Announcements of the Securities and Exchange Commission. This is in the interests of ensuring the
Company’s efficient operations.

Insider information controls

The Company has a policy forbidding Directors, Executive, Staffs, and Employees from using significant insider
information about the Company that has not yet been disclosed for the benefit of others, including the trading of Company
securities. The measures regarding executives’ use of insider information for personal gain is outlined as follows..

(1) Management in the various departments is clearly informed of their obligation to report their equity stake in the
Company; this also applies to their spouses and children who are minors. Changes in equity ownership are
likewise required to be reported, in accordance with Measure 59 and penalty Measure 275 of the Securities
and Stock Exchange Act of B.E. 2535 (A.D. 1992)
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(2) Documentation is circulated to ensure that Directors, Executive, Staffs, and Employees are informed that
Directors, Executive, Staffs, and Employees who access to significant insider information which has the
potential to impact changes in the price of the Company’s securities are advised to refrain from trading in the
Company’s shares for a period of 1 month. Such information is not permitted to be disclosed to other parties
prior to the disclosure to the general public of the financial statements or the information in question. In order
to control and monitor compliance in this regard, the Company has a policy requiring management to report
their shareholdings and any subsequent changes in securities to the Board of Directors, in accordance with

Measure 59.

(3) The company specifies that each director has duty to report transaction of buy and sell of company’s share

to the board of director.

(4)  Failure to follow the rules above may result in disciplinary action by the company. This may range from a verbal

warning, a written warning, probation and all the way up to termination of employment.

5) Audit fees

The 2018 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders passed a resolution to nominate Ms.Wanya Buddasathien,
Certified N0.4387 or Ms.Chantra Wongsriudomporn, Certified N0.4996 or Mr.Cherdsakul Onnmongkol, Certified No.7195
or Ms.Waraporn Intaraprasit of C.W.W.P Company Limited to be the 2018 company’s auditor. All the auditors listed above
have no relationship or any interest with the company / subsidiaries / executives / major shareholders or related to such
person in anyway. The audit fees were determined at 1,067,000 Baht, Increasing 97,000 Baht from year 2017.

For non-audit item, in the last accounting period the company used the English translation service from this auditing
office which costs 60,000 baht.
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Social and Environmental Responsibilities

The phrase of “Houses Built on Good Intentions” is the main philosophy of all executives and employees of Lalin Property
Public Company Limited who are committed to build a house with full intention, pay attention to the life quality and create good
environment to customers, support motivation of all employees in the organization and nearby communities, and also return
benefits to the society.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is one of the principles that Lalin Property Public Company Limited consistently
focuses on throughout its operation. The Company is aware of the sustainable growth of the organization which requires visions,
capabilities, together with morality and ethics in the operation under the good corporate governance principle and corporate

social responsibility.

Respect of Human Rights and Fair Treatment of Employees

The Company is committed to comply with the labor law and other laws related to employment by focusing on care
and attention to employees. In addition, the Company provides welfares to employees, such as provident fund, educational
scholarship for employees, group health insurance, annual holidays according to rules of the labor law, fair salary payment,
and annual bonus payment, in order to return a favor to employees’ intentions in operations. KPI (Key Performance Indicator)
is applies as the indicator representing the efficiency and effectiveness of performances of the organization or sections in the
organization.

However, the Company establishes the Welfare Committee to give advices and suggestions regarding to welfares, inspect
and audit welfares provided to employees, and provide comments and additional or necessary guidelines relating to welfares.
In addition, the Company also provides the annual employee survey relating to satisfaction on the working environment, nature
of work, executives, communication, and organizational commitment of the employees. Such survey will be applied as the
guideline for further development t and improvement.

Furthermore, Lalin Property also focuses on providing trainings continuously in order to enhance skills, knowledge, and
capabilities in the operation of employees. Annually, the Company will offer opportunities to supervisors and employees to
express their opinions relating to the demand of trainings for self-development and development of occupational knowledge
and abilities.

Regarding to the activities for strengthening good relationship in the organization, the Company organizes the New
Year Party at the end of every year, Annual Sport’s Day, and “Happy Hour” activity after office hours once a month, in order
to enhance happiness of employees in working, relax and reduce stress. These activities will lead to Happy Organization and
also create good relationship between employees, as well as employees and executives, including support the organizational

commitment of employees.

Fair Business Operation

The Company intends to create good confidence for customers, which will cause positive results in long term, and ig-
nores other benefits possibly affecting the business operation of the Company. The Company will avoid any operation which
may cause conflict of interests. If the conflict of interests is found, the Company will settle it fairly. In addition, the Company
provides the management system which prevents the bribes and corruption. If any corruption is detected, the Company will

rapidly solve that problem.

Customer Responsibility
The Company emphasizes on doing business by constructing qualified and standardized houses. Moreover, the Company
is aware of services which create the best impression to customers with the following practices.
1. Providing complete and fair information to customers and considering benefits of customers, such as, no exaggerated
advertising, providing clear information with simple and easy-to-understand language
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2. Developing products and services of the business which respond the social and environmental demand to customers
and have the standard in order to create customers” satisfaction. The Company establishes the Quality Control
section (QC) for inspecting and controlling the production process or services so that all products are in accordance
with the requirements of the organization, including the corrective action system which helps detect non-conforming
products.

Anti-corruption and performing fair business operation
4.  Listening to a problems and rapidly and willingly resolve problems without bias and mainly considering benefits of

customers

Organizing Activities under Project

The Company greatly pays attention to create good relationship with members under the Lalin Project by building par-
ticipation and interaction through any activities, such as New Year Party, Children’s Day, Loy Kratong Day, making merits on
Buddhist Festivals, etc. Additionally, the Company also focuses on the quality of life of all members in the project by providing

the medical checkup, vaccination for dogs, Big Cleaning event, etc.

Developing Community and Society

Strong communities and society with sustainable development are very significant as the supporting factor for the busi-
ness operation of the Company. As a result, the Company promotes social activities continuously and participates in enhancing
strength for communities by creating qualified society, reducing or stopping negative impacts on communities and society,
especially impacts arising out of the operation of the Company. In addition, the Company also supports volunteering activities

relating to community and society development.

Conserving Nature and Environment

1. Fostering employees to save and consume energy valuably, such as turning off lights during lunch break and all
computers after finishing using, adjusting the temperature of air conditioners at the saving-energy temperature and
turning them off after finishing using.

2. Realizing energy problems and global warming by fostering awareness of employees to help save and support
re-use of resources, such as using recycled paper for photocopying

3. Communicating to all employees, customers, and associated persons to be aware of the energy saving and energy
consumption with the highest worthwhileness

4. Using benefits from technologies in order to reduce transportation and energy consumption
Considering environment and impacts on society surrounding the construction sites, providing preventive measures
for dust and safety, noise pollution, managing wastes arising out of the construction, and providing wastewater
treatment before releasing out of the construction sites

6.  Designing houses which help save energy and cause no impact on environment. All housing projects of the Company
are planned, managed, and controlled in terms of all production process. In addition, the Company designs houses
according to the principles of the nature by selecting and using materials which save the energy and help reduce
the global warming, such as, green tinted glasses, which help reduce the intense and heat of the light, including
filter UV and reflect heat, so the heat inside the house reduces and help less consumption of air conditioners.

7. Communicating knowledge and information relating to impacts on environment and safety to all employees, customers,

and the public
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Safety Operation

The Company is aware of the life, health, and property safety of employees and customer under the projects by imple-

menting the following operations;

1. Installing CCTV in the Company for the safety of employees and around the housing projects of the Company foe

the safety of residents in the projects
2. Providing 24-hour security guards who have no criminal records and drug use

3. The Company provides the training of “Firefighting and Evacuation” once a year so that employees acknowledge
the basic preventive measures, fire exit routes, fire extinguishers usage, and safe evacuation out of the building.

This activity is the preparation in case real situations take place.

Corporate Social Responsibi|i’ries (CSRs)

Lalin Property Public Company Limited is always mindful that we are a part of society and conscious of our important
responsibility to society as well as the community. The Company therefore regularly organizes activities to benefit society and
has consistently done so throughout. This takes the form of educational assistance with the presentation of scholarships to
schoolchildren and students; monetary donations to various charities; donations of funds and necessities to victims of natural

disasters such as floods; and including holding community activities through the Company’s projects.
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Internal Control and Risk Management

At the board of directors’ meeting No. 1/2561 held on February 23, 2018, the board of directors approved the audit com-
mittee in line with the assessment form for the sufficiency of the internal control systems for 2017. In summary, the Company
has sufficient internal controls covering 5 areas, namely, internal control, risk assessment, operation control, information system

and communication, and monitoring systems. The details are as follows:

1. Internal Control

The Company has set a goal for business operations approved by the board of directors, which is clear, reasonable
and measureable in order to be used as an operational guideline for employees. The Company requires executives and em-
ployees to perform their duties with integrity and moral ethics in writing and also communicates this matter to all employees
in the new employee orientation. The Company has established complete policies and rules in writing, appropriate corporate
structure, clear chain of command, and relationship between internal sections, including properly assigned authorities, duties,
and responsibilities to personnel. Main duties are divided to provide check-and-balance. A chain of command has been set
in place that is clear and appropriate. Employee roles and duties are established in writing so that all employees are aware
of the authority, duties and responsibilities and properly execute duties with full ability. Employees are continuously educated
and trained with the skills necessary for operations. In addition, an efficient internal control system is established, including an

independent internal audit reporting directly to the Audit Committee.

2. Risk Assessment

The Company focuses on risk assessment. At the board of directors’ meeting, risks with potential impact on the Com-
pany’s business operations are assessed and considered in terms of internal and external factors from all sections in order to
establish the strategy on risk management which may cause impacts and damages to the Company. At the bi-weekly board
of directors’ meetings, each line of work reports problems, issues and opportunities for potential corruption and presents
the measures taken in line with the risk management guidelines. The Company’s executives assess situations, analyzes and
prioritize the risk level, determines risk control methods and preventive and corrective measures, and monitors situations that
are the root cause risk factors as well as those measures in order to mitigate potential impacts on the Company’s business

operation.

3. Operation Control

The Company has set significant control activities of each work system and regularly reported performances. The manage-
ment structure is established to divide and separate duties and responsibilities of each unit, consisting of the duty of approval,
information and transaction recording and asset maintenance. However, the Company develops its information technology to
support its efficient operations. In addition, policy and operational procedures are regularly reviewed and the Company also
participated in the announcement of intention and commitment to prevent corruptions in the projects of collective action coali-

tion of the private sector to fight against corruptions organized by the Stock Exchange of Thailand.
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4. Information System and Communication

The Company has arranged sufficient key information available for decision-making and submits it to the board of directors
within the period stipulated by the law. Minutes of the board of directors’ meetings are prepared in detail and kept available
for proper review of directors’ execution of duty. Documents supporting the accounting records are completely stored and
categorized. The Company develops and updates the computer system for the Company’s database management so that data
collection and management as well as report preparation are efficient and suitable. Data is always reported rapidly, timely and
accurately. Communication channels are available throughout the entire company via an intranet system. Department meet-
ings are held on a monthly basis. For external communications, the Company provides the section of investor relations via its

website (www.lalinproperty.com) as a communication channel between the Company and external investors and agencies.

5. Monitoring System

The Company monitors business performances to determine achievement of set goals. Meetings are held with the Man-
agement once a week. Executive board meetings are held bi-weekly to closely monitor performances. Furthermore, the board
of directors’ meetings are held at least 5 times a year to consider, analyze and evaluate whether performances meets the
established strategies, goals and business plans and to solve potential problems and adjust action plans to meet changing
situations. In addition, the Company also has an Internal Audit Department which has the duty of auditing the Company’s opera-
tions in order to assess and report audit results directly to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee then reports performances
to the board of directors at the boards’ meetings every time. Regarding to financial data, independent auditors perform audits
and render opinions. At present, no errors in internal control system on accounting have been found to significantly affect the

financial statement.
As of December 31, 2018, the head of internal audit unit is Ms. Praphasri Kittichaloemkiat. Her brief profile is as follows;
Educational Background

. Bachelor of Business Administration (Accounting)  Hua Chiew Chalermprakiet University (Year 1997-2001)

Working Experience

. Internal Audit SeniOor Officer Summit Auto Seat Industry Company
y7800987rtuy78Limited,
Year 2003- 2008
. Section Head of Internal Audit Department Modernform (Public) Company Limited, Year 2008-2015
. Internal Audit Manager Lalin Property (Public) Company Limited, Year 2015 —current

Training Program
. Anti-corruption in Organizations of the Federation of Accounting Professions
. Internal Audit Operation in Information System of the Federation of Accounting Professions
. Evaluating Internal Control: A COSO Based Approach of the Institute of Internal Auditors of Thailand
. Risk Based Audit of the Institute of Internal Auditors of Thailand
Certificate

. Tax Auditor

The Audit Committee has opinion that Ms. Praphasri Kittichaloemkiat, Head of Internal Audit Unit of the Company, has
adequate qualifications and experience to efficiently perform internal audits. In addition, Company’s internal audit unit is in-
dependent. The Audit Committee has the duty to approve the appointment, transfer, and dismiss of the head of internal audit

unit or any other units relating to an internal audit.
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Related party transactions

The Company currently does not have any related party transactions. However, if company will do any related transactions
in the future, the company will determine any terms as normal commercial practice at market prices, which may be compared
with prices in transactions occurring with outside parties. The Company will assign the Audit Committee, the corporate auditors,
or independent experts to review the transactions and provide their opinions as to the suitability of pricing and justification of

such items.

The Board of Directors must ensure that any future related party transactions comply with the Securities and Stock Ex-
change Act, regulations, announcements, orders or conditions of the Stock Exchange of Thailand. Furthermore, compliance
is required with regulations governing the disclosure of related party transactions and the significant acquisition, or divestiture

of securities in the Company or its subsidiaries.

Furthermore, related party transactions for the Company or its subsidiaries which may occur with individuals having
potential conflict of interest, vested interest or future conflict of interest, require the Audit Committee to review and provide
their opinion as to the necessity and suitability of the transaction. In the event that the Audit Committee does not possess the
expertise to consider the particular transaction in question, the Company will assign an independent expert or the corporate
auditors to provide an opinion. The feedback will be used in the decision making of the Board of Directors’ or Shareholders,
as may be the case. The Company will disclose details of related party transactions in the Notes to the Financial Statements,

which have been duly inspected by the corporate auditors.
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Explanation of Performance and Financial Status Analysis

In 2018, Lalin Property Co., Ltd. acknowledged a sales income of 4,082.06 million baht, an increase of 492.87 million
baht from the previous year or a growth of 14 percent. This growth is higher than growth in the overall industry for the third
consecutive year from 33 percent and 30 percent in the two previous years. Income perceived in 2018 is considered to be
nearly double that of the past three years.

The Company continues to expand the business continually. In the past four years, the Company launched 32 new proj-
ects at a value of over 18 billion baht. Part of these projects were launched in original locations to compensate for sold-out and
closed projects and part of these projects were launched in locations with new capacity and product models to meet consumer
demand and support the business’s sustainable growth. The Company raised project models under the LALIN Town Concept,
which is a mixed-use project with project covering real consumer needs in many segments. New concept home and single
home products have an area of 140 — 175 square meters at a starting price of 2 — 5 million baht while town home products with
an area of 85 — 105 square meters have a starting price of 1 — 2 million baht with coverage of most consumers in the market.
Furthermore, the Company emphasizes developing new construction models and using new innovations to control and improve
construction quality along with reducing costs.

In terms of cost management, the Company has been able to manage costs better than the overall industry average in
the past ten years. This is reflected through higher profitability ratios than the industry average from when the Company be-
came listed in the Stock Exchange in 2002. In 2018, the Company’s gross profit margin was 39.63 percent, a level similar to
the previous year and higher than the industry average of 33.00 percent. This reflects good direct cost management such as
land procurement ability and construction management. The Company continually develops construction systems through new
innovations along with developing management systems to have more construction efficiency, which helped to improve product
quality and cost management. Concerning sales and management expenses to revenue (SG&A/Revenues), the Company’s
sales and management expenses to revenues were at 11.77 percent, which was similar to 11.45 percent in 2017 but better
when compared to 13.75 percent and 12.56 percent in 2015 and 2016, respectively. Increases in SG&A/revenues in 2018 was
partly caused by the Company’s launch of two new projects at the end of the year, causing project launching expenses to be
recorded in 2018. However, the aforementioned projects will begin to perceive income at the beginning of 2019.

Net profit in 2018 was at 777.15 million baht, an ongoing rise in the past three years. The Company’s net profit in 2015
— 2017 was 355.19 million baht, 500.31 million baht and 680.83 million baht, respectively. The Company’s profits can be con-
sidered to have grown by more than 118 percent in only three years. Net profit margin in 2018 was 19.04 percent, a slight
improvement from 18.97 percent in the previous year and a higher percentage than the overall industry average.

With regard to capital structure, although the Company’s business grew continually in the past 4 — 5 years, the Company
retains a better gearing level than the market average. At the end of 2018, the Company’s debt to equity ratio (D/E Ratio) was
0.74 times, an ongoing reduction from 0.79 times and 0.85 times in 2017 and 2016. In addition, this level is lower than the
industry average at 1.45 times. The Company strictly manages financial risks by using diverse loan sources and sets sufficient
committed lines from commercial banks for all liabilities due for payment in the next 1 — 2 years. According to the balance sheet
as of 31 December 2018, the Company has total assets at 10,429.52 million baht, an increase of 535.60 million baht or 5.41
percent from the end of the previous year. Of this increase, 63.37 million baht was from liability accounts and 472.23 million
baht was from shareholders’ equity. The following significant assets had changes: 1. Inventory increased by 49.29 million baht
to 8,527.92 million baht; 2. Cash and cash equivalents including sales investment increased by 455.67 million baht to 536.60
million baht from the Company’s issuance of 500 million baht in 5-year loan shares at the end of the year to prepare for land
purchase investments in order to prepare for the launching of new projects at the beginning of 2019.

Concerning liabilities at the end of 2018, the Company’s total liabilities were at 4,433.25 million baht divided into 1,820.53
million baht in current liabilities and 2,612.72 million baht in non-current liabilities. Current liabilities consisted of 819.22 million
baht in liabilities from loans divided into 799.80 million baht in long-term loans due for payment in one year and 19.42 million
baht in account overdrafts and short-term loans. When compared to 476.07 million baht in account overdrafts and short-term
loans in the previous year, this item can be seen to have declined significantly from the Company’s risk management policy
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to extend the overall duration of the Company’s loans in order to manage increased fluctuations in global financial market
conditions by issuing long-term loan shares to compensate for short-term loans. In 2018, the Company issued four sets of
loan shares valued at 1,500 million baht consisting of Loan Share 1/2561 with a period of three years, a value of 500 million
baht and a fixed interest rate of 2.95 percent, Loan Share 2/2561 with a period of three years, a value of 100 million baht and
a fixed interest rate of 2.95 percent, Loan Share 3/2561 with a period of three years, a value of 400 million baht and a fixed
interest rate of 3.22 percent and Loan Share 4/2561 with a period of five years, a value of 500 million baht and a fixed interest
rate of 4.50 percent. Part of these loan shares were used to support business growth and part of these shares were used to
compensate for original loan shares due for payment. The Company’s average financial costs dropped due to lower cost from

interest rates of new loan shares issued in 2018 when compared to old loan shares due for payment.

The Company’s shareholders’ equity at the end of 2018 was 5,996.27 million baht, an increase from the end of 2017 by
472.23 million baht. At the end of 2018, the Company’s debt on equity ratio (D/E Ratio) was 0.74 times, a reduction from 0.79
times at the end of 2017. In addition, this ratio is low when compared to the industry average at 1.45 times. According to loan
share issuance rights, the Company is required to maintain interest-bearing debt to equity ratio (IBD/E Ratio) at the end of the
fiscal cycle of each quarter at no more than two times. At the end of 2018, the Company’s IBD/E ratio was 0.45 times, a reduc-
tion of 0.56 times at the end of 2017. The aforementioned numbers showcase the Company’s strict financial risk management
policy. The Company adheres to financial discipline and has done so for over 30 years from the Company’s founding. The
Company never creates overwhelming and uncontrollable debts. Thus, the Company is one of only a few real-estate develop-
ment companies in Thailand to have not been required to enter a debt restructuring process with any financial institute during
the economic crisis of 1997.

In 2018, the Company paid out dividends to the Company’s shareholders for two times on 11 May 2018 by paying divi-
dends in cash with a par value of 0.165 baht or a total cash payment of 152.62 million baht (for performance in the second
half of 2017) and on 7 September 2018 by paying dividends in cash with a par value of 0.165 baht or a total cash payment
of 152.62 million baht (for performance in the first half of 2018. The Company is currently in the process of proposing for the
Annual General Meeting of 2019 to approve dividend payouts to shareholders for performance in the second half of 2018. The
Company proposed to pay in cash at a par value of 0.175 baht or a cash payment of 161.87 million baht. Dividends will be
paid out on 10 May 2019.
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Statement of the Board of Director’s Responsibilities
to the Financial Statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the financial statements of Lalin Public Company Limited, as well as the financial
information presented in the 2018 Annual Report. These financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally ac-
cepted accounting principles, using appropriate accounting principles that are applied on a consistent basis. Furthermore,
cautious judgment and the best estimates for financial projections are exercised in the preparation of the statements. Every care
is taken to ensure adequate disclosure of information in the Notes to the Financial Statements, for the benefit of Shareholders

as well as general investors and in the interests of transparency.

The Company’s Board of Directors has implemented an appropriate risk assessment system, as well as a system of
internal controls, to engender confidence in the accuracy, completeness and sufficiency of accounting information to maintain
the Company’s assets. Moreover, this serves as a safeguard against dishonest or other abnormal activities of a significant

nature.

In this regards, the Board of Directors appointed the Audit Committee to review the quality of the financial statements,
the internal audit report and including the system for risk management. The recommendations of the Audit Committee in this

regard are presented in the Report of the Audit Committee as shown in the Annual Report.

The Company'’s Financial Statements have been duly inspected by the corporate auditors, Ms. Wanraya Puttasatiean
(Certified N0.4387) of C.W.W.P. Co., Ltd. As part of the audit process, the Board of Directors determined the policy guidelines
for management to provide adequate supporting information and documentation, thereby allowing the auditors to conduct
the audit and provide their opinions in line with auditing standards. The auditors’ opinions are shown in the Auditors’ Report

section of the Annual Report.

The Board of Directors of the Company is of the opinion that the Company’s overall internal control systems are of a
satisfactory standard and are able to offer reasonable confidence that the annual Financial Statements of Lalin Property Public
Company Limited for the year ended 31 December 2018 are credible and comply with generally accepted accounting stan-

dards, as well as the relevant regulations.

S C Mttt —

(Mr. Taveesak Watcharakkawong) (Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul)

Chairman Managing Director
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Report of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of Lalin Property Public Company Limited is composed of three independent directors who are
qualified to the notification of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Thailand, namely, Mr. Suvarn Thansathit, Chairman

of the Audit Committee; Assoc. Prof. Niputh Jitprasonk, and Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul, Audit Committee member.

The Audit Committee performed operations independently and in full capacity as assigned by the Company’s board of
directors. The main duty is to review the financial statements of the Company to be accurate and disclosed adequately, review
the Company’s internal control system and supervise the good corporate governance of the Company. In 2018, a total of four
meetings were held. At each meeting, the Audit Committee participated in discussions with the Company’s executives, internal

auditor and auditor. The essential details can be summarized as follows:

1. Reviewing the Company’s nancial statement

The Audit Committee reviewed the quarterly financial statement and financial statement for the year 2018 which were
reviewed and audited by the auditors before presenting them to the Company’s board of directors for approval. In addition,
the Committee attended in the meeting with auditors without the presence of the Management so as to freely discuss important
issues in the preparation of the financial statement and disclosure of information which is beneficial to users of the financial
statement. The Audit Committee rendered the opinion that the aforementioned financial reports are correct, complete and
credible and that substantial information was sufficiently and timely disclosed in accordance with accounting standards and

related rules.

2. Reviewing the Company’s corporate governance procedure, internal control, risk
management, and compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Audit Committee audited the Company’s good corporate governance and internal control system in order to evalu-
ate the adequacy, appropriateness and efficiency of the internal control system and risk management according to the audit
standard and guidelines set by the Office of Securities and Exchange Commission and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations. In addition, the Audit Committee considered the internal audit results according to the annual plan prepared pur-
suant to the rules of risk standard, listened to explanations of the auditor about the internal control system, and commented
and exchanged knowledge and information relating to risks that may affect the Company with the board of directors regularly
every quarter. The Audit Committee rendered the opinion that the Company has adequate and effective internal control system

and risk management, including intention and commitment to prevent all kinds of corruption.

3. Reviewing compliance with the laws on securities and the Stock Exchange

The Audit Committee reviewed the compliance with laws on securities and the Stock Exchange, regulations of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand and laws relating to the Company’s business. The Audit Committee commented that the Company
complied with laws on securities and the Stock Exchange, regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and laws relating to
the Company’s business, and found no business transactions fitting the criteria for related transactions or transactions with

potential conflicts of interest.
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4. Supervising internal audit functions

The Audit Committee monitored internal audit functions which cover missions, scope of operation, duties and responsi-
bilities and independency to ensure that the operational process is effective and there is sufficient internal control system. The
meeting with the Audit Department is held at least once per quarter in order to consider the annual audit plan and acknowl-
edge the audit results, as well as provide recommendations that are beneficial to the improvement of operations of the Audit
Department and the Management. According to the internal audit results, it is considered that the internal control has been
conducted in an appropriate manner with sufficient information without any important errors or defects. The Audit Committee

rendered the opinion that the Company has adequate internal control system and risk management.

5. Reporting performances

The Audit Committee reported performances of the Audit Committee to the Company’s board of directors quarterly and
provided comments and suggestions which were beneficial to the management. The Management has appropriately taken

corrective actions according to the suggestions.

6. Consider and select the Company’s auditor for the year 2019

The Audit Committee considered, selected, nominated and proposed the remunerations for the auditors in 2019 based
on their knowledge, skill, independence, performance and appropriateness of audit fee in order to propose it to the Company’s
board of directors for further approval of auditor appointment at the shareholders’ meeting. The Audit Committee proposed
to nominate Ms.Wanya Buddasathien, Certified N0.4387 or Mr.Cherdsakul Onnmongkol, Certified No.7195 or Ms.Waraporn
Intaraprasit, Certified No.7881 or Ms.Chonthicha Lertvilai, Certified No.12258 or Ms.Waraporn Phanpakdeenupong, Certified
No0.12261 or Ms.Rawissada Wadwaree, Certified No.12026 of C.W.W.P Company Limited to be the Company’s auditor for the
year 2019.

During the year 2018, the Audit Committee has fully performed its duties as assigned by the Company’s board of direc-
tors. The committee fully exercised its knowledge and skills independently and sufficiently and without limitations in regards to
information access, and the Committee has rendered its opinion on the overall picture that the Company reported its financial
information and actions correctly and appropriately in accordance with the accounting standards, has an internal control
system in place with internal audits and proper risk management that are sufficient and in compliance with laws, regulations
and obligations. In addition, the Company continuously promotes good corporate governance, transparency and credibility.

Moreover, the Company continuously improves work systems for the equal benefits of stakeholders.

y

(Mr. Suvarn Thansathit)

Chairman of the Audit Committee
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Funindhimpidoudy 15 87,784,012.34 7,586,962.60 87,783,984.98 7,586,935.24

PO

sawdunind hivyuieu

3

& o
FINTAUNTNY

winawasznausunsRuiudounilarasaunis{uil

1,724,465,337.24

1,282,802,828.30

1,740,172,420.30

1,298,516,619.06

10,429,517,979.54

9,893,918,058.85

10,447,791,018.44

9,912,557,325.62
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UM UM UIMN UIMN
wilaunazduvesderu
wﬁyﬁuwuuﬁﬂu
ﬁmﬁmﬁuﬁﬂﬁuasﬁurj'ﬁm:as&y”umﬂﬁmﬁumﬁﬁm 17 19,415,326.57 476,072,188.06 19,415,326.57 476,072,188.06
L%mf:msﬁ”mam%'mﬁwquﬁau%'u 18 386,277,909.62 344,990,455.49 386,539,879.97 344,993,450.44
drvesusiassmuasiszneluniil 20 799,803,120.25 959,628,760.26 799,803,120.25 959,628,760.26
duveaniaumuld STITAICARR BTN
Adeimuagiszaeluniidl - 12,840.00 - 12,840.00
mBkduldfee 74,890,051.91 80,482,373.04 74,857,268.26 79,801,734.65
Uszinumsni auszozdu 19 540,147,615.39 606,166,953.65 540,147,615.39 606,166,953.65
‘J’JZJWﬁya’quuﬁﬂu 1,820,534,023.74 2,467,353,570.50 1,820,763,210.44 2,466,675,927.06
wita hivyudon
Rudduszeze1nnnuivndes 323 - - 18,000,000.00 19,000,000.00
Hug 20 2,436,535,059.34 1,738,642,355.82 2,436,535,059.34 1,738,642,355.82
ﬂixmmmiwﬁ%u‘lﬁwuuﬁﬂu
dmFuwailsy Tomiminau 21 35,979,904.30 30,569,814.30 35,979,904.30 30,569,814.30
wilaumBiiuIdsensen Toy% 14 92,624.82 1,972.67 89,310.61 -
Uszinumsuiauszozen 19 140,111,260.46 133,313,664.16 140,111,260.46 133,313,664.16
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2,612,718,848.92

1,902,527,806.95

2,630,715,534.71

1,921,525,834.28

4,433,252,872.66

4,369,881,377.45

4,451,478,745.15

4,388,201,761.34
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QUMIAUITIN AUMIRUANIZAINT
ngMeg 31 AN 2561 31 FUNAY 2560 31 FuNAY 2561 31 FUAY 2560
um um TRV UM
' YA g
aInveIddey
A Y
UTEGITAT 22
Nuaanzioy
Wuaniy 925,000,000 1 yamfuay 1.00 U0 925,000,000.00 925,000,000.00 925,000,000.00 925,000,000.00

yuivenuazhszId)

Y @ £4

Wuaiiny 924,999,441 4
dnunuyamiuain
M'lsarzay

TAaTINA)
Nud1sInUNgNIY
galu'l8vaass
s A ' YA 9
aentlsznouduvesdILVBIND Y
' YAy
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e \ ya g
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924,999,441.00

499,215,526.94

92,500,000.00
4,479,179,639.62

370,499.32

924,999,441.00

499,215,526.94

92,500,000.00
4,007,313,852.15

7,861.31

924,999,441.00

499,215,526.94

92,500,000.00
4,479,240,062.88

357,242.47

924,999,441.00

499,215,526.94

92,500,000.00
4,007,640,625.72

(29.38)

5,996,265,106.88

5,524,036,681.40

5,996,312,273.29

5,524,355,564.28

10,429,517,979.54

9,893,918,058.85

10,447,791,018.44

9,912,557,325.62
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e 31 5uNAN 2561 31 FUAN 2560
UM UM UM UM

510 1damsne 4,082,064,216.00 3,589,195,622.00 4,082,064,216.00 3,589,195,622.00
Aunung (2,464,197,011.86)  (2,159,260,137.07)  (2,464,197,011.86)  (2,159,260,137.07)
flsiudu 1,617,867,204.14 1,429,935,484.93 1,617,867,204.14 1,429,935,484.93
swldau 16,590,979.91 9,720,187.67 16,589,856.31 9,152,952.13
migInammzuazmsssuiouns lou (156,978,269.00) (157,518,870.50) (156,978,269.00) (157,518,870.50)
gunulumsdadimiing (275,246,385.40) (220,136,880.20) (275,246,385.40) (220,136,880.20)
mlFelumsuinmsg (207,119,318.95) (191,951,223.19) (207,083,189.74) (191,872,503.19)
Aununamsitu (22,713,627.95) (16,909,970.20) (23,081,573.13) (16,909,970.20)
M'lsneuntisu’la 972,400,582.75 853,138,728.51 972,067,643.18 852,650,212.97
@ldeseldmiculd 26.1 (195,250,710.37) (172,306,851.23) (195,184,121.11) (171,626,205.78)
f'lsdmil 777,149,872.38 680,831,877.28 776,883,522.07 681,024,007.19

sl@nanuyiiaaiadu 26.2
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wafﬁ"li(mmnu)mﬂmsi’ﬂyamﬁuammﬁmw 362,638.01 (135,214.39) 357,271.85 (200.17)
swmsing Wigniaszan bl Blum lvievianulinond
nam lsnanwnnmsiayam livenatlss Temininau

fismua'ly (35,684.00) 11,010,179.09 (35,684.00) 11,010,179.09
swdlsanudiandesudmd - gnioinni 326,954.01 10,874,964.70 321,587.85 11,009,978.92
flsandaeteswdmiul - gniiinand 777,476,826.39 691,706,841.98 777,205,109.92 692,033,986.11
ﬁflwiaﬁw&uv‘fugm (um) 28 0.84 0.74 0.84 0.74
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UM

972,400,582.75

61,155,474.47
(1,027,872.93)

17,465.63

(59,221,741.96)
5,898,485.00
(14,812.24)
(7,140,451.84)
(214,995.38)

21,551,624.45

UM

853,138,728.51

56,771,914.62
(793,465.12)
1,256,923.10

(2,919,991.00)

112,220,661.12

5,643,932.88

(162,848.41)

16,899,559.25

UM

972,067,643.18

61,155,474.47
(1,027,872.93)

17,465.63

(59,221,741.96)
5,898,485.00
(14,812.24)
(7,140,451.84)
(213,871.75)

21,919,569.63

UM

852,650,212.97

56,771,914.62
(433,957.70)
1,256,923.10
(2,919,991.00)
(53,388.90)
112,220,661.12

5,643,932.88

(162,142.34)

16,909,970.20

993,403,757.95

15,550,674.34
605,378,796.29

(6,747,049.74)

46,412,226.82
(533,000.00)

1,042,055,414.95

459,983.22
62,830,278.48

2,128,639.40

31,670,908.63

993,439,887.19

15,550,674.34
605,378,796.29

(6,747,049.74)

46,410,380.32

(533,000.00)

1,041,884,134.95

573,955.86
59,830,278.48

2,128,666.76

31,671,376.63

1,653,465,405.66
(79,000,653.62)

214,995.38

(201,916,128.50)

1,139,145,224.68
(95,468,247.37)

162,848.41

(144,185,562.76)

1,653,499,688.40
(79,000,653.62)

213,871.75

(201,201,684.50)

1,136,088,412.68
(95,468,247.37)

162,142.34

(144,185,555.70)

1,372,763,618.92

899,654,262.96

1,373,511,222.03

896,596,751.95
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ahnsulaugasun 31 suoAu 2561

JUMIRUTIY JUMIRUANIZAIMST
LEREIVE) 31 FuNAN 2561 31 FUNAN 2560 31 FuNAw 2561 31 FUNAN 2560
UIMN UM UIMN UM
NTLUARUAADINAINT TUAINY
ﬁuamim«faﬁumnmﬁamm (1,885,000,000.00) (681,300,000.00) (1,885,000,000.00) (675,000,000.00)
Jugasunnnsneduasuiions 1,491,000,000.00 670,900,540.57 1,491,000,000.00 645,000,540.57
Guaaiudoiiau 013 nazginsal (37,532,426.89) (45,312,917.95) (37,532,426.89) (41,760,106.85)
Fudasunnnssimieiian ems uazqUnsal - 3,826,414.06 - 3,826,414.06
Ruaaiwdoiiausenisiani (561,571,102.00) (675,855,313.90) (561,571,102.00) (676,408,125.00)
Buaaiunnmssmiefiausenisian - - - 606,200.00
Suaanieiasimfian (74,650,000.00) (1,200,000.00) (74,650,000.00) (1,200,000.00)
Ruaagnd Wuw i hydvnssuamu (1,067,753,528.89) (728,941,277.22) (1,067,753,528.89) (744,935,077.22)
NILUARIUAATINNINT TUIANUIU
L‘Vq\illsﬁu(aﬂad)iuﬁutﬁmﬁuﬁm%‘ﬁumﬁ 13,343,138.51 (11,609,144.04) 13,343,138.51 (11,609,144.04)
Gutmi”umﬂﬁu{]’ﬁuﬁsaxéumnﬁmﬁumsﬁu 760,000,000.00 1,160,000,000.00 760,000,000.00 1,160,000,000.00
ﬁuﬁﬂn‘wfﬂhsxﬁufj’ﬁusxazé‘?umﬂamﬁumﬁﬁu (1,230,000,000.00) (1,460,000,000.00) (1,230,000,000.00) (1,460,000,000.00)
fuaatiediszniaumeld Ty uEINITRU (12,840.00) (15,408.00) (12,840.00) (15,408.00)
Ruaaiunnmsiudduszozenannusimdos - - - 19,000,000.00
Ruaaswhsziiudiuszozennnuiindes - - (1,000,000.00) -
Ruaaswhsziudiuszozon - (300,000,000.00) - (300,000,000.00)
Suaadunnmsesnijug 1,500,000,000.00 940,000,000.00 1,500,000,000.00 940,000,000.00
RSuaaswtsziug (960,000,000.00) (350,000,000.00) (960,000,000.00) (350,000,000.00)
RAuaasearl¥elumsesntiug (3,369,999.99) (905,850.00) (3,369,999.99) (905,850.00)
Guaaiwlunonivse (19,892,227.25) (7,632,545.49) (19,999,350.53) (7,632,545.49)
Quaanelutuiluna (304,892,118.96) (135,885,904.79) (304,892,118.96) (135,885,904.79)
Ruaagns Wb h)dienssudanitu (244,824,047.69) (166,048,852.32) (245,931,170.97) (147,048,852.32)
ﬁuﬁmmzimmsgﬁﬂmmﬁuamﬁ'uﬁu(aﬂm)qw%? 60,186,042.34 4,664,133.42 59,826,522.17 4,612,822.41
QuaatazseMIisumtuaaduil 49,666,427.03 45,002,293.61 49,591,903.04 44.979,080.63
Ruaauazsemaiisumiduaailaeil 7 109,852,469.37 49,666,427.03 109,418,425.21 49,591,903.04
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Opinion

I have audited the consolidated and separate financial statements of LALIN PROPERTY
PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) and of LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC
COMPANY LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the consolidated and separate statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated and separate statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated and separate statement of changes in shareholders’ equity and the consolidated
and separate statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated and separate
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, the accompanying consolidated and separate financial statements present fairly,
in all material respects, the consolidated and separate financial position of the Group and the Company as
at 31 December 2018, and its consolidated and separate financial performance and its consolidated and
separate cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards

(TFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing (TSAs). My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidate and Separate Financial Statements section of my report. I am independent of the
Group and the Company in accordance with the Federation of Accounting Professions, Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit of the
consolidated and separate financial statements, and I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, were of most
significance in my audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of my audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements as
a whole, and in forming my opinion thereon, and I do not provide a separate opinion on this matter.

Valuation of Inventories

Inventories, mentioned in notes to the financial statements No.9, are significant to the financial
statements. They comprised of the real estate development project-awaiting-sale and development
project-in-construction. The Company’s method of inventories valuation is the lower of cost or net
realizable value as in the note to the financial statements No.6.5, which involved management judgement
to determining the net realizable value for the real estate development project-awaiting-sale and
development project-in-construction. My audit is concentrated on this area.

Therefore, my audit methods have included inquiring, obtaining an understanding and testing
the internal control system of the inventories value, and assessing to process of the management in
consideration the net realizable value of the real estate development project-awaiting-sale and
development project-in-construction. Assessment the appropriateness of the net realizable value with the
actual selling price after the end of the year and also the approved selling price and the related selling
expenses. The methods also included the assessment of the sufficiency of the information disclosed

under the financial reporting standards.

Other Matters

The consolidated and separate financial statements of LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC
COMPANY LIMITED and its subsidiaries and of LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
for the year ended 31 December 2017, were audited by another in the same firm as me who expressed an

unqualified opinion as report date 22 February 2018.

Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the

information included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated and separate financial

Annual Report 2018
Lalin Property Public Company Limited



statements and my auditor’s report thereon, which is expected to be made available to me after the date
of this auditor’s report.

My opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other
information and I do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, my
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated and separate financial statements or my knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When I read the annual report, if I conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, I am
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and request that the correction be

made.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and
separate financial statements in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards (TFRSs), and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the
consolidated and separate financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Group and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matter relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Group and the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group and the Company’s

the financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to

issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
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is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing (TSAs) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated and separate financial
statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing (TSAs), I exercise

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

® Jdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

® Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group and the Company’s internal control.

® Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

® Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group and the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my
auditor’s report by attention to the disclosures in the related consolidated and separate financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group and the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

® Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

® Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities

and business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. I
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am responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. I remain solely
responsible for my audit opinion.

I communicate with those charged with governance in various importance matters, including
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control if I identify during my audit.

I also provide those charged with governance with a statement that I have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, I determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. I describe these matters in my auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, | determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report because the adverse

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

information.
(Miss Wanraya Puttasatiean)
Certified Public Accountant Registration No. 4387
CWWP Company Limited
Bangkok,
27 February 2019
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LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Statements of Financial Position

As of December 31, 2018

Notes

Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

Separate Financial Statements

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Other Current Receivables
Inventories

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Investments Held as Available-for-Sale

Investment in Subsidiary

Land Held to Development

Property, Plant and Equipment

Other Intangible Assets - Net
Deferred Tax Assets

Other Non-Current Assets

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

Note to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Baht

109,852,469.37
67,276,659.46

8,527,923,513.47

Baht

49,666,427.03
82,812,521.56

8,478,636,281.96

Baht

109,418,425.21
67,276,659.46

8,530,923,513.47

Baht

49,591,903.04
82,812,521.56

8,481,636,281.96

8,705,052,642.30 8,611,115,230.55 8,707,618,598.14 8,614,040,706.56
426,748,453.50 31,267,283.06 426,012,375.02 30,537,912.28
- - 19,996,000.00 19,996,000.00
830,686,035.03 839,869,385.03 830,686,035.03 839,869,385.03

372,034,291.37
2.00
7,212,543.00

87,784,012.34

397,948,663.26
2.00
6,130,532.35

7,586,962.60

368,481,480.27
2.00
7,212,543.00

87,783,984.98

394,395,852.16
2.00
6,130,532.35

7,586,935.24

1,724,465,337.24

1,282,802,828.30

1,740,172,420.30

1,298,516,619.06

10,429,517,979.54

9,893,918,058.85

10,447,791,018.44

9,912,557,325.62




LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Statements of Financial Position

As of December 31, 2018

Consolidated Financial Statements

Separate Financial Statements

Notes 31 December 2018 31 December 2017 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Overdrafts and Short-Term Borrowings from
Financial Institutions 17 19,415,326.57 476,072,188.06 19,415,326.57 476,072,188.06
Trade and Other Current Payables 18 386,277,909.62 344,990,455.49 386,539,879.97 344,993,450.44
Current Portion of Debenture 20 799,803,120.25 959,628,760.26 799,803,120.25 959,628,760.26
Current Portion of Liabilities under Finance
Lease Agreements - 12,840.00 - 12,840.00
Accrued Income Taxes 74,890,051.91 80,482,373.04 74,857,268.26 79,801,734.65
Estimate Short-Term of Liabilities 19 540,147,615.39 606,166,953.65 540,147,615.39 606,166,953.65
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,820,534,023.74 2,467,353,570.50 1,820,763,210.44 2,466,675,927.06
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-Term Borrowings from Subsidiary 323 - - 18,000,000.00 19,000,000.00
Debenture 20 2,436,535,059.34 1,738,642,355.82 2,436,535,059.34 1,738,642,355.82
Non-Current Provisions of Employee Benefits 21 35,979,904.30 30,569,814.30 35,979,904.30 30,569,814.30
Deferred Tax Liabilities 14 92,624.82 1,972.67 89,310.61 -
Estimate Long-Term of Liabilities 19 140,111,260.46 133,313,664.16 140,111,260.46 133,313,664.16

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Note to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

2,612,718,848.92

1,902,527,806.95

2,630,715,534.71

1,921,525,834.28

4,433,252,872.66

4,369,881,377.45

4,451,478,745.15

4,388,201,761.34

Annual Report 2018 201
Lalin Property Public Company Limited



LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Statements of Financial Position
As of December 31, 2018

Consolidated Financial Statements Separate Financial Statements
Notes 31 December 2018 31 December 2017 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Baht Baht Baht Baht
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share Capital 22
Authorized Share Capital
925,000,000 Ordinary Shares, at Baht 1.00 each 925,000,000.00 925,000,000.00 925,000,000.00 925,000,000.00
Issued and Paid-Up Share Capital
924,999,441 Ordinary Shares, at Baht 1.00 each 924,999,441.00 924,999,441.00 924,999,441.00 924,999,441.00
Shares Premium on Ordinary 499,215,526.94 499,215,526.94 499,215,526.94 499,215,526.94
Retained Earnings
Appropriated
Legal Reserve 23 92,500,000.00 92,500,000.00 92,500,000.00 92,500,000.00
Unappropriated 4,479,179,639.62 4,007,313,852.15 4,479,240,062.88 4,007,640,625.72
Other Components of Shareholders' Equity 370,499.32 7,861.31 357,242.47 (29.38)
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 5,996,265,106.88 5,524,036,681.40 5,996,312,273.29 5,524,355,564.28
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 10,429,517,979.54 9,893,918,058.85 10,447,791,018.44 9,912,557,325.62

Note to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Statements Of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Consolidated Financial Statements

Separate Financial Statements

Notes 31 December 2018 31 December 2017 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Baht Baht Baht Baht
Revenue from Sale 4,082,064,216.00 3,589,195,622.00 4,082,064,216.00 3,589,195,622.00
Cost of Sales (2,464,197,011.86) (2,159,260,137.07) (2,464,197,011.86) (2,159,260,137.07)
GROSS PROFIT 1,617,867,204.14 1,429,935,484.93 1,617,867,204.14 1,429,935,484.93
Other Incomes 16,590,979.91 9,720,187.67 16,589,856.31 9,152,952.13
Specific Business Tax and Transfer Fee (156,978,269.00) (157,518,870.50) (156,978,269.00) (157,518,870.50)
Distribution Costs (275,246,385.40) (220,136,880.20) (275,246,385.40) (220,136,880.20)
Administrative Expenses (207,119,318.95) (191,951,223.19) (207,083,189.74) (191,872,503.19)
Finance Costs (22,713,627.95) (16,909,970.20) (23,081,573.13) (16,909,970.20)
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 972,400,582.75 853,138,728.51 972,067,643.18 852,650,212.97
Income Tax (Expenses) Revenue 26.1 (195,250,710.37) (172,306,851.23) (195,184,121.11) (171,626,205.78)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 777,149,872.38 680,831,877.28 776,883,522.07 681,024,007.19
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (EXPENSE) 26.2
Items that will be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring Investments Held as
Available-for-Sale 362,638.01 (135,214.39) 357,271.85 (200.17)
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring of Employee Defined
Benefit Plans (35,684.00) 11,010,179.09 (35,684.00) 11,010,179.09
Total Other Comprehensive Income (Expense) for the Year - Net of Tax 326,954.01 10,874,964.70 321,587.85 11,009,978.92
Total Comprehensive Income (Expense) for the Year - Net of Tax 777,476,826.39 691,706,841.98 777,205,109.92 692,033,986.11
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE (BAHT) 28 0.84 0.74 0.84 0.74

Note to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Statements Of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes 31 December 2018

31 December 2017

Separate Financial Statements

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit Before IncomeTax
Adjustment to Reconcile Profit Before Income Tax with
Cash Provided (Used) from Operating

Depreciation
Gain on Sale of Investments Held as Available-for-Sale
Loss on Written-off of Property, Plant and Equipment
Gain from Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment
Gain from Disposal of Land Held to Development
Estimated of Liabilities (Reversal)
Employee Benefit Expenses
Reversal for Allowance on Advances Payment
Witten-off of Accrued Expenses as Other Income
Interest Income
Interest Expenses

Profit from Operating Before Changes in

Operating Assets and Liabilities

(Increase) Decrease in Operation Assets
Other Current Receivables
Inventories
Other Non-Current Assets

Increase (Decrease) in Operation Liabilities
Trade and Other Current Payables
Non-Current Provisions of Employee Benefits

Cash Received (Paid) from Operating Activites
Cash Paid for Interest Expenses Recorded as Cost of Inventories
Cash Received from Interest Income
Cash Payment form Income Tax

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Baht

972,400,582.75

61,155,474.47
(1,027,872.93)

17,465.63

(59,221,741.96)
5,898,485.00
(14,812.24)
(7,140,451.84)
(214,995.38)

21,551,624.45

Baht

853,138,728.51

56,771,914.62
(793,465.12)
1,256,923.10

(2,919,991.00)

112,220,661.12

5,643,932.88

(162,848.41)

16,899,559.25

Baht

972,067,643.18

61,155,474.47
(1,027,872.93)

17,465.63

(59,221,741.96)
5,898,485.00
(14,812.24)
(7,140,451.84)
(213,871.75)

21,919,569.63

Baht

852,650,212.97

56,771,914.62
(433,957.70)

1,256,923.10
(2,919,991.00)
(53,388.90)

112,220,661.12

5,643,932.88

(162,142.34)

16,909,970.20

993,403,757.95

15,550,674.34
605,378,796.29

(6,747,049.74)

46,412,226.82

(533,000.00)

1,042,055,414.95

459,983.22
62,830,278.48

2,128,639.40

31,670,908.63

993,439,887.19

15,550,674.34
605,378,796.29

(6,747,049.74)

46,410,380.32

(533,000.00)

1,041,884,134.95

573,955.86
59,830,278.48

2,128,666.76

31,671,376.63

1,653,465,405.66
(79,000,653.62)
214,995.38

(201,916,128.50)

1,139,145,224.68
(95,468,247.37)
162,848.41

(144,185,562.76)

1,653,499,688.40
(79,000,653.62)
213,871.75

(201,201,684.50)

1,136,088,412.68
(95,468,247.37)
162,142.34

(144,185,555.70)

1,372,763,618.92

899,654,262.96

1,373,511,222.03

896,596,751.95

Note to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Statements Of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Consolidated Financial Statements

Separate Financial Statements

Notes 31 December 2018 31 December 2017 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Baht Baht Baht Baht
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash Paid for Purchase of Investments Held as Available-for-Sale (1,885,000,000.00) (681,300,000.00) (1,885,000,000.00) (675,000,000.00)
Cash Received from Sale of Investments Held as Available-for-Sale 1,491,000,000.00 670,900,540.57 1,491,000,000.00 645,000,540.57
Cash Paid for Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (37,532,426.89) (45,312,917.95) (37,532,426.89) (41,760,106.85)
Cash Received from Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment - 3,826,414.06 - 3,826,414.06
Cash Paid for Land Held to Development (561,571,102.00) (675,855,313.90) (561,571,102.00) (676,408,125.00)
Cash Received from Sale of Land Held to Development - - - 606,200.00
Cash Paid on Deposit for Land (74,650,000.00) (1,200,000.00) (74,650,000.00) (1,200,000.00)
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (1,067,753,528.89) (728,941,277.22) (1,067,753,528.89) (744,935,077.22)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase (Decrease) in Overdrafts 13,343,138.51 (11,609,144.04) 13,343,138.51 (11,609,144.04)
Cash Received from Short-Term Borrowings from Financial Institutions 760,000,000.00 1,160,000,000.00 760,000,000.00 1,160,000,000.00
Cash Paid for Short-Term Borrowings from Financial Institutions (1,230,000,000.00) (1,460,000,000.00) (1,230,000,000.00) (1,460,000,000.00)
Cash Paid for Liabilities under Finance Lease Agreements (12,840.00) (15,408.00) (12,840.00) (15,408.00)
Cash Received from Long-Term Borrowings from Subsidiary - - - 19,000,000.00
Cash Paid for Long-Term Borrowings from Subsidiary - - (1,000,000.00) -
Cash Paid for Long-Term Borrowings - (300,000,000.00) - (300,000,000.00)
Cash Received from Issuance of Debenture 1,500,000,000.00 940,000,000.00 1,500,000,000.00 940,000,000.00
Cash Paid for Settle of Debenture (960,000,000.00) (350,000,000.00) (960,000,000.00) (350,000,000.00)
Cash Paid for Debenture Issued Expenses (3,369,999.99) (905,850.00) (3,369,999.99) (905,850.00)
Cash Paid for Interest Expenses (19,892,227.25) (7,632,545.49) (19,999,350.53) (7,632,545.49)
Cash Paid for Dividends (304,892,118.96) (135,885,904.79) (304,892,118.96) (135,885,904.79)
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES (244,824,047.69) (166,048,852.32) (245,931,170.97) (147,048,852.32)
NET CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS INCREASE (DECREASE) 60,186,042.34 4,664,133.42 59,826,522.17 4,612,822.41
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 49,666,427.03 45,002,293.61 49,591,903.04 44,979,080.63
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ENDING OF THE YEAR 7 109,852,469.37 49,666,427.03 109,418,425.21 49,591,903.04

Note to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2017

1. General Information
The Company was registered under the Civil and Commercial Code as a corporate entity
on 8 November 1988, registration number 8781/2531 and convert to The Public Company Limited
held on 3 September 2002, new registration number 0107545000233. It is registered office located
at 222/2 Srinakharin Road, Huamark, Bangkapi, Bangkok, Thailand. The Company’s major
shareholder is Chakarakul family and Watcharakawong family in 35.57% and 34.24%, repectively.

The Company is principally engaged in property development.

2. Basisin Preparation of Financial Statements

2.1 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting
Standards including related interpretations and guidelines promulgated by the Federation of
Accounting Professions, applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and The Stock Exchange of Thailand.

2.2 The financial statements were presented in compliance with the notification of Department of
Business Development relating to determination of abbreviated items in the financial
statements.

2.3 In order to prepare the financial statements to comply with Thai Financial Reporting
Standards, the management of the Company has to make some estimates and assumptions
which may have an effect on the amount shown for revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities
and also on the disclosures concerning to assets and contingent liabilities, therefore the actual
result may differ from the estimated amount.

2.4 The financial report in Thai language is the official statutory financial report of the Company.
The financial report in English language has been translated from the Thai language financial

report.
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Basis in Preparation of the Consolidation Financial Statement

3.1 In preparation of the consolidated financial statements, the Company will only take its
subsidiary which are under the control of LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY
LIMITED into account, after having eliminated the remaining balances and transactions

among themselves, with the percentage of shareholdings in subsidiary as follows:

Percentage of Percentage of
Shareholdings Shareholdings
As at 31 December As at 31 December
Company’s Name Type of Business
2017 2016
% %
Prosper Property Co., Ltd. Property development 99.98 99.98

3.2 The accounting period of the subsidiary is end on the same date as LALIN PROPERTY
PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED.

3.3 In preparation of the consolidated financial statements, significant inter-assets and liabilities
and inter-transactions were already eliminated.

3.4 Accounting policy for subsidiary for the same type of transactions will utilize the same policy
as the Company.

3.5 In preparation of the consolidated financial statements, the Company is treated shareholding at
99.98% of the subsidiaries, as holding of 100%, according to the consolidate financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company transferred non-controlling
interests to retained earnings and other components of the shareholders’ equity in fully

amount.

Applied New and Revised Financial Reporting Standards

The Company has applied the accounting standards, financial reporting standards, accounting
standard interpretations, financial reporting standard interpretations and new and revised accounting
guidances, which are effective for the accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with no

effect on the current financial report.
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New and Revised Financial Reporting Standards Not Yet Effective

Accounting standards, financial reporting standards, accounting standard interpretations, financial

reporting standard interpretations and new and revised accounting guidances, which are not yet

effective for the current accounting periods that the Company has not early adopted, are as follows:

Effective for the accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2019

TAS 1 (revised 2018)
TAS 2 (revised 2018)
TAS 7 (revised 2018)
TAS 8 (revised 2018)
TAS 10 (revised 2018)
TAS 12 (revised 2018)
TAS 16 (revised 2018)
TAS 17 (revised 2018)
TAS 19 (revised 2018)

TAS 20 (revised 2018)

TAS 21 (revised 2018)
TAS 23 (revised 2018)
TAS 24 (revised 2018)
TAS 26 (revised 2018)
TAS 27 (revised 2018)
TAS 28 (revised 2018)
TAS 29 (revised 2018)
TAS 33 (revised 2018)
TAS 34 (revised 2018)
TAS 36 (revised 2018)
TAS 37 (revised 2018)
TAS 38 (revised 2018)

TAS 40 (revised 2018)

Presentation of Financial Statements

Inventories

Statement of Cash Flows

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
Events after the Reporting Period

Income Taxes

Property, Plant and Equipment

Leases

Employee Benefits

Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government
Assistance

The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
Borrowing Costs

Related Party Disclosures

Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans
Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies
Earnings per Share

Interim Financial Reporting

Impairment of Assets

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Intangible Assets

Investment Property
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TAS 41 (revised 2018)
TFRS 1

TFRS 2 (revised 2018)
TFRS 3 (revised 2018)
TFRS 5 (revised 2018)
TFRS 6 (revised 2018)
TFRS 8 (revised 2018)
TFRS 10 (revised 2018)
TFRS 11 (revised 2018)
TFRS 12 (revised 2018)
TFRS 13 (revised 2018)
TFRS 15

TSIC 10 (revised 2018)
TSIC 15 (revised 2018)

TSIC 25 (revised 2018)

TSIC 27 (revised 2018)

TSIC 29 (revised 2018)

TSIC 32 (revised 2018)

TFRIC 1 (revised 2018)

TFRIC 4 (revised 2018)

TFRIC 5 (revised 2018)

TFRIC 7 (revised 2018)

TFRIC 10 (revised 2018)

TFRIC 12 (revised 2018)

TFRIC 14 (revised 2018)

TFRIC 17 (revised 2018)
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Agriculture

First — Time Adoption of Financial Reporting Standards

Share-based Payment

Business Combinations

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

Operating Segments

Consolidated Financial Statements

Joint Arrangements

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Fair Value Measurement

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Government Assistance —No Specific Relation to Operating Activities
Operating Leases —Incentives

Income Taxes— Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity or its
Shareholders

Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of
a Lease

Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures

Intangible Assets — Web Site Costs

Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and Similar
Liabilities

Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease

Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, Restoration and
Environmental Rehabilitation Funds

Applying the Restatement Approach under TAS 29 (revised 2018)
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

Service Concession Arrangements

TAS 19 (revised 2018) — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners



TFRIC 20 (revised 2018) Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine

TFRIC 21 (revised 2018) Levies

Effective for the accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

TAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation

TFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

TFRS 9 Financial Instruments

TFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

TFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments

The management of the Company believes that the above financial reporting standards will not

have any significant impact on the financial report when they are applied.

6. Significant Accounting Policies
6.1 Measurements bases used in the Preparation of Financial Statements
Measurement bases used in the preparation of financial statements are historical cost
measurement basis and combination of variety measurement bases used. Some assets and
liabilities that use other measurement bases have been disclosed the measurement bases used in the
particular accounting policies.
6.2 Financial Instruments
Financial assets which recognized in the statement of financial position include cash and
cash equivalents, investments and trade and other current receivables. Financial liabilities which
recognized in the statement of financial position include trade and other current payables and
liabilities under financial lease agreements. The specific accounting policies for each item are
disclosed in the respective accounting policies.
6.3 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include bank deposit in type of current accounts, savings
accounts, and 3 months fixed accounts without guarantee obligation.
6.4 Other Current Receivables
Other Current receivables are stated at net realizable value.

6.5 Inventories
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6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

Inventory consisted of cost of real estate development is reflected according to the cost
price or net realizable value whichever is lower. Cost price is composed of cost of land
acquisition, land development, project construction cost and public utility system. and direct

other expenses.

Available-for-Sale Investments

Available-for-Sale investments which is investments in marketable securities that the
Company classified as available-for-sale investments are stated at the fair value. The fair value
of unit trust is the price announced from the fund as at the date of the statement of financial
position. The Company recognized the change of value as separate caption in shareholders’
equity and will be recognized in profit or loss when the Company has disposed such
investments or the investments is impaired.
Investments in subsidiary according to the separate financial statements are recorded in cost
method deducted by allowance for impairment of investments (if any).
Land Held to Development

Land held for development means the land the Company aims to hold for the future benefit
and recorded as non-current asset by reflecting according to the cost price which may adjust by
allowance for asset impairment. The cost price is composed by land cost and other related expense
so as to acquire the land.
Property, Plant and Equipment

Land are stated at cost on date the transaction occur, plant and equipment are stated at cost
on date the transaction occur less accumulated depreciation and accumulated loss on impairment

(if any). Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis on their estimated useful life as follows:

Land Improvements 20 Years
Buildings 20 Years
Buildings-Clubhouses and Swimming Pool 5 Years
Office Equipment 3and 5 Years
Office Furniture 5 Years
Vehicles S5and 10 Years

For central utility, clubhouses buildings, garden and playgrounds which were built
before the Land Allotment Act B.E. 2000 was enforceable, the Company will record as part of

property, plant and equipment. For central utility, clubhouses buildings, garden and
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playgrounds which were built after the Land Allotment Act B.E. 2000 was enforceable and the
Company intended as public service, the Company will record as part of inventory and will
amortize as cost of sales in proportion to saleable areas of each project.

Repair and maintenance is recognized as expense in profit or loss during the period that
it is incurred. Replacement cost is recognized as a part of carrying amount of assets when it is
probable that the Company will obtain the future economic benefits from that transaction and
able to measure the cost of that transaction reliably. Replacement cost will be depreciated by
the basis of estimated useful life.

Gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is computed from
discrepancy between net proceed and carrying amount and recognized as revenue or expense in
the profit or loss when incurred.

6.10 Intangible Assets and Amortization
Computer Software Licenses

Acquired specific computer software licenses are recognized as assets, are stated at
initial cost deducted by accumulated amortization and accumulated loss on impairment (if any).
Amortization is calculated by straight-line method over the estimated useful life for the period
of 5 years.

6.11 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production or
development of each project an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale. The Company will record to deferred interest and present as a
part of inventories of each project. The Company will cease the record when the project is
complete for sale or faced with problem of delay while the proceeding of further development
incurs. For the interest incurred from loan to acquire land held to development but not yet
developed. The Company will record such interest expense as expense in the profit or loss.

6.12 Impairment of Assets

The carrying amounts of assets are assessed at the end of each reporting period to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the
assets’ recoverable amounts are estimated of asset or its cash-generating unit to which the asset
is included in the recognition of an impairment loss when the recoverable amount less than the
carrying amount of the asset or its cash generating unit.

Impairment loss is recognized as expenses in profit or loss immediately.
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Calculation of Recoverable Amount

- The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less cost to sell of asset or
the cash- generating unit or its value in use.

- In assessing value in use of an asset by estimating the present value of future cash flows
generated by the asset, discounted using a pre-tax discount rate which reflects current

market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

- The asset that does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

Reversals of Impairment Loss

- The loss on impairment of assets recognized in the prior period will be reversed if the
estimation for indicated net realizable value changes since the last impairment loss was
recognized. The carrying amount of the asset not exceed just to be the carrying amount that
would have been (net of accumulated depreciation or amortization), if no impairment loss
had been recognized.

- Reversals of impairment loss will be recognized as income in profit or loss immediately.

6.13 Employees Benefit

Short-term Employee Benefits
- The Group is recognized salary, wage, bonus and social security fund are expenses on the
date that the transaction occur.

Post-employment Benefits
- Defined Contribution Plan

The Company operates a provident fund which is funded by payments from employees
and by the Company. The assets for which are held in a separate trust fund. Contributions to the
provident fund are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
- Defined Benefit Plan

The Company has the employee benefit obligation in case of retirement or termination
under the labor law by an actuary to calculate on an actuarial technique the said employee benefit
obligation. The said employee benefit obligation is discounted using the projected unit credit

method and presents as non-current liabilities. Hereby, the costs associated with employee
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benefits will be recognized as expense in profit or loss so as to spread the cost over the
employment period. All actuarial gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income.
6.14 Provision
The Company recognized provision when it is probable that there is a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events and an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. The reimbursement is
recognized as a separate asset when, and only when, the reimbursement is virtually certain after

the provision is settled.

6.15 Leases
- The Company is the lessee

Long-term leases which substantially transferred all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalized at the inception of the lease at the
lower of the fair value of the leased asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Each lease payment is allocated to the principal and to the finance charges so as to achieve a
constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The outstanding lease obligations less finance
charges are recorded as liabilities. The assets acquired under finance leases will be depreciated
throughout the estimated useful life of that leased asset. However, if there is uncertainty in the
right of ownership when the contract is terminated, depreciation will be calculated on the
estimated useful life of leased assets or the lease term whichever the period is lower.

Long-term leases not transferring a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating
leases (net of any incentives received from the lesser) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease term has expired, any payment
required to be made to the lesser such as of penalty will be recognized as expense in the period
that the termination incurs.

6.16 Recognition of Revenues

The Company recognizes the whole revenue from the sale of real estate as revenue

when the sellers have transferred the material risk and benefit in such real estate to purchasers.

When there is the arrangement of the contract of purchase and sell which is enforceable
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according to the law, the first down payment and installment fee which received but not yet
counted to recognize as revenue will be recorded as deposit receipt from the sale of real estate.
Interest income is recognized on the effective interest rate.
6.17 Recognition of Cost of Sales
The Company are recognized cost of sales of land and houses and condominium, the
Company allocates cost of the entire development anticipated to incur of each project
(considering actual cost) to land and house sold in proportion to saleable areas, of each project
and recognized as cost of sales in proportion of saleable areas of each project.
6.18 Recognition of Expenses

Expenses are recognized on accrual basis.

6.19 Income Tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax Income tax expense is
recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that related to items recognized in other
comprehensive income or recognized directly in equity which will recognize in other
comprehensive income or recognized directly in equity as same as that items.

Current Tax

Current tax is provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to the
taxation authorities, based on taxable profits determined in accordance with tax legislation,
using the tax rates enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts at the end of each reporting period, using the tax rates
enacted at the end of reporting period.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the
extent that the related tax benefit will be realized.

6.20 Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares held by outside shareholders outstanding during the year.

There is no calculation of the fully diluted earnings per share since it has no ordinary share

equivalents.
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6.21 Appropriation of Retained Earnings

The appropriation of retained earnings is attributable to the Public Company Act B.E.
2535. The Company will appropriate the retained earnings when it is approved at the board of
directors meeting which will be reported to the shareholders’ meeting.

6.22 Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Company applies a
quoted market price in an active market to measure the assets and liabilities that are required to be
measured at fair value by relevant financial reporting standards. Except in case of no active market
of an identical asset or liability or when a quoted market price is not available, the Company will
measure fair value using valuation technique that are appropriate in the circumstances and
maximizes the use of relevant observable inputs related to assets and liabilities that are required to
be measured at fair value.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy into three levels based on categories of
input to be used in fair value measurement as follows:

Level 1 in put are quoted prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities that the
Grooup can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 in put are other observable inputs either directly or indirectly, for the assets or
liabilities other than quoted price included within Level 1 inputs.

Level 3 in put are unobservable inputs for the assets and liabilities.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group will determine the necessary of any transfers
between levels within the fair value hierarchy for assets and liabilities held at the end of the
reporting period that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

6.23 Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates

In order to prepare the financial statements to comply with financial reporting
standards, the Company’s management had to make some judgment and estimates which may
have an effect on the amount shown in financial statements and notes to financial statements,
therefore the actual result may differ from the estimated amount. Significant estimates and
provisions are as follows:

Lease
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In determining whether a lease is to be classified as an operating lease or finance lease,
the management is required to use judgment regarding whether significant risk and rewards of
ownership of the leased asset have been transferred, taking into consideration terms and
conditions of the arrangement.

Allowance for Doubtful Debts — Trade Account Receivables

In determining an allowance for doubtful debts, the management needs to make
judgment and estimates based upon, among other things, past collection history, aging profile
of outstanding debts and the prevailing economic condition.

Project Development Costs Estimation

In calculating cost of land and houses sold and residential condominium units, the
Company has to estimate all project development costs, comprising land and land improvement
costs, design and construction costs, public utility costs, borrowing costs and other related
costs. The management has estimated these costs based on the business experience and revised
the estimations on a periodical basis or when the actual costs incurred significantly vary from
the estimated costs.

Property, Plant and Equipment, Land Held to Development and Depreciation

In determining depreciation of plant and equipment, the management is required to
make estimated useful lives and residual values of the Company’s plant and equipment and to
review estimated useful lives and residual values when there are any changes.

In addition, the management is required to review property, plant and equipment and
land held to development for impairment on a periodical basis and record impairment losses in
the period when it is determined that their recoverable amount is lower than the carrying
amount. This requires judgments regarding forecast of future revenues and expenses relating to
the assets subject to the review.

Intangible Assets and Amortization

Intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives, and are subject to
impairment if there is an indication they may be impaired.
Deferred Tax Assets

The management has to use judgment in the consideration to recognize deferred tax
assets by estimating the future taxable profit in each period and assess the probable that the
Company will have sufficient future taxable profit which can be utilized.

Post-Employment Benefits

Annual Report 2018
Lalin Property Public Company Limited



The obligation under defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuations.
Inherent within these calculations are assumptions as to discount rates, future salary increases,
turnover rate, mortality rate and other demographic factors. In determining the appropriate
discount rate, the management selects an interest rate that reflects the current economic
situation, and the mortality rate from mortality rate table which is publicized in Thailand.
Actual post-retirement costs may ultimately differ from these estimates.

Provision for Maintenance of Project Utilities
The Company estimates the contribution to the housing juristic persons using the rate

specified by the regulator and the budgeted public utilities costs as a basis for the calculation.

7. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Consist of:
Consolidated Separate
Financial Statements Financial Statements

As at As at As at As at
31 December 2018 31 December 2017 31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Baht Baht Baht Baht
Cash 3,902,494.31 3,958,081.69 3,900,434.31 3,955,049.69
Current Accounts Deposit 1,170,016.29 5,538,623.89 1,170,016.29 5,538,623.89
Savings Accounts Deposit 9,629,323.77 3,156,610.45 9,197,339.61 3,085,118.46
Cheque on Hand 95,150,635.00 37,013,111.00 95,150,635.00 37,013,111.00
Total 109,852,469.37 49,666,427.03 109,418,425.21 49,591,903.04

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the whole amount of cheque on hand were cashier cheque

which the Company is able to draw the money in full amount after the reporting date.

8. Other Current Receivables

Consist of:

Consolidated/ Separate Financial Statements
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Prepaid Expenses
Advance Payment
Advance Payment for Goods
Others
Total
Less Allowance for Doubtful Debts

Net

9. Inventories

Consist of:

Finished Goods
Demonstration Land and
Houses for Sale
Land and Houses
Development in Progress
Land
Work in Construction
Deferred Borrowing Costs
Deferred Land Development Cost
Deferred Utilities

Work in Process — Furniture

As at

31 December 2018

Baht
46,052,802.27
11,479,008.37

As at

31 December 2017

Baht
47,289,920.47

12,059,360.08

8,245,041.07 21,650,288.99
1,499,807.75 1,827,764.26
67,276,659.46 82,827,333.80
- (14,812.24)
67,276,659.46 82,812,521.56

Consolidated Financial Statements

As at

31 December 2018

Baht

106,686,820.47

204,515,095.85

2,066,471,270.08
2,819,981,010.08
367,323,939.70
542,996,027.82
2,415,968,063.06

3,981,286.41

As at

31 December 2017

Baht

125,873,286.20

223,049,285.77

1,949,209,030.77
2,704,901,800.77
340,630,850.66
571,653,659.48
2,558,932,257.67

4,386,110.64

Separate Financial Statements

As at
31 December 2018

Baht

106,686,820.47

204,515,095.85

2,066,471,270.08
2,819,981,010.08
367,323,939.70
545,996,027.82
2,415,968,063.06

3,981,286.41

As at

31 December 2017

Baht

125,873,286.20

223,049,285.77

1,949,209,030.77
2,704,901,800.77
340,630,850.66
574,653,659.48
2,558,932,257.67

4,386,110.64

Total

8,527,923,513.47

8,478,636,281.96

8,530,923,513.47

8,481,636,281.96
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As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Company had mortgaged land and construction, the

carrying amount in amount of Baht 3,757.79 million and in amount of Baht 4,002.61 million respectively,

as collateral against credit from financial institution as in Note 16.

For the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Company has capitalized the borrowing

costs as development in progress in amount of Baht 79.00 million and Baht 95.47 million, respectively,

which it is the borrowing costs that are incurred from the borrowing for the project development.

10. Investments Held as Available-for-Sale

Consist of:

Bualuang Thanatavee Open Fund — Cost

Add Unrealized Gain on Remeasuring

Bualuang Thanatavee Open Fund — Fair Value

Consolidated Financial Statements

As at

31 December 2018

As at

31 December 2017

Separate Financial Statements

As at

31 December 2018

As at

31 December 2017

Baht Baht Baht Baht
426,285,329.36 31,257,456.43 425,565,821.94 30,537,949.01

463,124.14 9,826.63 446,553.08 (36.73)
426,748,453.50 31,267,283.06 426,012,375.02 30,537,912.28

For the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, investments held as available-for-sale has

movement as follows:

Beginning Carrying Amount
Purchase During the Year
Disposal During the Year
Changes in Fair Value
Recognized in Profit for the Year
Recognized in Other Comprehensive
Income (Expense)

Ending Carrying Amount

Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended
31 December 2018
Baht

31,267,283.06
1,885,000,000.00

(1,491,000,000.00)

1,027,872.93

453,297.51

For the year ended
31 December 2017
Baht
20,243,376.51
681,300,000.00

(670,900,540.57)

793,465.12

(169,018.00)

Separate Financial Statements

For the year ended
31 December 2018
Baht

30,537,912.28
1,885,000,000.00

(1,491,000,000.00)

1,027,872.93

446,589.81

For the year ended
31 December 2017
Baht

104,745.37
675,000,000.00

(645,000,540.57)

433,957.70

(250.22)

426,748,453.50

31,267,283.06

426,012,375.02

30,537,912.28

The fair value measurement of investments held as available-for-sale which are investments

in opened-end mutual fund using the net asset value that disseminated by the fund as at the date of

statement of financial position which are Level 1 inputs.
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11. Investments in Subsidiary

Consist of:
Name of Entities ~ Nature of business Paid-up
Share Capital
Baht
Prosper Property Property development
Co., Ltd. for sales 20,000,000.00

12. Land Held to Development

Separate Financial Statements

Investment Cost Method Dividend Income

ratio As at As at For the year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017
% Baht Baht Baht Baht

99.98 19,996,000.00 19,996,000.00 - -

For the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, Land held to development has movement as

follows:

Beginning Balance
Purchase during the year
Sale during the year
Transfer during the year

Ending Balance
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Consolidated/ Separate Financial Statements

As at As at
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Baht Baht
839,869,385.03 722,070,692.30
561,571,102.00 676,408,125.00

- (552,811.10)
(570,754,452.00) (558,056,621.17)

830,686,035.03 839,869,385.03
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As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Company had mortgaged land and building of

head office, the carrying amount in amount of Baht 41.33 million equally, as collateral against

credit from financial institutions as in Note 16.

14. Deferred Income Tax

Deferred income taxes are calculated in full on temporary differences, using the liability

method and applying a principal tax rate of 20%. The deferred taxation related to the temporary

differences between the carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities of the Company

are summarised belows:

As at

31 December 2017

Consolidated Financial Statements

Recognized
in Profit (Loss)

for the year

Recognized
in Other

Comprehensive

Income (Expense)

As at
31 December 2018

Baht Baht Baht Baht
Deferred Tax Assets
Inventories 16,562.12 - - 16,562.12
Investments Held as Available-
for-Sale 7.35 - (7.35) -
Non- Current Provisions of
Employee Benefit 6,113,962.88 1,073,097.00 8,921.00 7,195,980.88
Total 6,130,532.35 1,073,097.00 8,913.65 7,212,543.00
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Investments Held as Available-
for-Sale (1,972.67) - (90,652.15) (92,624.82)
Total (1,972.67) - (90,652.15) (92,624.82)
Net 6,128,559.68 1,073,097.00 (81,738.50) 7,119,918.18
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As at
31 December 2016

Baht

Deferred Tax Assets

Inventories 16,562.12
Investments Held as Available-

for-Sale -

Non- Current Provisions of

Consolidated Financial Statements

Recognized
in Profit (Loss)

for the year

Baht

Recognized
in Other
Comprehensive
Income (Expense)

Baht

7.35

As at

31 December 2017

Baht

16,562.12

7.35

Employee Benefit 7,737,721.06 1,128,786.58 (2,752,544.76) 6,113,962.88
Total 7,754,283.18 1,128,786.58 (2,752,537.41) 6,130,532.35
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Investments Held as Available-

for-Sale (35,768.93) - 33,796.26 (1,972.67)
Total (35,768.93) - 33,796.26 (1,972.67)
Net 7,718,514.25 1,128,786.58 (2,718,741.15) 6,128,559.68

Separate Financial Statements
As at Recognized Recognized As at
31 December 2017 in Profit (Loss) in Other 31 December 2018
for the year Comprehensive
Income (Expense)
Baht Baht Baht Baht
Deferred Tax Assets

Inventories 16,562.12 - - 16,562.12
Investments Held as Available-

for-Sale 7.35 - (7.35) -
Non- Current Provisions of

Employee Benefit 6,113,962.88 1,073,097.00 8,921.00 7,195,980.88
Total 6,130,532.35 1,073,097.00 8,913.65 7,212,543.00
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Investments Held as Available-

for-Sale - - (89,310.61) (89,310.61)
Total - - (89,310.61) (89,310.61)
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Net 6,130,532.35 1,073,097.00 (80,396.96) 7,123,232.39
Separate Financial Statements
As at Recognized Recognized As at
31 December 2016 in Profit (Loss) in Other 31 December 2017
for the year Comprehensive
Income (Expense)
Baht Baht Baht Baht
Deferred Tax Assets
Inventories 16,562.12 - - 16,562.12
Investments Held as Available-
for-Sale - - 7.35 7.35
Non- Current Provisions of
Employee Benefit 7,737,721.06 1,128,786.58 (2,752,544.76) 6,113,962.88
Total 7,754,283.18 1,128786.58 (2,752,537.41) 6,130,532.35
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Investments Held as Available-
for-Sale (42.70) - 42.70 -
Total (42.70) - 42.70 -
Net 7,754,240.48 1,128,786.58 (2,752,494.71) 6,130,532.35

15. Other Non-Current Assets

Consist of:
Consolidated Financial Statements Separate Financial Statements

As at As at As at As at
31 December 2018 31 December 2017 31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Baht Baht Baht Baht
Deposit 7,557,340.23 2,173,662.51 7,557,340.23 2,173,662.51
Deposit for Land 74,650,000.00 1,200,000.00 74,650,000.00 1,200,000.00
Electric Insurance 5,072,604.70 3,670,696.70 5,072,604.70 3,670,696.70
Plumbing Insurance 477,367.33 515,903.31 477,367.33 515,903.31
Phone Usage Rights 26,672.72 26,672.72 26,672.72 26,672.72

Withholding 27.36 27.36 - -

Total 87,784,012.34 7,586,962.60 87,783,984.98 7,586,935.24
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16. Credit Facility and Guarantee
As at 31 December 2018, the Company has credits in form of letter of guarantee in amount
of Baht 1,368.00 million, credits in form of the promissory note in amount of Baht 980.10 million,
credits in form of overdrafts in amount of Baht 85.00 million and credits in form of long-term
borrowings in amount of Baht 925.00 million, the Company had mortgaged land and construction

as in Note 9 and 13 as collateral.

As at 31 December 2017, the Company has credits in form of letter of guarantee in amount
of Baht 1,218.00 million, credits in form of the promissory note in amount of Baht 681.45 million,
credits in form of overdrafts in amount of Baht 85.00 million and credits in form of long-term
borrowings in amount of Baht 1,128.45 million, the Company had mortgaged land and construction

as in Note 9 and 13 as collateral.

17. Overdrafts and Short-Term Borrowings from Financial Institutions

Consist of:
Consolidated/Separate Financial Statements
As at As at
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Baht Baht
Overdrafts 19,415,326.57 6,072,188.06
Promissory Note - 20,000,000.00
Bill of Exchange - 450,000,000.00
Total 19,415,326.57 476,072,188.06

As at 31 December 2017, short-term borrowings from the financial institution in amount of
Baht 20.00 million as in form of promissory note which has maturity in 1 month carried the interest
rate of 5.00% per annum.

As at 31 December 2017, short-term borrowings from the financial institution in amount of
Baht 450.00 million, respectively as in form of bill of exchange which has maturity in 61-198 days

respectively, carried the interest rate of 2.05%-2.10% per annum.
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18. Trade and Other Current Payables

Consist of:

Trade Payables
Other Current Payables

Total

Consolidated Financial Statements

As at

31 December 2018

Baht
89,351,483.89

296,926,425.73

As at

31 December 2017

Baht
101,557,344.62

243,433,110.87

Separate Financial Statements

As at

31 December 2018

Baht
89,351,483.89

297,188,396.08

As at

31 December 2017

Baht
101,557,344.62

243,436,105.82

386,277,909.62

344,990,455.49

386,539,879.97

344,993,450.44

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, other current payables as follows:

Accrued Expenses
Accrued Interest
Retention Payable
Deferred Revenues
Cheque Payables
Dividend Payables
Others

Total

19. Provision of Liabilities

Consist of:

Consolidated Financial Statements

As at

31 December 2018

Baht
204,650,488.13
12,294,684.92
21,938,335.51
7,473,799.00
32,580,627.00
776,236.09

17,212,255.08

As at

31 December 2017

Baht
163,497,037.58
13,293,315.12
24,645,030.46
6,329,449.00
24,259,104.48
419,954.14

10,989,220.09

Separate Financial Statements

As at

31 December 2018

Baht
204,641,225.63
12,565,917.77
21,938,335.51
7,473,799.00
32,580,627.00
776,236.09

17,212,255.08

As at

31 December 2017

Baht
163,489,621.58
13,303,726.07
24,645,030.46
6,329,449.00
24,259,104.48
419,954.14

10,989,220.09

296,926,425.73

243,433,110.87

297,188,396.08

243,436,105.82

Consolidated/Separate Financial Statements

As at

31 December 2018

As at

31 December 2017
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20.

234

Baht Baht
Short-Term Provisions for

Construction Cost of Project Utilities 540,147,615.39 606,166,953.65

Long-Term Provisions for Maintenance of Project Utilities 140,111,260.46 133,313,664.16

Total 680,258,875.85 739,480,617.81

Long-term provisions for maintenance of project utilities are provisions for guarantee the
maintenance of project utilities according to the Land Allocation Act B.E. 2000 in the rate of 7% from

estimated construction cost of project utilities which the Company will settle such provision to housing

juristic person to spend in the maintenance of project utilities when the housing

established according to the Land Allocation Act B.E. 2000.

Juristic person has been

Debenture
Consist of:
Consolidated/ Separate
Financial Statements
As at As at
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Baht Baht

Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures No. 1/2015 - 500,000,000.00
Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures No. 2/2015 - 160,000,000.00
Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures No. 3/2015 - 300,000,000.00
Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures No. 1/2016 300,000,000.00 300,000,000.00
Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures No. 2/2016 200,000,000.00 200,000,000.00
Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures No. 3/2016 300,000,000.00 300,000,000.00
Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures No. 1/2017 500,000,000.00 500,000,000.00
Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures No. 2/2017 70,000,000.00 70,000,000.00
Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures No. 3/2017 370,000,000.00 370,000,000.00

Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures No. 1/2018 500,000,000.00 -

Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures No. 2/2018 100,000,000.00 -

Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures No. 3/2018 400,000,000.00 -

Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures No. 4/2018 500,000,000.00 -
Total 3,240,000,000.00 2,700,000,000.00
Less Deferred Debenture Issuance Expenses (3,661,820.41) (1,728,883.92)
Carrying Amount 3,236,338,179.59 2,698,271,116.08
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ess Current Portion (799,803,120.25) (959,628,760.26)

Net 2,436,535,059.34 1,738,642,355.82

For the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, Debenture has movement as follows:
Consolidated/Separate Financial Statements
For the year ended For the year ended

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Baht Baht
Beginning Balance 2,698,271,116.08 2,107,636,171.44
Issued Debenture During for the Period 1,500,000,000.0 940,000,000.00
Repayment During for the Period (960,000,000.00) (350,000,000.00)
Deferred Debenture Issuance Expenses (3,369,999.99) (905,850.00)
Amortization of Deferred Debenture Issuance Expenses 1,437,063.50 1,540,794.64
Ending Balance 3,236,338,179.59 2,698,271,116.08

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, debentures are classified by redemption maturity as

follows:

Consolidated/Separate Financial Statements

As at As at
31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Baht Baht
Less than 1 year 800,000,000.00 960,000,000.00
More than 1 year but less than 5 years 2,440,000,000.00 1,740,000,000.00
Total 3,240,000,000.00 2,700,000,000.00

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, totally debentures was unsubordinated secured and holder
name definable debentures. The maturity of debentures for 2 years to 3 years from issued date with
interest rate is 3.25 — 4.50% and 3.25 — 5.00% per annum respectively. The fair value in amount of Baht

3,248.87 million and Baht 2,710.69 million respectively, the Company has measured the fair value of
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debt instruments-held to maturity using the value that disseminate by The Thai Bond Market Association
as at the date of statement of financial position which are Level 2 inputs.
The Company have to maintain the debt to equity ratio not exceeding 2: 1 equally for two

the year.

21. Non-Current Provisions for Employee Benefits
Non-Current Provisions for Employee Benefits has detail as follows:
Consolidated/Separate Financial Statements
For the year ended For the year ended

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Baht Baht
Non-Current Provisions for Employee Benefits at
Beginning of Year 30,569,814.30 38,688,605.27
Included in Profit or Loss:
Current Service Cost 5,088,901.00 4,520,634.09
Interest Expenses 809,584.00 1,123,298.79
Included in Other Comprehensive Income:
Gain (Loss) on Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans
Financial Assumptions Changes - 3,914,931.00
Demographic Assumptions Changes - (5,186,221.00)
Experience Adjustments 44,605.00 (12,491,433.85)
Paid Employee Benefits During the Year (533,000.00) -
Non-Current Provisions for Employee
Benefits at End of Year 35,979,904.30 30,596,814.30

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the weighted average duration of the non-current

provisions for employee benefits is 9 years and 10 years respectively.

The key assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuation are summarized as

follows:
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Consolidated/ Separate Financial Statements

For the year ended For the year ended

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Discount rate 2.65% per annum 2.65% per annum
Average salary increase rate 6.00% - 7.00% per annum 6.00% - 7.00% per annum
Turnover rate 15.00 - 30.00% per annum 15.00 — 30.00% per annum
Retirement age 55 and 60 year 55 and 60 year

Sensitivity Analysis
Reasonably possible changes to each relevant actuarial assumption, holding other
assumptions constant, would have affected non-current provisions for employee benefit which are

summarized as follows:

Consolidated/ Separate Financial Statements

As at As at
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Baht Baht
Mortality rate
Rate increase 1.00% (411,780.00) (400,488.00)
Rate decrease 1.00% 376,031.00 365,196.00
Discount rate
Rate increase 1.00% (2,109,069.00) (1,881,760.00)
Rate decrease 1.00% 2,352,589.00 2,087,613.00
Average salary increase rate
Rate increase 1.00% 2,561,729.00 1,994,815.00
Rate decrease 1.00% (2,813,064.00) (2,169,851.00)
Turnover Rate
Rate increase 10.00% (978,728.00) (727,412.00)
Rate decrease 10.00% 821,313.00 612,247.00

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected

under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.
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22. Share Capital

Consist of:

Authorized Share Capital

Beginning Ordinary Shares

Less Unissued Authorized
Share

Add Issuing New Shares

Ending Ordinary Shares

Par Value

Baht

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

Issued and Paid-up Share Capital

Beginning Ordinary Shares
Add Issuing New Shares

Ending Ordinary Share

1.00
1.00

1.00

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Number of Share Amount
Share Baht
925,000,000 925,000,000.00
925,000,000 925,000,000.00
924,999,441 924,999,441.00
924,999,441 924,999,441.00

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Par Value

Baht

1.00

1.00
1.00

1.00

1.00
1.00

1.00

Number of Share

Share

925,000,000

(100,000,000)
100,000,000

Amount

Baht

925,000,000.00

(100,000,000.00)
100,000,000.00

925,000,000

925,000,000.00

825,000,000
99,999,441

825,000,000.00
99,999,441.00

924,999,441

924,999,441.00

On 26 April 2017, at the Shareholders’ meeting for the year 2017 have the significant

resolution as follows:

22.1 The resolution to approve the Company to decrease of the capital reduction in amount of Baht

100,000,000.00 from Baht 925,000,000.00 to Baht 825,000,000.00 after discount by cancelling

the Company’s unissued ordinary shares in amount of 100,000,000 shares at the par value of

Baht 1.00.

222  The resolution to approve the Company to increase of the company’s registered capital in

amount of Baht 100,000,000.00 by issuing newly ordinary shares in amount of 100,000,000

238 Annual Report 2018

Lalin Property Public Company Limited



shares at the par value of Baht 1.00. The registered capital will be changed Baht 825,000,000.00
to Baht 925,000,000.00 after the capital increase.
22.3 The resolution to approve the allocation of not exceeding 100,000,000 newly issued ordinary

shares at the par value of Baht 1.00 per share for support the stock dividend

23. Legal Reserve
In accordance with the Public Company Limited Act B.E. 2535, the Company is required
to appropriate at least 5% of its annual net profit after deduction of any deficit brought forward as a

legal reserve until the reserve reaches 10% of the authorized share capital.

24. Dividends Payment

24.1 In accordance with the Minute of the Board of Directors Meeting, held on 10 August 2018,
it had passed a resolution to pay a dividend of Baht 0.165 per share from the Company’s
performance in before half year (on 1 January 2018 to 30 June 2018) totaling Baht 152.62
million to be paid within on 7 September 2018.

24.2 In accordance with the Minute of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for 2018,
held on 25 April 2018, it had passed a resolution to approve the appropriation of profit for
2017 to pay dividend totaling of Baht 277.50 million which the Company had already paid
the interim dividend payment of Baht 0.135 per share, totaling of Baht 124.87 million on
8 September 2017, and will pay the final payment at Baht 0.0165 per share, totaling of Baht
152.63 million, will be paid on 11 May 2018.

24.3 In accordance with the Minute of the Board of Directors Meeting, held on 11 August 2017,
it had passed a resolution to pay a dividend of Baht 0.135 per share from the Company’s
performance in before half year (on 1 January 2017 to 30 June 2017) totaling Baht 124.87
million to be paid within on 8 September 2017.

244 In accordance with the Minute of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for 2017,
held on 26 April 2017, it had passed a resolution to approve the appropriation of profit for
2016 to pay dividend totaling of Baht 214.26 million which the Company had already paid
the interim dividend payment of Baht 0.125 per share, totaling of Baht 103.13 million on
14 September 2016, and will pay the final payment at Baht 0.0135 per share, totaling of
Baht 11.14 million, will be paid on 12 May 2017 and stock dividend will be paid in the

amount of not exceeding 100,000,000 newly issued ordinary shares at the ratio of 8.25
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25.

26.

240

existing ordinary shares to 1 newly issued ordinary share. The par value of the newly issued

ordinary share is Baht 1 per share, totaling Baht 100,000,000 or equivalent to Baht 0.1212

per share.

Capital Management

The objectives of the Company’s capital management are to maintain its abilities to

continue as a going concern and to maintain an appropriate capital structure.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the consolidated and separate financial statements

present debt to equity ratio as 0.74 : 1 and 0.79 : 1 equally for two the year.

Income Tax (Expense) Revenue

26.1 Income tax which is recognized in the profit for the year consist of:

Current tax
Income Tax (Expense) Revenue for
the Current year
Deferred tax
Deferred Income Tax (Expense) Revenue
Income Tax (Expense) Revenue with is

Recognized in Profit for the year

Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Bath Bath

(196,323,807.37) (173,435,637.83)

1,073,097.00 1,128,786.60

For the year ended

31 December 2018

Separate Financial Statements
For the year ended
31 December 2017

Bath Bath

(196,257,218.11) (172,754,992.36)

1,073,097.00 1,128,786.58

(195,250,710.37) (172,306,851.23)

(195,184,121.11) (171,626,205.78)

The differences between income tax (expense) revenue which were calculated from

accounting profit at the tax rate for year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, in 20%, equally,

can be presented as follows:

Profit before Income Tax

Income Tax (Expense) Revenue calculated

Annual Report 2018
Lalin Property Public Company Limited

Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended  For the year ended

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Separate Financial Statements
For the year ended For the year ended

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Baht Baht Baht Baht
972,400,582.75 853,138,728.51 972,067,643.18 852,650,212.97
(194,413,528.64) (170,530,042.59)



at the Tax Rate of 20% (194,480,116.55) (170,627,745.70)
Expenses that are not Deductible for Income

Tax (770,593.82) (1,096,163.19) (770,592.47) (1,096,163.19)
Tax Loss in Prior Year which is Unrecognized

as Deferred Tax Assets - (582,942.34) - -

Income Tax (Expense) Revenue which is

recognized in the profit for the year (195,250,710.37) (172,306,851.23) (195,184,121.11) (171,626,205.78)

26.2 Tax (Expense) Income which is recognized in other comprehensive income (expense)

consist of’

Consolidated Financial Statements

Amount Income Tax Net of Tax
Before Tax (Expense) Revenue
Baht Baht Baht
For the year ended 31 December 2018
Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring Investments Held as
Available-for-Sale 453,297.51 (90,659.50) 362,638.01
Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring of Employee Defined
Benefit Plans (44,605.00) 8,921.00 (35,684.00)
Total 408,692.51 (81,738.50) 326,954.01
For the year ended 31 December 2017
Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring Investments Held as
Available-for-Sale (169,018.00) 33,803.61 (135,214.39)
Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring of Employee Defined
Benefit Plans 13,762,723.85 (2,752,544.76) 11,010,179.09
Total 13,593,705.85 (2,718,741.15) 10,874,964.70

Separate Financial Statements
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Amount Income Tax Net of Tax

Before Tax (Expense) Revenue
Baht Baht Baht
For the year ended 31 December 2018
Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring Investments Held as
Available-for-Sale 446,589.81 (89,317.96) 357,271.85
Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring of Employee Defined
Benefit Plans (44,605.00) 8,921.00 (35,684.00)
Total 401,984.81 80,396.96 321,587.85
For the year ended 31 December 2017
Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring Investments Held as
Available-for-Sale (250.22) 50.05 (200.17)
Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring of Employee Defined
Benefit Plans 13,762,723.85 (2,752,544.76) 11,010,179.09
Total 13,762,473.63 (2,752,494.71) 11,009,978.92

27. Provident Fund
The Company established a contributory registered provident fund in accordance with
the Provident Fund Act.B.E. 1987, which comprise of the employees’ contribution to the fund
minimum 5% of their basic salary and the Company also contribute to the fund at 5%. The
provident fund is managed Provident Fund. The benefit will be paid to the employees whom
retire in accordance to the fund’s regulations.
For the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group has paid contribution to

provident fund in the amount of Baht 4.10 million and Baht 3.48 million, respectively.

28. Earnings Per Share
For the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Company has calculated basic
earnings per share by dividing profit for the year with the weighted average number during the year

of ordinary shares as follows:

Consolidated Financial Statements Separate Financial Statements
For the year For the year For the year For the year
ended ended ended ended

31 December 2018 31 December 2017 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Baht Baht Baht Baht
Profit (Loss) for the Year 777,149,872.38 680,831,877.28 776,883,522.07 681,024,007.19

Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Share
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During the Year (Shares) 924,999,441 924,999,441 924,999,441 924,999,441

Basic Earnings (Loss) per Share 0.84 0.74 0.84 0.74

29. Expenses by Nature

Consist of:
Consolidated/ Separate Financial Statements
For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Baht Baht
Change in Finished Goods and Development In Progress 49,287,231.51 595,235,384.70
Construction Materials Used and Construction Other Expenses 2,255,657,034.56 1,416,723,572.60
Employees Expense 264,560,982.92 244,716,907.25
Depreciation and Amortization 61,155474.47 56,771,914.62
Management Remuneration Expenses 38,244,999.85 35,274,412.04
Specific Business Tax and Transfer Fee 156,978,269.00 157,518,870.50
Billboard Rental Expenses 66,730,419.12 57,403,690.94
Selling Promotion Expense 168,687,134.10 124,446,403.45

30. Segment Information
The Company and subsidiary operates in only one main sector, namely business of real
estate development in type of allotted house for sale and operate in one geographic which is Thailand.
Thus all income profit and assets as shown on the financial statements were related to the business
sector and geographical area as already said and for the year 2018 and 2017, the Company have no
major customer with revenue of 10 percent or more of the Company’s revenues in the consolidated

financial statements.

31. Financial Instruments
31.1 Financial Risk Management Policy
The Group is not hold or issue financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes.
31.2 Interest Rate Risk
Risk on interest is derived from fluctuation of interest rate in the future which affect the
financial performance and cash flows of Company. The company had assets and liabilities which is

exposed for interest rate risk as follows:

Consolidated Financial Statements

As at 31 December 2018
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Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Financial Liabilities

Overdrafts

Debenture

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Financial Liabilities

Overdrafts
Promissory Note
Bill of Exchange

Debenture

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Financial Liabilities

Overdrafts
Promissory Note

Debenture

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Financial Liabilities

Overdrafts
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Floating Fixed Non-interest Interest Rates
Interest Rate Interest Rates bearing Total (%)
9,629,323.77 - 100,223,145.60 109,852,469.37 0.50-2.25
19,415,326.57 - - 19,415,326.57 7.12-7.20
- 3,240,000,000.00 - 3,240,000,000.00 3.25-4.50

Consolidated Financial Statements

As at 31 December 2017

Floating Fixed Non-interest Interest Rates
Interest Rate Interest Rates bearing Total (%)
3,156,610.45 - 46,509,816.58 49,666,427.03 0.30-0.625
6,072,188.06 - - 6,072,188.06 7.12-7.20
- 20,000,000.00 - 20,000,000.00 5.00
- 450,000,000.00 - 450,000,000.00 2.05-2.10
- 2,700,000,000.00 - 2,700,000,000.00 3.25-5.00
Separate Financial Statements
As at 31 December 2018
Floating Fixed Non-interest Interest Rates
Interest Rate Interest Rates bearing Total (%)
9,197,339.61 - 100,221,085.60 109,418,425.21 0.05-2.25
19,415,326.57 - - 19,415,326.57 7.12-7.20
- 18,000,000.00 - 18,000,000.00 2.00
- 3,240,000,000.00 - 3,240,000,000.00 3.25-4.50

Separate Financial Statements

As at 31 December 2017

Floating Fixed Non-interest Interest Rates
Interest Rate Interest Rates bearing Total (%)
3,085,118.46 - 46,506,784.58 49,591,903.04 0.30-0.625
6,072,188.06 - - 6,072,188.06 7.12-7.20



Promissory Note - 20,000,000.00 - 20,000,000.00 5.00

Bill of Exchange - 450,000,000.00 - 450,000,000.00 2.05-2.10
Long-Term loan - 19,000,000.00 - 19,000,000.00 2.00
Debenture - 2,700,000,000.00 - 2,700,000,000.00 3.25-5.00

31.3 Credit Risk
The Group constitutes low risk from credit provision since given the sale of property
is sale which determined that liability from customers is fully repayable before the delivery of
property is fulfilled.
31.4 Fair Value
Owing to mainly financial assets and financial liabilities were classified as short-term
type and several borrowings have an interest rate nearby the market rate, thence the
management of the Company believes that the fair value of such financial assets and liabilities

do not materially differ from the carrying amount.

31.5 Fair Value Hierarchy
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group has financial assets which are recognized

at fair value are categorized by the fair value hierarchy as follows:

Consolidated Financial Statements

Fair Value
Carrying Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Amount Inputs Inputs Inputs Total
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
As at 31 December 2018
Non Current Financial Asset
Investments Held as
Available-for-Sale 426,748,453.50 426,748,453.50 - - 426,748,453.50
As at 31 December 2017
Non Current Financial Asset
Investments Held as
Available-for-Sale 31,267,283.06 31,267,283.06 - - 31,267,283.06

Separate Financial Statements
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Carrying
Amount
Baht
As at 31 December 2018
Non Current Financial Asset
Investments Held as
Available-for-Sale 426,012,375.02
As at 31 December 2017
Non Current Financial Asset
Investments Held as
Available-for-Sale 30,537,912.28

Fair Value

Level 1
Inputs

Baht

426,012,375.02

30,537,912.28

Level 2 Level 3
Inputs Inputs Total
Baht Baht Baht

- - 426,012,375.02

- - 30,537,912.28

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group has financial long term liabilities which have

fair value disclosures are categorized by the fair value hierarchy as follows:

Carrying
Amount
Baht
As at 31 December 2018
Non Current Financial Liability
Debenture 3,240,000,000.00
As at 31 December 2017
Non Current Financial Liability
Debenture 2,700,000,000.00

32. Transactions with Related Parties

Consolidated/ Separate Financial Statements

Fair Value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Inputs Inputs Inputs Total
Baht Baht Baht Baht
- 3,248,874,696.20 - 3,248,874,696.20
- 2,710,688,070.40 - 2,710,688,070.40

The Company has significant business transactions with the related parties. Such

transactions, which have been concluded on commercial terms and bases agreed upon between the
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Company and those related parties are in ordinary course of business, which are summarized as

follows:

32.1 Relationship with the Company

Name Nature of Relationship

Prosper Property Co., Ltd.

32.2 Inter-transactions

Pricing Policies
Inter-Transaction with Subsidiary
Annual Interest Rate

Interest Expense at 2.00%

32.3 Inter-outstanding balances

Deferred Land Development Cost
Subsidiary
Long-Term Borrowings
Subsidiary
Beginning Balance
Increase During the Year
Decrease During the Year
Ending Balance
Accrued Interest

Subsidiary

Subsidiary by direct shareholding

Separate Financial Statements

For the year ended
31 December 2018

Baht

367,945.18

For the year ended
31 December 2017

Baht

10,410.95

Separate Financial Statements

As at

31 December 2018

As at

31 December 2017

Baht Baht
- 3,000,000.00
19,000,000.00 -
- 19,000,000.00
(1,000,000.00) -
18,000,000.00 19,000,000.00
271,232.85 10,410.95
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32.4 Key Management Personnel Remuneration

Short-Term Employee Benefits
Post-Employee Benefits
- Defined Contribution Plans
- Defined Benefit Plans

Total

33. Cash Flows Information
33.1 Cash Flow Transactions

Consist of:

Transfer Land Held to Development to be Inventories
Transfer Deposit to be Land to Inventories
Transfer assets to be Inventories
Amortized Debenture Issuance Expenses
to be Inventories
Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring of Investments Held

as Available-for-Sale
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Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended
31 December 2018

Baht

570,754,452.00
1,200,000.00

2,273,858.68

1,437,063.50

453,297.51

Consolidated/Separate Financial Statements

For the year ended

31 December 2018

For the year ended

31 December 2017

Baht Baht
33,925,452.00 32,855,069.00
1,601,277.85 1,504,811.60
2,718,270.00 914,531.44
38,244,999.85 35,274,412.04

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 December 2017 31 December 2018

Baht Baht

558,056,621.17 570,754,452.00

- 1,200,000.00
- 2,273,858.68
1,540,794.64 1,437,063.50
169,018.00 446,589.81

Separate Financial Statements

For the year ended
31 December 2017

Baht

558,056,621.17

1,540,794.64

(250.22)



Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring of Employee Defined

that will be Recognized in Other

Comprehensive Income (Expenxe)

Stock Dividend Payment

(44,605.00)

99,999,441.00

33.2 Changes in Liabilities arising from Financing Activities

13,762,723.85

(44,605.00)

13,762,723.85

99,999,441.00

For the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, changes in liabilities arising from

financing activities have the movements as follows:

Overdrafts and Short-Term Borrowings
from Financial Institutions

Debenture
- Current
- Non Current

Liabilities under Finance Lease Agreements
- Current
- Non Current

Accrued Dividend

Accrued Interest

As at
1 January 2018

Baht

476,072,188.06

959,628,760.26
1,738,642,355.82

12,840.00

419,954.14

13,293,315.12

Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Changes from
Financing Cash Flows

Baht

(456,656,861.49)

(960,000,000.00)

1,496,630,000.01

(12,840.00)

(304,892,118.96)
(19,892,227.25)

Other Changes

Baht

800,174,359.99

(798,737,296.49)

305,248,400.91
18,893,597.05

As at
31 December 2018

Baht

19,415,326.57

799,803,120.25
2,436,535,059.34

776,236.09
12,294,684.92

Total

3,188,069,413.40

(244,824,047.69)

325,579,061.46

3,268,824,427.17

Overdrafts and Short-Term Borrowings
from Financial Institutions
Long Term Borrowings
- Current
- Non Current
Debenture
- Current
- Non Current

Liabilities under Finance Lease Agreements

As at
1 January 2017

Baht

787,681,332.10

300,000,000.00

349,801,461.63
1,757,834,709.81

Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Changes from
Financing Cash Flows

Baht

(311,609,144.04)

(300,000,000.00)

(350,000,000.00)
939,094,150.00

Other Changes

Baht

959,827,298.63
(958,286,503.99)

As at
31 December 2017

Baht

476,072,188.06

959,628,760.26
1,738,642,355.82
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(15,408.00)

(135,885,904.79)
(7,632,545.49)

12,840.00
(12,840.00)
136,012,984.42
16,899,559.25

12,840.00

419,954.14
13,293,315.12

(166,048,852.32)

154,453,338.31

3,188,069,413.40

- Current 15,408.00
- Non Current 12,840.00
Accrued Dividend 292,874.51
Accrued Interest 4,026,301.36
Total 3,199,664,927.41

As at

1 January 2018
Baht
Overdrafts and Short-Term Borrowings

from Financial Institutions 476,072,188.06

Long-Term Borrowings from Subsidiary 19,000,000.00
Debenture
- Current 959,628,760.26

- Non Current 1,738,642,355.82

Liabilities under Finance Lease Agreements

- Current 12,840.00
- Non Current -
Accrued Dividend 419,954.14

Accrued Interest 13,303,726.07

Separate Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Changes from

Financing Cash Flows

Baht

(456,656,861.49)
(1,000,000.00)

(960,000,000.00)
1,496,630,000.01

(12,840.00)

(304,892,118.96)
(19,999,350.53)

Other Changes

Baht

800,174,359.99

(798,737,296.49)

305,248,400.91
19,261,542.23

As at
31 December 2018

Baht

19,415,326.57
18,000,000.00

799,803,120.25
2,436,535,059.34

776,236.09
12,565,917.77

Total 3,207,079,824.35

(245,931,170.97)

325,947,006.64

3,287,095,660.02

As at
1 January 2017
Baht
Overdrafts and Short-Term Borrowings
from Financial Institutions
Long-Term Borrowings from Subsidiary -

Long Term Borrowings

- Current 300,000,000.00

- Non Current -
Debenture

- Current 349,801,461.63

Annual Report 2018
Lalin Property Public Company Limited

787,681,332.10

Separate Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Changes from

Financing Cash Flows

Baht
(311,609,144.04)

19,000,000.00

(300,000,000.00)

(350,000,000.00)

Other Changes

Baht

959,827,298.63

As at
31 December 2017
Baht
476,072,188.06

19,000,000.00

959,628,760.26



- Non Current

Liabilities under Finance Lease Agreements
- Current
- Non Current

Accrued Dividend

Accrued Interest

1,757,834,709.81

15,408.00
12,840.00
292,874.51
4,026,301.36

939,094,150.00

(15,408.00)

(135,885,904.79)
(7,632,545.49)

(958,286,503.99)

12,840.00
(12,840.00)
136,012,984.42

16,909,970.20

1,738,642,355.82

12,840.00

419,954.14
13,303,726.07

Total

3,199,664,927.41

(147,048,852.32)

154,463,749.26

3,207,079,824.35

34. Obligations from Project Development on Hand
For the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, number of project development on hand
have Change as follows:
Consolidated/Separate Financial Statements
For the year ended For the year ended

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Beginning Number of Projects on Hand 48 44
Number of Closed Projects 5) 2)
Number of New Projects 7 6
Ending Number of Projects on Hand 50 48

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Company has commitment to payment for construct

in accordance with several contracts of project construction as follows:
Consolidated/Separate Financial Statements
As at As at
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Million Baht Million Baht

Remaining Amount of Contracted Construction 920.88 787.83

35. Obligations
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In addition to the liabilities presented in the statements of financial position as at 31 December
2018 and 2017, the Company has obligations as follows:
35.1 Bank Guarantee, as follows:
Consolidated/Separate Financial Statements
As at As at
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Million Baht Million Baht

Bank Guarantee 1,236.99 1,181.08

35.2 As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Company constitutes obligation from hiring security
for the headoffice and real estate of the Company. The obligations to pay under the agreement

is in amount of Baht 27.84 million and Baht 24.93 million, respectively.

36. Lawsuits

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Company has the lawsuits which were clear the way.
The case No. Black 1698/2015 and No. Red 2109/2016, the Civil Court has adjudged to acquit the
case. The plaintiff appealed to the Court Appeals. On October 26, 2016, the Court of Appeal reversed
the judgment. The Company has to open the necessary way to the plaintiff's land for a width of 1
meter and must be open throughout the land of the Company.

Currently, under consideration by the supreme court hearings cannot be determined at
present, the Company has not made any provision for possible losses in from such lawsuits in the

financial statements.

37. Reclassification
The Company has reclassified some items in the consolidated and separate financial
statements for prior period which presented as comparative so as to comply with the classification
of the consolidated and separate financial statements for current period, which does not have any
effects on profit for the period or shareholder’s equity already presented, are summarized as

follows:
Consolidated Financial Statements

As previously reported Reclassification As currently reported
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Baht
Statement of Financial Position As at 1 January 2017
Unappropriated Retained Earnings 3,551,480,248.93
Other Components of Shareholders' Equity 143,047.12

Non — Controlling Interests 4,000.85

Statement of Financial Position As at 31 December 2017

Baht

3,972.27
28.58

(4,000.85)

Baht

3,551,484,221.20

143,075.70

Inventories 8,479,824,935.19 (1,188,653.23) 8,478,636,281.96
Property, Plant and Equipment 396,760,010.03 1,188,653.23 397,948,663.26
Trade and Other Current Payables 352,254,670.70 (7,264,215.21) 344,990,455.49
Estimate Long-term of Liabilities 126,049,448.95 7,264,215.21 133,313,664.16
Unappropriated Retained Earnings 4,007,309,307.63 4,544 .52 4,007,313,852.15
Other Components of Shareholders' Equity 7,859.73 1.58 7,861.31
Non — Controlling Interests 4,546.10 (4,546.10) -
Separate Financial Statements
As previously reported Reclassification As currently reported
Baht Baht Baht

Statement of Financial Position Asat 31 December 2017
Inventories 8,482,825,935.19
Property, Plant and Equipment 393,207,198.93
Trade and Other Current Payables 352,257,665.65

Estimate Long-term of Liabilities 126,049,448.95

38. Event After the Reporting Period

(1,188,653.23)
1,188,653.23
(7,264,215.21)
7,264,215.21

8,481,636,281.96
394,395,852.16
344,993,450.44
133,313,664.16

In accordance with the Minute of the Board of Directors Meeting, held on 27 February 2019, it

had passed a resolution to approve the appropriation of profit for 2018 to pay dividend totaling of Baht

314.49 million which the Company had already paid the interim dividend payment of Baht 0.165

million per share, totaling of Baht 152.62 million on 7 September 2018, and will pay the final

payment at Baht 0.175 per share, totaling of Baht 161.87 million, will be paid on 10 May 2019.
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However, it will be further proposed for the shareholders’ approval in the Annual General Meeting

of the Shareholders for fiscal year 2019.

39. Approval of the Financial Statement
These financial statements have been approved by Board of the Company on 27 February

2019.
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Other References

Company’s Auditor for the year 2018
Ms.Wanraya Puttasatiean
C.P.A. (Thailand) Registration No0.4387

Be an auditor who is independent and has accepted qualifications.

Also be an auditor who is in approved list of the SEC.

C.W.W.P Company Limited

128/180-181 Phayatai Plaza Building, 17th Floor, Phayatai Road,
Ratchatavee, Bangkok 10400, Thailand

Tel : (66 2) 216 — 2265 Fax : (66 2) 216 — 2286

The Legal Counsel

Kanung & Partners International Consultancy Company Limited

12th Floor, Nai Lert Tower, 214 Wireless Road, Bangkok 10330 Thailand

Tel : (66 2) 267 - 8931 Fax: (66 2) 267 - 8942

Dealer
Asia Plus Securities Public Company Limited
175, 11th Floor, Sathorn City Tower
South Sathorn Roadd Thung Maha Mek, Sathorn, Bangkok 10120
Tel : (66 2) 680 - 1111
Fax : (66 2) 285 — 1901

Bank of Ayudhya Public Company Limited

1222 Rama lll Road, Bang Phongphang, Yan Nawa
Bangkok 10120

Tel : (66 2) 296 - 2000

Fax : (66 2) 683 — 1000

CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited
44 | .ang Suan Road, Lumpini, Pathumwan
Bangkok 10330

Tel : (66 2) 626 - 7329

Fax: (66 2) 657 — 3333

Kiatnakin Bank Public Company Limited
500 Amarin Tower, Ploenchit Road
Lumpini, Pathumwan,

Bangkok 10330

Tel : (66 2) 165 - 5555

Fax : (66 2) 256 — 9933
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Siam Commercial Bank Public Company Limted
9 Ratchadapisek Road, Jatujak, Jatujak
Bangkok 10900

Tel : (66 2) 544 - 1111

Fax : (66 2) 937 — 7931

Thanachart Bank Public Company Limited
1101 New Petchburi Road

Makkasan, Rajdhevi, Bangkok 10400

Tel : (66 2) 208 — 5000

Fax : (66 2) 253 — 6332

United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public Company
191 South Sathorn Road

Thung Maha Mek, Sathorn, Bangkok 10120
Tel: (66 2) 343 -4996 - 8

Fax : (66 2) 343 — 4993

Securities Registrar
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Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited
333 Silom Road, Silom, Bangrak
Bangkok 10500

Tel : (66 2) 231 - 4333

Fax: (66 2) 231 — 4890

Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd.

62 The Stock Exchange of Thailand Building,
Rachadapisek Road, Klongtoey, Klongtoey,
Bangkok 10110, Thailand

Tel: (66 2) 229 — 2800

Fax: (66 2) 359 — 1259

TSD Call center: (66 2) 229 — 2888
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